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PART I
Item 1. Busines:

WWE is an integrated media and entertainment comnpate have been involved in the sports entertairirbasiness for over 30 years, .
have developed WWE into one of the most populandsan global entertainment today. We develop umignd creative content cente
around our talent and present it via network, telem, online and at our live events. At the heafrtour success are the athletic
entertainment skills and appeal of our Superstagszivas, and our consistently innovative and rrfaldeted storylines. Our network, live i
televised events, digital media, home entertainmemisumer products and feature films provide §icanit crossgromotion and marketir
opportunities that reinforce our brands while effedy reaching our fans.

Based on the strength of the Compangtands and its ownership and control over itslledtual property, the Company has been at
leverage its content and talent across virtuallynadia platforms. We continually evaluate additibopportunities to monetize new ¢
existing content, including our subscription netv@iWWWE Network™), which launched domestically oetffuary 24, 2014, and internation:
beginning August 12, 2014. In support of this atitre, during 2012, 2013 and 2014, the Companyeased staffing levels and expandec
content production capabilities. The launch of WW&work, which changes the distribution of WWE'syfeerview events, has reduced
monetization of our assets through other platfosoth as pay-per-view and other content distribotedertain digital platforms.

"WWE" refers to World Wrestling Entertainment, Iremd its subsidiaries, unless the context othervdgeires. References to "we," "t
"our" and the "Company" refer to WWE and its sulasids. The initials "WWE" and our stylized and méo "W" logo are two of ot
trademarks. This report also contains other WWHemaarks and trade names as well as those of otimepanies. All trademarks and tri
names appearing in this report are the propertiiaf respective holders.

Our operations are organized around the following pincipal activities:

Media Division:
* Network

« Revenues consist principally of subscriptions WOVE Network, fees for viewing our pay-per-view amileo-ondeman:
programming, and advertising fees.

e Televisior
« Revenues consist principally of television rigfges and advertising.
* Home Entertainment

« Revenues consist principally of sales of WWE doieed content via home entertainment platformsludicg DVD, BluRay
subscription and transactional on-demand outlets.

» Digital Media
« Revenues consist principally of advertising salesoor websites and third party websites includinguYube, sales of vario
broadband and mobile content and magazine pubgjsiiime Company discontinued the magazine publishirginess in August 2014.

Live Events
« Revenues consist principally of ticket sales tadel packages for live events.
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Consumer Products Division:

Licensing
* Revenues consist principally of royalties or licerises related to various WWE themed products suchideo games, toys ¢
apparel.
Venue Merchandise
* Revenues consist of sales of merchandise aivaievents.

WWEShop
» Revenues consist of sales of merchandise on ebsite through our WWEShop internet storefront.

WWE Studios
« Revenues consist of amounts earned from the timgeim producing and/or distributing of filmed entainment.

Media Division

(represents 63% , 60% and 59% of our net revenues 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively)
WWE Network

Launched on February 24, 2014, WWE Network becamefitstever 24/7 live streaming network. This subscriptimsed network
currently available in more than 170 countries tandtories, including Australia, Canada, New ZealaHong Kong, Singapore, Mexico, Sp
and the Nordics, among others. Subscribers carsa@kl12 of WWE's live pay-periew events, exclusive original programming, andre
than 2,700 hours of video-atlemand library. WWE Network is available on desktemd laptops via WWE.com, through the WWE Ap
Amazon Fire TV and Kindle Fire devices, 10S devjcapple TV, Roku streaming devices, gaming consdlegrconnected TV's, BIRay
players and Smart TVs. As of December 31, 200MWE Network had 816,000 subscribers. For domestixscribers, the current subscrip
to WWE Network is $9.99 per month with no commitmperiod.

Network subscription revenues were $69.5 millioepresenting 13% of total net revenues in 2014.
Pay-Per-View Programming

WWE has been one of the world’s leading providdénsay-per-view programming for over 30 years. I120WWE produced 12 live pay-
per-view events which ranked among the highesinggelive event programs in the industry. WWE's aahcrown jewel WrestleMania, ha:
historically achieved more than one million buysridwide. On April 6, 2014, WWE celebrated the 3@thniversary ofWrestleManiain the
Mercedes-Benz Superdome in New Orleans, Louisjamefore a sold-out crowd with millions watching ainfie. WrestleMania 3Gachieve:
approximately 0.7 million buys and generated $16ilion in pay-per-view revenue. AdditionallWrestleMania 3Qvas the first pay-peview
to air live on WWE Network.

WWE produced 12 domestic pay-per-view programs@m42 2013 and 2012. The suggested domestic raia@ for all pay-periew
events in 2014 was $44.95, with the exceptioloéstleManiavhich had a suggested domestic retail price of @&3Consistent with indust
practices, we share the revenues with cable systmmhsatellite providers that distribute the eveAtserage revenue per buy was $19i85
2014, $21.41in 2013 and $20.60 in 2012.

Beginning in 2014, these monthly marquis showsdaddfered as part of our WWE Network. Inclusion okse events as a part of
subscription WWE Network has resulted in a largerel@se of 4 la carte pay-peew revenue in the markets where WWE Network @ilable

Our international pay-periew partners include BSkyB in the United Kingdakhaxxdome in Germany, SKY Perfect TV! in Japan, ¢
Italia in Italy and Main Event in Australia, amontany others.

Pay-per-view net revenues were $45.2 million , $88illion and $83.6 million, representing 8%46% and 17% of total net revenue
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.






Table of Contents

WWE Classics on Demand

WWE Classics On Demand had been a subscriptiorovidiedemand service that offered classic televisioows, older pay-perew
events, specials and original programming for a thgnsubscription fee. In anticipation of WWE Neftkdaunch, it ceased operations
January 2014.

WWE Classics On Demand net revenues were $0.3omilli 2014, $3.8 million in 2013 and $4.1 milliam 2012, representing less tl
1% of total net revenues for 2014 and 1% in both328nd 2012.

Television

Relying on our inhouse production capabilities at our technologjcatlvanced, high definition, production facilityevproduce five hou
of original weekly domestic television programminge also produce reality shows and other programnifany of these programs, with
exception of live and near live airings BAWand SmackDowngurrently air on WWE Network Our televisionprogramming is distribute
domestically and internationally. Our domestic v&®n programs currently ar®@AWon USA Network with replays on mun2 and Uni t
SmackDowron Syfy with replays on mun2; arfitbtal Divason E! Network. WWES TV programs reach approximately 13 million viesvan
the United States during the average week. USA bidtwwhe Syfy Channel and E! Network are owned BCN\Jniversal.

RAWand SmackDowrare licensed domestically under a mykiar contract with NBC Universal which became dffecon October :
2014.

RAW s a threchour live primetime program which ranks among thestmwatched regularly scheduled programs on prineettabl
television.RAW, which has been on air for 21 years, is the longaming weekly episodic program in primetime Tigtbry and anchors US
consistently helping make it the top-rated cablsvoek.

SmackDowris a two-hour show which aired in primetime on Byigl before moving to Thursdays on January 15, 28dmckDowrhas ol
average been Syfy’s most-watched program each vBrakckDowris the second longest running weekly episodic @ogm primetime T
history, only behindRAW.

WWE Main Evenis a one-hour original series featuring WWEuperstars and Divas. WWE Main Event is distabutia television i
certain international markets and also airs on WWMéBEwvork.

Total Divaswas added to WWE's programming linp-in July 2013, continued to air Sundays on Elifr@gg with an eleven episode |
of Season 2 earlier in 2014, and ended the ye#rth first ten episodes of Season 3. The readisetl show explores life beyond the ring
several WWE Divas. The second half of Season 3rbagiing in January 2015. Previous episodes of @ead? also replayed on WW
Network.

NXT and WWESuperstarsair on WWE Network and HULU domestically. Betwedserm, they also air on television in over 170 caat
internationally. NXT features development taleatrting to become WWE Superstars.

During 2014, the Company began airing webisode®/@{E Slam City™ an animated series on WWE.com and WWE Network. &
Slam City™ is WWE's original kids animated shortffoseries, which airs on NickSports and Nicktodrse 26episode series is comprisec
two-minute shorts featuring WWE Superstars in amated world.

Each year, more than 6,000 hours of WWElevision programming can be seen in more tif@ncbuntries and 35 languages arount
world. Our broadcast partners include: BSkyB in thated Kingdom; Ten Sports in India, and J SPORTSapan, among many others
January 2014, we announced the renewal of our agmetewith BSkyB in the United Kingdom through 20T8uring 2014, the Company sigr
seven deals that comprise significant amount oft@tad TV rights fees. These “top Wtaled over $130 million in 2014 and are with pars ir
the U.S., U.K, India, Thailand, Canada, Mexico &fiddle East region.

Television revenues were $176.7 million, $163.4lioril and $140.9 million, representing 33982% and 29% of total net revenue
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Home Entertainment

WWE distributes its content as home entertainmelgtases in both physical (DVD and Bly) and digital formats. Content distribu
through home entertainment channels has includsded compilations from the Company’s vast archagwell as releases of the Company’
pay-per-view events. WWE’s home entertainmentditlee generally sold through retailers, such asMé&at and Best Buy and via subscripi
and transactional on-demand outlets, such as iTraazon, Netflix and others. Outside the Unitedt&t, thirdparty licensees distribute ¢
home entertainment releases. Starting in Januafyb,2W/arner Brothers Home Entertainment has becdmedistributor of our hon
entertainment products.

In 2014, we released 30 new home video productipeizally and, in the U.S., shipped approximately @illion DVD and Bluray units
including catalog titles released in prior years.

Home entertainment net revenues were $27.3 mil$ad,3 million and $33.0 million, representing 5% and 7% of total net revenue
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Digital Media

WWE utilizes the Internet to promote our brandgate a community experience among our fans, maretdistribute our content
digital products and sell online advertising. Ouimary website, WWE.com, attracted an average of 26illion monthly unique visito
worldwide during 2014. These visitors viewed anrage of more than 486.5 million pages and approtdinal7.8 million video streams
month. WWE wallpapers, ringtones, voicetones, gaamelsvideos are available through our mobile pastrips.

WWE currently has regional websites spanning 5thtt@s worldwide, allowing fans to experience WWtthieir native language witt
concentration on local events and shows. Someeottiuntries in which we have regional websitesuidel China, France, Germany, In
Japan, Poland, Portugal, Spain and Russia. Lok agencies sell advertising on WWE.com in moas tB5 countries.

WWE currently streams its video content on seléd¢w portals such as YouTube. During 2014, 3.9dnilvideos of WWE content we
viewed on YouTube garnering the Company advertis#vgnues attached to the content.

Total Digital Media net revenues were $ 20.9 milli&28.7 million and $25.7 million, representing 4896 and 5% of total net revenue
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Magazine Publishing

The magazine division of WWE publish®dWE Magazine, WWE Kidsagazine and several special magazines. Howevr,the cos
reduction initiatives implemented in September 20tte magazine division was eliminated. The Compstily produces special editi
magazines from time to time.

Live Events
(represents 20% , 22% and 22% of our net revenues 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively)

Our broad and talented roster of Superstasdlows us to perform in numerous domestic marketd take advantage of the str
international demand for our events. Live events tabevision programming are our principal creatbemtent and production activities. (
creative team develops compelling and complex citars and weaves them into dynamic storylines doatbine physical and emotio
elements. Storylines are usually played out inrihg and unfold on our weekly television shows,namlating in monthly marquis evel
distributed via pay-per-view and now also availaileWWE Network.

In 2014, we produced 28#4e events throughout North America, entertainapproximately 1.6 million fans at an average tigkéte of ¢
48.86. We hold many of our live events at major arena®ss the country. In addition to providing contémt our television and oth
programming, these events provide us with a read-tissessment of the popularity of our storylimesaharacters.
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In 2014, we produced 54 live events internationalaching approximately 300,000 fans at an avetiaget price of $ 75.81These even
were spread over several international tours tHrougEurope, the Middle East, Asia, Latin America @ustralia.

Live events net revenues were $110.7 million , $118illion and $106.6 million, representing 20%®2% and 22% of total net revenue
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Consumer Products Division

(represents 14% , 15% and 17% of our net revenues 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively)
Licensing

We have established a worldwide licensing programgiour marks and logos, copyrighted works andazhars on a large variety of re
products, including toys, video games, appareltaaks. Currently, we have relationships with mawant 150 licensees worldwide that proy
products for sale at major retailers. To maintdia tlistinctive style and quality of our intelledtymoperty and brand, we retain crea
approval over the design, packaging, advertisirdy@omotional materials associated with these prtsdu

Video games and toys are the largest componermardicensing program. We have a comprehensivetityeér licensing agreement w
Mattel, Inc. our master toy licensee, covering gifibal territories. In 2013, we entered into a newlti-year agreement with Takewo
Interactive Software, Inc. ("Take-Two") to publihiure video games.

Music is an integral part of the entertainment edgmee surrounding WWE's live events, televisiomgrams and pay-petiews. We
compose and record most of our music, including Superstar entrance themes, in our recording studiaddition to our own compos
music, we license music performed by popular attistusic links the WWE brand to all media platforimsluding television, film, radio, vide
games, live events and other emerging digital telcgies.

Licensing net revenues, including music, were $38il6on , $43.6 million and $46.3 million, repregeg 7%, 9% and 10% of total r
revenues in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Venue Merchandise

Our venue merchandise business consists of thgrdessiurcing, marketing and distribution of numersWE-branded products such as
shirts, caps and other novelty items, all of wHigditure our Superstars, Divas and/or logos. Thesesiare offered for sale at our live events.

Venue merchandise net revenues were $ a8ll®n, $19.4 million and $18.8 million, represamg 4% of total net revenues in each 2!
2013 and 2012.

WWEShop

WWEShop is our @ommerce storefront. WWEShop processed approxignd@6,000 orders during 2014 as compared to apmabeily
320,000 in 2013. The Company established a newiaethip with Amazon UK to distribute orders via VBEuroShop.com.

WWEShop net revenues were $20.2 , $15.5 million $b4.8 million, representing 4%f total net revenues in 2014, and 3% of 1
revenues in 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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WWE Studios

(represents 2% , 2% and 2% of our net revenues in(®4, 2013 and 2012, respectively)

WWE Studios oversees the Companyparticipation in the production and global disition of filmed entertainment content, which r
include movies for theatrical, home entertainmamigi/or television release. The Company believesnitsie business, expands its bra
reaching new audiences, supporting the Company&siment in its Superstar talent, and building ratexat library with lasting value.

In 2012, WWE Studios implemented a new businessemachich focuses on the utilization of strategartperships, including productic
distribution and acquisition relationships, to e&mse financial returns and mitigate risk. WWE z#ii its marketing and content platfor
especially its weekly presence on prime-time talewvi, to support its movie projects.

In 2014 WWE Studios released seven films. Amondfitheprojects, WWE Studios joined with Warner Bnets Animation to c@roduce an
co-financeScooby Doo! WrestleMania Mysteapd released several direct-to-home sequels withdgateLeprechaun OriginendSee No Ev
2. Additionally, Jingle All the Way 2 a direct-tohome film, premiered on DVD then capped off USA Watk's holiday WWE wee
programming event.

WWE Studios net revenues were $10.9 million , $10illon and $7.9 million, representing 292% and 2% of total net revenues in 2!
2013 and 2012, respectively.

The Company has substantial capitalized film coBt® accounting for our film business in accordawitd generally accepted account
principles entails significant judgment used toelep estimates of expected future revenues framsfillf expected revenue for one or mor
our films does not materialize because audienceaddrdoes not meet expectations, our estimated wegemay not be sufficient to recoup
investment in the film. If actual revenues are lowean our estimated revenues or if costs are higfen expected, or if other conditic
indicate our film assets may not be recoverablecateulate the estimated fair value of the filmtH& unamortized cost of the film is grei
than the estimated fair value, we are requirecetomnd an impairment charge and write down the abpéd costs of the film to the estims
fair value. During the years ended December 3142Q@013 and 2012, we recorded aggregate impaircteniges of $1.5 million $11.°
million and $1.2 million, respectively, relating teature films. See Note 7 to the Consolidated fére Statements included in this report
further discussion.

International

Revenues generated outside of North America aalbssir business segments were $116.4 milfmm2014, $116.3 million for 2013 a
$118.1 million for 2012. Revenues generated frotarimational sources accounted for 2b¥dotal revenues generated in 2014, 23% in .
and 24% in 2012. Revenues generated in the Unitegddm, our largest international market, were $4dillion , $36.0 million and $34
million for 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

See Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statesrinatuded in this report for additional informatiby segment and by geographic area.

Creative Development and Production

Headed by our Chairman and Chief Executive Offivémcent K. McMahon, our creative team develops peling and complex charact
and weaves them into dynamic storylines that compimysical and emotional elements. Storylines awally played out in the ring and unf
on our weekly television shows, culminating in eoonthly marquis events. We voluntarily designat shitability of each of our televisi
shows using standard industry ratings, and alluofppogramming carries a PG rating, which is caitio maintaining the Compars/teputatio
for family friendly entertainment.

Our success is due primarily to the continuing papty of our Superstars and Divas. We currentlyehapproximately 140 Superstars
Divas under exclusive contracts, ranging from mygiar guaranteed contracts with established Supenstalevelopmental contracts with
Superstars in training. Our Superstars and Divashaghly trained and motivated independent contractwhose compensation is tied to
revenue that they help generate. We own the righésibstantially all of our characters and exclelsivicense the rights we do not own thro
agreements with our Superstars and Divas. We agaltinseek to identify, recruit and develop additibtalent for our business.
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Competition

While we believe that we have a loyal fan base,dhi@rtainment industry is highly competitive andbject to fluctuations in populari
which are not easy to predict. For our live, ted@wi, pay-periew and movie audiences and from business suolrasew WWE Network, w
will face competition from professional and colleggorts as well as from other forms of live, filme€elevised, streamed entertainment
other leisure activities. We compete with entert@nt companies, professional and college sportpit=saand other makers of branded ap
and merchandise. As we continue to expand intohtghly competitive streamed media market, we waltd increased competition fr
websites and mobile and other internet connect@d affering paid and free content. Many companiéh whom we compete have gre:
financial resources than we do.

Trademarks and Copyrights

Intellectual property is material to all aspectsoof operations, and we expend substantial costeffiodt in an attempt to maintain ¢
protect our intellectual property and to mainta@mpliance vis-a-vis other partiesitellectual property. We have a large portfolioregistere
and unregistered trademarks and service marks wiglddand maintain a large catalog of copyrightedkspincluding copyrights in o
programming, music, photographs, books, magazfitess and apparel art. A principal focus of ourcef§ is to protect the intellectual prope
relating to our originally created characters @y&d by our performers, which encompasses imaifesielsses, names and other identif
indicia of these characters. We also own a largaebaur of internet website domain names and operathaork of developed, contehése:
sites, which facilitate and contribute to the exaliion of our intellectual property worldwide.

We vigorously seek to enforce our intellectual gy rights by, among other things, searching titernet to ascertain unauthorized us
our intellectual property, seizing goods that featunauthorized use of our intellectual propertgt aaeking restraining orders and/or dam
in court against individuals or entities infringingr intellectual property rights. Our failure tortail piracy, infringement or other unauthori
use of our intellectual property rights effectivety our infringement of othergtellectual property rights, could adversely affear operatin
results.

Financial Information about Segments

See Note 19 to Notes to Consolidated Financiak8tants, which is included elsewhere in this ForaK1€r financial information abo
each of our segments.

Employees

As of February 2015, we had approximately 761 egg#s. This headcount excludes our Superstars, vehmdependent contractors. (
in-house production staff is supplemented with comtpersonnel for our television production. We badigdhat our relationships with ¢
employees are good. None of our employees aresemtied by a union.

Regulation

Live Events

In various states in the United States and som@doijurisdictions, athletic commissions and otigplicable regulatory agencies requir
to obtain licenses for promoters, medical cleararael/or other permits or licenses for performady@ permits for events in order for ut
promote and conduct our live events. If we faittmply with the regulations of a particular juristittn, we may be prohibited from promot
and conducting our live events in that jurisdictidine inability to present our live events overextended period of time or in a numbe
jurisdictions could lead to a decline in the vasaevenue streams generated from our live evertichweould adversely affect our opera
results.

Television Programming
The production of television programming by indegemt producers is not directly regulated by thesfatlor state governments, but

marketplace for television programming in the Udittates and internationally is substantially aéddy government regulations applici
to, as well as social and political influences wmtevision stations, television networks and cald satellite television systems and chan



We voluntarily designate the suitability of eacloaf television shows using standard industry
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ratings, and all of our programming carries a Phga Changes in governmental policy and privegetor perceptions could further restrict
program content and adversely affect our leveld@fership and operating results.

Available Information

Copies of our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, @erdy Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports om#8#K, and any amendments to th
reports, are available free of charge on our welaihttp://corporate.wwe.com as soon as reasopadtyicable after such reports are filed 1
or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Coniomis§'SEC”). Our reports are also available free abfarge on the SE€’website
http://www.sec.gov. The public may read and copy ematerials filed by the Company with the SEC & 8EC5 Public Reference Room
100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549. The puhky obtain information on the operation of the RuBleference Room by calling the S
at 1-800-SEC-0330. None of the information on ahpur websites is part of this Annual Report onrRdr0K. Our Corporate Governar
Guidelines, Code of Business Conduct and chartemup Audit, Compensation and our Governance andiNating Committees are a
available on our website. A copy of any of theseuheents will be mailed to any stockholder withobiige upon request to us at 1241
Main Street, Stamford, CT 06902, Attn: Investor&ieins Department.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

There are inherent risks and uncertainties assatiaith our business that could adversely affectaperating performance and finan
condition. Set forth below are descriptions of #hdsks and uncertainties that we currently believee material, but the risks and uncertai
described below are not the only risks and uncgits that could affect our business. See the d#on under Cautionary Statement 1
Purposes of the ‘Safe Harbor’ Provisions of thev&a Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995” itein 7, Managemerst’ Discussion ar
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggtems, in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The Company has spent, and will likely continue tospend, substantial amounts to produce content anchfrastructure for
distribution of content on our new WWE Network which launched domestically in early 2014 and began toe launched internationally
in late 2014. We are still developing expertise ithe digital distribution platforms that carry WWE N etwork on a subscription basis an
could experience significant setbacks in such morieation efforts. If, for any of a number of reasons we are unable to monetize th
distribution platform successfully, these addition&costs, and the loss of very significant revenuedm other distribution platforms being
displaced, could have a material adverse effect aur operating results.

Loss of Pay-Per-View Revenue part of the subscription to WWE Network, we areluding programming that we historically offe
through pay-per-view channels. On a pay-yew basis, such programming resulted in worldwielenues of $82.5 million for the year en
December 31, 2013; for the year ended Decembe2(@BH, pay-perdew revenues were $45.2 million. We believe tleiduction was direct
tied to our launch of WWE Network. Although we comied distributing this programming through certpiy-perview channels after tl
launch of WWE Network, some previous distributooslonger carry such programming. If, for any numbgreasons, our audience does
subscribe to WWE Network in sufficient numbers &ngrate adequate subscription revenues to offsekaed the loss of pay-peiew
revenue resulting from WWE Network, the resultimgd of revenue and profit could have a materialeesdy effect on our business
operating results.

Need to Attract, Retain and Replace Subscribéfs believe that WWE has a passionate fan base. Howihe markets for entertainm
video are intensely competitive and include marfysstiption, transactional and adpported models and vast amounts of pirated raégesll
of which capture segments of the entertainmentovidarket. This competition has increased signifiyain the recent past, and the Comp
expects this competition to continue to grow. Magyers that have entered this space have vashterfinancial and marketing resoul
than the Company as well as longer operating héstplarge customer bases and strong brand recmgnlthese competitors may secure b
terms from suppliers, aggressively price their mfigs and devote more technology and marketingurees. Recent offerings inclt
subscription digital services from Amazon, CBS, HBWickelodeon and many others. There are also meapmerienced competitors
subscribers’ business such as Netflix and Hulu.Rhiber competitors include broadcast, cable atelliga television, many of which have so-
called “TV everywhere” and “on demandbntent, online movie and television content prevéd(both legal and illegal (pirated)), and D
rentals and sales. Our ability to attract and nesaibscribers to WWE Network will depend in partam ability to provide a consistent h
quality service that is perceived to constitute dygalue for the consumer’entertainment dollars. We face competition wétbpect to servit
levels, content offerings, pricing and related deas$, which may adversely impact our ability toaat and retain these subscribers. In add
subscribers are allowed to cancel their subscriptat any time after a month and could do so feuaber of reasons, including a perceg
that they do not use the service sufficiently, ttreeed to cut household expenses, unsatisfactorerprncluding as a result of change
consumer tastes or otherwise, competitive ententaim at a lower price and customer service isstigis.is commonly referred to as “churn.”
Churn may be more pronounced in the periods follgWwarger WWE events shown on WWE Network suckiVagstleMania We will need t
add new subscribers to replace subscribers whoetammrder to grow our business. If we do notaattrsubscribers, if too many of
subscribers cancel our service, or if we are untbldtract new subscribers in sufficient numbets, financial outlook, liquidity, business ¢
operating results would be adversely affected.

Significant Initial and Ongoing Cost®©ur new WWE Network has and will continue to requgignificant capital expenditures
operating costs. Capital expenditures result ineased amortization and depreciation and may redquipairment charges if they do
provide adequate results. Any and all such coststimore than offset by revenues from WWE Netwaduld have a material adverse el
on our business and operating results.

Emerging BusinessNe believe that we entered the market for subsoriptligital streaming at a relatively early staffée believ
acceptance of this type of service is growing amasgys, that our fans are technologically soplastit and that the market is not saturated
could, however, find that we entered this busintessearly and that a number of our fans are umglifto migrate to a digital netwo
Alternatively, we could find that we entered thissthess too late and that other players, who haeater experience and resources thar
have occupied the space in a manner that will ersiginificant barriers to our success or there mglldominant competition in the market
this type of service going forward. Under eithegrsario, our ability to
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attract and retain subscribers will be adversdigcagd, which could have a material adverse effaatur business and operating results.

Reliance on Partners to Offer the Netwdrke offer subscribers the ability to receive streagréontent through their PCs, Macs and ¢
Internet-connected devices, including game consaidsmobile devices, such as tablets and mobilagsas well as smart televisions and Bl
ray players. We intend to continue to broaden dilitato stream programming to other platforms grattners. We rely on MLB Advanc
Media ("MLBAM"), an outside contractor, to develapd supply significant portions of the technology énfrastructure to deliver our cont
and interact with the user. If we are not successfmaintaining our relationship with MLBAM or ifve are not successful in entering into
maintaining relationships with platform providei§,the costs of maintaining these relationshipsréase materially, or if we encour
technological, licensing or other impediments t@ stieaming content, or if viewers migrate from @atforms to platforms we do not
cannot utilize, our ability to compete successfalhyld be adversely impacted. Agreements with oavigers are typically relatively short te
in duration and our business could be adverselgctdtl if, upon expiration, a number of partnersndb continue to provide access to
service or are unwilling to do so on terms accdptéd us. Certain platforms, such as Amazon andidpgffer their own content as well
WWE Network and, therefore, may be disincentivizegromote and deliver WWE Network at the samellaseprovided for its own content.

Possible Disruption of Systems to be Utilized im Operations.Our reputation and ability to attract, retain ardve our subscribers w
be dependent upon the reliable performance of opeiter systems and those of thpakties that we utilize in our operations. Intetiops ir
these systems, or with the Internet in general,tdugeather, natural disasters, terrorist attapksyer loss or other force majeure type ev:
could make our service unavailable or degradedtiveravise hinder our ability to deliver content, and do not carry business interrup!
insurance. Delivery of audiovisual material ovee fnternet is done through a series of carriert wwitchovers between carriers, and
point of failure in this distribution chain woulcuwase a disruption or degradation of our signalviSerdisruption or degradation for any of
foregoing reasons could diminish the overall ativeness of our subscription service to subscrilmergsause us to spend money to ci
subscribers affected by such disruption.

Our servers and those of third parties we will imseur operations are vulnerable to computer visuplysical or electronic bredks anc
similar disruptions and could experience directidcits intended to lead to interruptions and delaysur service and operations as we
loss, misuse, theft or release of proprietary, icemitial, sensitive or otherwise valuable Companysabscriber data or information. A
attempt by hackers to disrupt our service or othsrvaccess our systems, if successful, could hambuosiness, be expensive to rem
expose us to litigation and/or damage our reputatiur insurance does not cover expenses relatattodisruptions or unauthorized access.

Enhancements and modifications to WWE Network tetgy from time to time become commercially necegsand these consul
considerable resources in capital and operatingreckfures. If we are unable to acquire, maintaich @nhance the technology to manage
streaming of content to our subscribers in a tinzedg efficient manner either through an outsidereator, other third parties or ourselves,
ability to retain existing subscribers and to ad#/rsubscribers may be impaired. In addition, if mehnology or that of third parties we util
in our operations fails or otherwise operates irpprty, our ability to attract and/or retain subbers or add new subscribers may be impe
Also, any harm to our subscribers' personal conmmpuie other devices caused by software used iroperations could have an adverse e
on our business, results of operations and finanoiadition.

Fires, floods, earthquakes, power losses, telecaruations failures, breakts and similar events could damage systems artivaad
used for our service or cause them to fail completés we do not maintain entirely redundant system disrupting event could resul
prolonged downtime of our operations for which vikelly will not have adequate insurance coveragey Anch disrupting event col
adversely affect our business.

Impact of Government Regulatiorifhe adoption or modification of laws and regulatiaelating to the Internet or other areas of
business could limit or otherwise adversely affbet manner in which we plan to conduct our busin@ss growth and development of
market for online commerce may lead to more stribhg®nsumer protection laws, which may impose &atil burdens on us. If we
required to comply with new regulations or legiglator new interpretations of existing regulatimrdegislation, this compliance could ca
us to incur additional expenses or alter our pregoSusiness model. In addition, the delivery of W\NEtwork in international marke
exposes us to multiple regulatory frameworks, th@mglexity of which may result in unintentional namepliance which could adversely aff
our business and operating results.

The adoption of any laws or regulations that adelgraffect the growth, popularity or use of theelmet, including laws and/or co
decisions that have the effect of limiting Interneutrality, could limit the demand for our subption service and increase our cost of d
business. In late 2010, the Federal CommunicatBomamission (the “FCC”) adopted saidled net neutrality rules intended, in part, teyen
network operators from discriminating against lemalffic that transverse their networks. Theseswlere overturned by court ruling. The F
has recently proposed rules to require Internetrality, including by
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proposing to regulate consumer Internet service psblic utility. No assurances can be given thasé proposed rules will be adopted ¢
adopted, what final form the rules will take ortthiaey would withstand litigation if brought. Toetextent that network operators engag
discriminatory practices, our business could beeesbly impacted. As we expand internationally, goneent regulation concerning -
Internet, and in particular, net neutrality, may hescent or noexistent. Within such a regulatory environment, gled with potentiall
significant political and economic power of locatwork operators, we could experience discriminataranticompetitive practices that col
impede our growth, cause us to incur additionaleesp or otherwise negatively affect our businegsil&@ly, to the extent that netwc
operators implement usage based pricing, includiegningful bandwidth caps, or otherwise try to ntimeeaccess to their networks by ¢
providers (such as through tiered access or piiciohge to the heavy bandwidth use of audio/viswaltent we could incur greater opera
expenses and our subscriber acquisition and retentiuld be negatively impacted.

Most network operators that provide consumers actethe Internet also provide consumers audiol/istegramming. As a result, the
companies have an incentive to use their netwditastructure in a manner adverse to our successh@@xtent they provide preferen
treatment to their data or otherwise implementrdisioatory network management practices, WWE Nekaanuld be negatively impacted.
international markets these same incentives ajppl¢,consumer demand, regulatory oversight and ctitiopemay not be as strong of a ch
on these practices as they are in domestic markets.

Privacy concernsWe collect and utilize data supplied by our fanduding WWE Network subscribers. We currently faegtain lege
obligations regarding the manner in which we tseath information. Increased regulation of dataaatilon practices that limit our ability to t
collected data could have an adverse effect onbaginess. If we were to disclose or use data aboutsubscribers in a manner the
objectionable to them or is contrary to applicalle, our business reputation could be adverselgcedtl. We could also face potential I¢
claims that could impact our operating results.oAs business evolves and as we expand internatfomad will become subject to increasin
complex additional restrictions on our treatmentw$tomer information.

We are subject to intellectual property risksom time to time, third parties allege that we énaiolated their intellectual property rigt
In connection with WWE Network, if we are unabledbtain sufficient rights, successfully defend ase, or otherwise alter our busir
practices on a timely basis in response to claigainst us for infringement, misappropriation, mesws other violation of thirgharty
intellectual property rights, our business couldablgersely affected. Many companies are devotiggifitant resources to developing pat
that potentially affect aspects of streaming sewicFor example, there are numerous patents tloadlyr claim means and methods
conducting business on the Internet and we have bamed in lawsuits and other claims alleging thatviolated patents in connection v
various aspects of our business. We have not sednphtents relative to our technology. Defendingselwes against intellectual prope
claims, whether they are with or without merit, casult in costly litigation and diversion of pensel. It also may result in our inability to 1
technology as currently configured for our currbasiness and/or for WWE Network. As a result ofispdte, we may have to develop non
infringing technology, enter into royalty or licéng agreements, adjust our merchandising or mantjedictivities or take other actions
resolve the claims which may be costly or unavéélaim terms acceptable to us.

We intend to spend significant amounts on marketimguding promotional offerings, to attract, ré@teaand renew subscribers, but acc
to suitable marketing channels might not be avadall companies we plan to use to promote WWE Netwwgleve that we could negativ:
impact their business, decide that they want teresimilar businesses or wish to support our coitgret we may not be given access to :
marketing channels. We may decide not to use certairketing sources or activities if they are pem@ to be ineffective. If adequi
marketing channels are not available for any offtregoing reasons, or for any other reasons, bilityato attract new subscribers may
adversely affected.

We may be liable for fraudulent payment transacidtven when the associated financial institution apes the payment of fees
WWE Network subscribers, from time to time, frawhtl payment methods are used to obtain the seMdeedo not carry insurance for th
fraudulent transactions.

If we are not able to manage change and growth, business could be adversely affect¥de are expanding our operati
internationally and scaling our streaming servizenable anticipated growth in both members antlifea related to our service. As we exf
internationally, we will be subject to varying conser customs and practices, and to differing legal regulatory environments. If we are
able to manage this growing complexity, includimgproving, refining or revising our systems and aepienal practices, business may
adversely affected.

Our failure to maintain or renew key television ageements and other licenses could adversely affeatraability to distribute our
television programming or other of our goods and s®ices, which could adversely affect our operatingesults.

Our television programming is distributed by caldatellite and broadcast networks. Because a lpoggon of our revenues ¢
generated, directly and indirectly, from this dlstition of our programming, any failure to maintédsuch as due to a breach or alleged bi
by either party) or renew arrangements with digtobs and platforms, the failure of distributorsptatforms



13




Table of Contents

to continue to provide services to us or the failtar enter into new distribution opportunities emts favorable to us could adversely affec
financial outlook, liquidity, business and opergtiresults. We regularly engage in negotiationstirgjato substantial agreements covering
distribution of our television programming by cars located in the United States and abroad. Mreepadst several years we have expande
relationship with NBC Universal ("NBCU") and thewreently distribute the vast majority of our domegelevision programming throu
several of its cable networks. Many of our otheodmpand services, such as our toys, video gameband video offerings are manufactt
and sold by other parties under licenses of owlladtual property or distribution agreements. @ability for any of the reasons set fortt
these Risk Factors to maintain and/or renew thgseeaents on terms favorable to us could adverdédgt our financial outlook, liquidit
business and/or operating results.

Our failure to continue to build and maintain our brand of entertainment could adversely affect our oprating results.

We must continue to build and maintain our strorant identity to attract and retain fans who haveumber of entertainment choic
The creation, marketing and distribution of livedaelevised entertainment, including our WWE Netiwprogramming, that our fans value .
enjoy is at the core of our business. The prodoatiocompelling live and televised content is catito our ability to generate revenues ac
our media platforms and product outlets. Also int@atrare effective consumer communications, suchaketing, customer service and pu
relations. If our efforts to create compelling sees and goods and/or otherwise promote and maiotai brand, services and merchandis:
not successful, our ability to attract and retainsf may be adversely affected. Such a result witkéty lead to a decline in our televisi
ratings, attendance at our live events the numb&/\WE Network subscribers, or otherwise impact sales of goods and services, wl
would adversely affect our operating results.

Our failure to retain or continue to recruit key performers could lead to a decline in the appeal ofur storylines and the popularity
of our brand of entertainment, which could adversg} affect our operating results.

Our success depends, in large part, upon diityato recruit, train and retain athletic perfoens who have the physical presence, a
ability and charisma to portray characters in owe events and televised programming. We cannotagiiee that we will be able to continu
identify, train and retain these performers. Additlly, throughout our history performers from tineetime have stopped working for us
any number of reasons, and we cannot guarantegvéhaill be able to retain our current performeusidg the terms of their contracts or w
their contracts expire. Our failure to attract aethin key performers, an increase in the costsimed| to attract and retain such performers,
serious or untimely injury to, or the death of,umexpected or premature loss or retirement forraagon of, any of our key performers ct
lead to a decline in the appeal of our storylined the popularity of our brand of entertainmentjolihcould adversely affect our operal
results.

A decline in the popularity of our brand of sportsentertainment, including as a result of changes ithe social and political climate
could adversely affect our business.

Our operations are affected by consumer tastegargtainment trends, which are unpredictable aibjest to change and may be affecte
changes in the social and political climate. Ourgpamming is created to evoke a passionate resgmmeour fans. Changes in our fahsste
or a material change in the perceptions of ournass partners, including our distributors and kems, whether as a result of the socia
political climate or otherwise, could adverselyeatfour operating results.

The unexpected loss of the services of Vincent K. dahon could adversely affect our ability to createpopular characters anc
creative storylines or could otherwise adversely &fct our operating results.

In addition to serving as Chairman of our Boaf®irectors and Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Mclen leads the creative team that deve
the storylines and the characters for our televig®gramming and live events. Mr. McMahon, fromdito time, has also been an impor
member of our cast of performers. The loss of McMdhon due to unexpected retirement, disabilitatld®r other unexpected termination
any reason could have a material adverse effeciuombility to create popular characters and cveadtorylines or could otherwise adver:
affect our operating results.

Changes in the regulatory atmosphere and related prate sector initiatives could adversely affect outelevision business.

While the production of television programming independent producers is not directly reguldtgdhe federal or state governments ir
United States, the marketplace for television progning in the United States is affected signifibahy government regulations applicable
as well as social and political influences on,tsi®n stations, television networks and cable saigllite television systems and channels
voluntarily designate the suitability of each of ¢elevision shows using standard industry ratiragel all of our programming currently he
PG rating. Domestic and foreign governmental amdape-sector initiatives relating to the content of megiagramming are announced fr
time to time. Any failure by us to meet these goweental policies and privatector expectations could restrict our program exnan:



adversely affect our levels of viewership and opjegaresults.

14




Table of Contents

The markets in which we operate are intensely comfiéve, rapidly changing and increasingly fragmenteal, and we may not be abl
to compete effectively, especially against competits with greater financial resources or marketplacepresence, which could adverse
affect our operating results.

We face competition for our audiences from profasal and college sports, as well as from other $oofrlive and televised, streamed
filmed entertainment and other leisure activitiesa rapidly changing and increasingly fragmentedketplace. The manner in wh
audio/video content is distributed and viewed iastantly changing. Changes in technology requiren@my resources including person
capital and operating expenses. For instance l@aggien delivery moves to 4K technology, the Compaould face higher costs of deliver
its televised content. While we attempt to distti@baur content across all platforms, our failureontinue to do so effectively (including,
example only, our emphasizing a distribution platfahat in time lessens in importance or becomeslebe or our loss of, or other inability
procure, carriage on an important platform) coudeasely affect our operating results. If otherviders of entertainment video address
changes in consumer viewing habits in a mannerishagtter able to meet content distributor andsaomer needs and expectations, our bus
could be adversely affected. For the sale of omsamer products, we compete with entertainment emmg, professional and college sg
leagues and other makers of branded apparel antharetise. Many of the companies with whom we compate greater financial resout
than we do.

Our failure to compete effectively could resul@airsignificant loss of viewers, subscribers, vendesribution channels or performers
fewer entertainment and advertising dollars sperdur form of sports entertainment, any of whichldaadversely affect our operating results.

We face uncertainties associated with internaihal markets, which could adversely affect our opeting results and impair our
business strategy.

We are consistently negotiating and entering irgw icenses and renewals and extensions of exisyngements for our products .
services including television programming, in im&iional markets. In late 2014, we began the rollmfuWWE Network in internation
markets. Cultural norms and regulatory frameworkis/\in the markets in which we operate and our pctsl nonconformance to local noi
or applicable law, regulations or licensing reguiemts could affect our sales, viewership and ssctethe markets. Our production of |
events overseas subjects us to the risks involvédreign travel and local regulations, includimgulations requiring us to obtain visas for
performers. In addition, these live events andlitensing of our television and consumer produetsiternational markets expose us to s
degree of currency risk. International operatiorsg/rhe subject to political instability inherentuarying degrees in those markets. Other
relating to foreign operations include difficultiaad costs associated with staffing and managingign operations, management distrac
compliance with U.S. and international laws relgtia bribery, less favorable foreign intellectuebperty laws, foreign currency risks and Ii
relating to repatriation of funds, lower levelsinfernet availability and complexity of VAT and ethlocal tax laws as well as data protec
and other regulatory matters. These risks coulctiadly affect our operating results and impair alitity to pursue our business strategy
relates to international markets.

We may be prohibited from promoting and conductingour live events if we do not comply with applicableegulations, which coulc
lead to a decline in the various revenue streams igerated from our live events, which could adverselaffect our operating results.

In the United States and some foreign jurisoing, athletic commissions and other applicablellegry agencies require us to obtain lice
for promoters, medical clearances and/or other perar licenses for performers and/or permits feergs in order for us to promote :
conduct our live events. In the event that we failcomply with the regulations of a particular gdiction, we may be prohibited frc
promoting and conducting our live events in thatsgiction. The inability to present our live everdver an extended period of time or
number of jurisdictions could lead to a declinglie various revenue streams generated from ouelreats, which could adversely affect
operating results.

Because we depend upon our intellectual propsrtrights, our inability to protect those rights, or our infringement of others’
intellectual property rights, could adversely affe¢ our business.

Intellectual property is material to all aspecof our business. Our inability to protect ourgkuportfolio of trademarks, service ma
copyrighted material and characters, trade namdso#trer intellectual property rights from piracyuaterfeiting or other unauthorized
could negatively affect our business materially. ¥%pend substantial cost and effort in an attemphéaintain and protect our intellect
property and to maintain compliance vis-a-vis otharties’intellectual property. We have a large portfolio refjistered and unregiste
trademarks and service marks worldwide and maintaifarge catalog of copyrighted works, includingpydghts to our televisic
programming, music, photographs, books, magazindsagparel art. A principal focus of our effortstis protect the intellectual prope
relating to our originally created characters @oyréd by our performers, which encompasses imateselsses, names and other identif
indicia of these characters. We also own a largabmar of Internet website domain names and operagtwaork of developed, contehase!
sites, which facilitate and contribute to the
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exploitation of our intellectual property worldwid®ur failure to curtail piracy, infringement orher unauthorized use of our intellec
property rights effectively, or our infringementathers’intellectual property rights, could adversely affear relationships with the compar
that distribute our goods and services and/or atiseradversely affect our business, financial ctiowliand operating results.

While we generally own the intellectual property anr content, we generally do not own any intellattproperty relating to tl
distribution of this content. From time to timejrthparties allege that we have violated theirllatdual property rights. If we are unable
obtain sufficient rights, successfully defend osgeudevelop nomfringing technology or otherwise alter our busiseractices on a time
basis in response to claims against us for infrimgrgt, misappropriation, misuse or other violatiémhird-party intellectual property rights, ¢
business and competitive position may be adverafgcted. Many companies are devoting significasources to developing patents
could potentially affect many aspects of our busén& here are numerous patents that broadly claansand methods of conducting busi
on the Internet. We have not searched patentsuvelat our technology. Defending ourselves agaimsilectual property claims, whether ti
are with or without merit or are determined in éawor, results in costly litigation and diversiohtechnical and management personnel. It
may result in our inability to use our current arture technologies and could significantly impaat ability to market our services
merchandise our products. As a result of a dispwi,may have to develop namfringing technology, enter into royalty or licéng
agreements, adjust our merchandising or marketitigiées or take other actions to resolve theraki These actions, if required, may be c«
or unavailable on terms acceptable to us.

Our distribution mechanisms for our goods and sendes are increasingly complex across various distiithion platforms, various
geographical areas and timing windows.

Our inadvertent grant of inconsistent rights oegdltions of such inconsistent grants could resuttiaims of breach of our distributi
agreements or licenses and/or litigation which d@dversely impact our operations.

We could incur substantial liability in the event of accidents or injuries occurring during our physically demanding events.

We hold numerous live events each year. THieduale exposes our performers and our employeesanginvolved in the production
those events to the risk of travel and performaetated accidents, the consequences of which ariihpcovered by insurance. The phys
nature of our events exposes our performers taisfeof serious injury or death. Although our perfers, as independent contractors,
responsible for maintaining their own health, disgband life insurance, we selfisure medical costs for our performers for injgribat the
incur while performing. We also sealisure a substantial portion of any other liabititat we could incur relating to such injuries. lilay to us
resulting from any death or serious injury sustdibg one of our performers while performing, to eéxéent not covered by our insurance, ¢
adversely affect our business, financial conditod operating results. As noted below, we haventgcbeen named as a defendant in litige
claiming that professional wrestling as currenthg distorically performed by us has resulted im#igant injuries to our performers includii
but not limited to, chronic traumatic encephalopaih"CTE".

Our live events entail other risks inherent inpublic live events, which could lead to disruptiongo our business as well as liability t
other parties, any of which could adversely affecbur financial condition or results of operations.

We hold numerous live events each year, bothedtically and internationally. Certain risks arbdrent in large events of this type as we
the travel to and from them. Although we believe take appropriate safety and financial precautionsonnection with our events, poss
difficulties could occur including air and land @& interruption or accidents, the spread of ilésjuries resulting from building probler
pyrotechnics or other equipment malfunction, tasraror other violence, local labor strikes and otlierce majeure” type events. These is:
could result in canceled events and other disraptto our business for which we do not carry bussnieterruption insurance, or could resu
liability to other parties. Any of these risks cdaldversely affect our business, financial condiiad/or results of operations.

We continue to face certain risks relating to ar feature film business, which could result in hiper production costs and ass:
impairment charges, which could adversely affect aufinancial condition or our results of operations.

We have substantial capitalized film costs. &beounting for our film business in accordancéhwi¢nerally accepted accounting princi
entails significant judgment used to develop esisaf expected future revenues from films. If extpd revenue from one or more of our fi
does not materialize because audience demand ddes@et expectations, our estimated revenues méayacsufficient to recoup o
investment in the film. If actual revenues are lowean our estimated revenues or if costs are higfen expected, we may be require
record an impairment charge and write down thetakped costs of the film. No assurance can bergivat we will not record additior
impairment charges in future periods. In additiapitalized film costs are reflected net of cerainduction tax incentives granted by vari
governmental authorities. Our ability to realizegh credits may be limited by changes in the latiisi governing the incentives and/or
economic environment. The inability to realize #esedits would have the effect of increasing ouarall production costs.
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In addition to the risks noted above relating ® WWE Network, we could face a variety of risks ifwe expand into other new an
complementary businesses and/or make certain inveséents.

We have entered into new or complementary lessies and made investments in other companies past and plan to continue to do s
the future. Risks of expansion may include, amotigerorisks: potential diversion of managemsrattention and other resources, inclu
available cash, from our existing businesses; lcipated liabilities or contingencies; reduced @ due to increased amortizat
impairment charges and other costs; competitiomfther companies with more experience in suchnlegses; and possible additic
regulatory requirements and compliance costs wtaehd affect our business, financial condition aperating results.

We face various risks relating to our computeisystems and online operations, which could have agative impact on our financia
condition or our results of operations.

The Company faces the risk of a security breacisruption, whether through external cyberusion or from persons with acces:
systems inside our organization. Although the Camgpaakes significant efforts to maintain the segudf its computer systems, and
implemented various measures to manage the risksafcurity breach or disruption, there can be isorasce that these security efforts
measures will be effective or that attempted sécbrieaches or disruptions would not be successfdmaging or that the Company woulc
promptly aware of them. The Company and certairitothird party service providers receive person&rmation through web servic
including WWE Network. In many instances this imf@tion is subject to the Company's privacy policisrsonal information received by
service providers includes credit card informatinrcertain instances, most notably WWE Network &@/EShop, the Company's inter
retail operations. The Company expends signifiedfurt to ensure compliance with its privacy poliagd to ensure that our service provi
safeguard credit card information including contwwatly requiring those providers to remain compliavith applicable PCl Data Secul
Standards. However, a significant security breaclother disruption involving the Company's or itsecor more of its service providers’
computer systems could disrupt the proper funatigrof these systems and therefore the Companymitopes (for which we likely will nc
carry sufficient insurance); result in the unauthed access to, and destruction, loss, theft, misgpiation or release of propriete
confidential, sensitive or otherwise valuable imfi@ation; require significant management attentiod essources to remedy the damages
could result; and subject the Company to litigattordamage to its reputation. Any or all of thesald have a negative impact on our finar
condition or results of operations.

A decline in general economic conditions or digption of financial markets may, among other things, reduce the discretionary incom
of consumers or erode advertising markets, which etd adversely affect our business.

Our operations are affected by general econamiclitions, which affect consumenrdisposable income. The demand for entertainmer
leisure activities tends to be highly sensitivéht® level of consumerslisposable income. Declines in general economiditions could reduc
the level of discretionary income that our fans gdential fans have to spend on our live and tséal entertainment, including WV
Network, and consumer products, which could adWeraffect our revenues. Volatility and disruptiofi fmancial markets could limit o
clients’, licensees’ and distributorability to obtain adequate financing to maintaii@iions and result in a decrease in sales volhatecoul
have a negative impact on our business, financatlition and results of operations. Our televigiamtners derive revenues from the sa
advertising. We also sell advertising directly am website, on WWE Network and, depending upondistibution methods used to mone
additional content, we may have additional adviegigo sell. Softness in the advertising marketse tb a weak economic environmen
otherwise, could adversely affect our revenuesieffinancial viability of our distributors.

Our accounts receivable represent a significangortion of our current assets and relate principaly to a limited number of distributors
and licensees, increasing our exposure to bad delasd could potentially have a material adverse eff# on our results of operations.

A substantial portion of our accounts receieadnle from distributors of our Network, pay-pégw, television and home video programn
and licensees who produce consumer products corgadur intellectual property. The concentratioroaf accounts receivable across a lir
number of distributors subjects us to individuagdit risk with respect to such parties. These parthay become insolvent or dec
bankruptcy, rendering collection impossible. Certaif the parties are located overseas which canenwlections more difficult «
economically unfeasible. Additionally, adverse daje® in general economic conditions and/or contacin global credit markets cot
precipitate liquidity problems among our debtors;luding our key distributors and/or licensees.sTtwuld increase our exposure to lo
from bad debts and have a material adverse effeotiobusiness, financial condition and resultsperations.

Our ability to access our revolving credit fadity may be limited due to certain financial covenats and restrictions.

We have never borrowed under our revolving itfadility. We currently have access to funds unte facility, if needed, however duri
2015 this access may be unavailable due to cditaincial covenants unless an amendment is agneed. As a result, this credit facility m
need to be amended or may be terminated by the @mynmn which case we may or may not seek
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to replace it. No assurance can be given that amdment or suitable replacement will be availalbleamnomically viable. Whether or not
facility is available, and whether or not, if undahble, it is replaced, we believe we have suffitikquidity for our operating needs and payn
of our dividend for 2015. If we are incorrect insttassessment of our liquidity and are unable tainkadequate capital, our business, fina
condition, liquidity and operating results couldrhaterially adversely affected.

We could incur substantial liabilities if litigation is resolved unfavorably.

The Company has been named as a defendant in teatrlawsuits seeking class action status allegangong other things, violations
federal securities laws based on certain statenmrefating to the negotiation of WW&'domestic television license. The Company sty
disputes the merit of these lawsuits and intendsgorously defend itself against them. The advexseome and/or settlement of either of ti
lawsuits could result in significant expense to @@mpany, which could have a material adverse impamur business and/or our opera
results.

The Company has also been named as a defendamb iretent lawsuits seeking class action statugiatie among other things, tl
performers have received traumatic brain injuried may have CTE. The Company strongly disputesrtlit of this type of case and inte
to move to dismiss both lawsuits and, if not dised will oppose class certification . This typditiation is expected to be costly, and by
nature the outcome of litigation is difficult tosess and quantify. In this regard, due to the kimg periods claimed to be involved in th
cases, the Compargyinsurance coverage for them is unclear, and sorém is currently providing the Company defensstcolThe adver:
outcome and/or settlement of this litigation cordgult in significant expense to the Company, whichld have a material adverse impac
our business and/or our operating results.

In the ordinary course of business we beconhgestito various other complaints and litigationtr@es. The outcome of such litigatior
inherently difficult to assess and quantify, and tlefense against such claims or actions can kb @rsl time consuming for managem
Any adverse judgment in such other litigation diigaintly in excess of our insurance coverage caubdersely affect our financial condition
results of operations.

Failure to meet market expectations for our fimancial performance could adversely affect the markeprice and volatility of our stock.

We believe that the price of our stock gengnadflects high market expectations for our futaperating results. Any failure to meet or dt
in meeting these expectations, including as a reduhe failure of WWE Network to achieve expeitias or as a result of any of the of
events, conditions and/or circumstances set farthese Risk Factors could cause the market pfioarcstock to decline.

Through his beneficial ownership of a majorityof our Class B common stock, Mr. McMahon can exerse control over our affairs
and his interests may conflict with the holders obur Class A common stock.

We have Class A common stock and Class B constamk. The holders of Class A common stock gehlehalve rights identical to holde
of Class B common stock, except that holders o$€k common stock are entitled to one vote perestaard holders of Class B common s
are entitled to ten votes per share. Holders dif blatsses of common stock generally will vote thgets a single class on all matters pres:
to stockholders for their vote or approval, exapbtherwise required by applicable Delaware law.

A substantial majority of the issued and outdiag shares of Class B common stock is owned b@akyf by Vincent K. McMahon. Mi
McMahon controls a majority of the voting powertbé issued and outstanding shares of our commahk.sttirough his beneficial owners
of a substantial majority of our Class B commorcktdr. McMahon effectively can exercise controleowur affairs, and his interest co
conflict with the holders of our Class A commonctoThe voting power of Mr. McMahon through his awship of our Class B common st
could discourage or preclude others from initiagpagential mergers, takeovers or other change ofrabtransactions. As a result, the ma
price of our Class A common stock could decline.

The Company’s dividend distributions have in recent years reprsented a return of capital for tax purposes, and sdreholders as |
result will recognize an increased capital gain uppa subsequent sale of the Company’s Common Stock.

The Companys aggregate dividend distributions paid in 2014 2083 were in excess of its current and accumulkededings and profi
calculated under applicable Internal Revenue CHI&RC() provisions. Under the IRC, distributions @xcess of both the Compasyturrer
earnings and profits and the Company’s accumulkadedings and profits constitute a return of caitad reduce the stockholde@djusted te
basis in its Common Stock. If a stockholdegdjusted basis in its Common Stock is reduceteto, these excess distributions there
constitute a capital gain to the stockholder.
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Our dividend is significant and is affected by a nmber of factors.

Our Board of Directors regularly evaluates the Canys Common Stock dividend policy and determines ikiglend rate each quart
The level of dividends, if any, will continue to lx&#luenced by many factors, including, among ottiengs, our liquidity and historical a
projected cash flow, our strategic plan (includaiigrnative uses of capital), our financial resaltsl condition, contractual and legal restrict
on the payment of dividends (including under owoleing credit facility), general economic and caetifive conditions and such other fac
as our Board of Directors may consider relevannftone to time. All of these factors are subjecthe various contingences listed in the ¢
risk factors included in this Form 1-We cannot assure our stockholders that dividemtise paid in the future, or that, if paid, dikdnd:
will be at the same amount or with the same frequers in the past. Any reduction in our dividengmants could have a negative effec
our stock price.

A substantial number of shares are eligible for sal by Mr. McMahon and members of his family or truss established for thei
benefit, and the sale of those shares could loweunrstock price.

All of the issued and outstanding shares of ClagoBmon stock are held by Vincent McMahon and othembers of the McMah
family and trusts set up for these family memb&aes of substantial amounts of these sharesgeopdlteption that such sales could o«
may lower the prevailing market price of our Cldssommon stock. If any sales or transfers of CB&®mmon stock were to occur to pers
outside of the McMahon family, the shares wouldadtically convert into Class A common stock.

Our Class A common stock is volatile and has a rei@ely small public "float.”

The price at which our common stock has tradedfloatuated significantly, especially in the pasegeThe price may continue to
volatile due to a number of factors beyond ourdaimntrol, including our number of WWE network sahbers, operating results (especi
where different from the expectations of securi@mlysts, investors and the financial communityarket volatility in general and sh
interest in our stock. Given the dynamic naturewfbusiness and all other factors that indirelatyt the predictability of the future, any of ¢
forecasts may differ materially from actual reswitsich could cause a decline in the trading priceus common stock.

Historically, as a result of our relatively dimaublic float, our Class A common stock has béess liquid than the common stock
companies with broader public ownership, and tadimg prices for our Class A common stock have beere volatile than generally may
the case for more widelyeld common stock. Among other things, trading oélatively small volume of our Class A common &totay hav
a greater impact on the trading price of our Clasemmon stock than would be the case if our pulidiat were larger.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

None.
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Item 2. Properties

We have executive offices, television and musiorming studios, pogtroduction operations and warehouses at locationgr inea
Stamford, Connecticut. We also have sales officddew York, Orlando, Atlanta and Chicago and hanternational offices in London, Toky
Shanghai, Mumbai, Munich, Mexico, Singapore, and&uWe own two of the buildings in which our extiee and administrative offices, ¢
television and music recording studios and our pctidn operations are located. We lease spaceufosales offices, WWE Studios office
other facilities.

Our principal properties consist of the following:

Facility Location Square Feet Owned/Leased Expiration Date of Lease

Corporate offices Stamford, CT 114,30( Owned —

Warehouse space Norwalk, CT 121,50( Leased January 2020

Production facility Stamford, CT 90,00( Owned —

Corporate offices and production Various through Septemb
facilities Stamford, CT 41,40( Leased 2016

Training Facility Orlando, FL 39,00( Leased November 2017

Various through October

Sales offices Various 27,90( Leased 2022

WWE Studios office Los Angeles, CA 11,10( Leased April 2020

Warehouse space Stamford, CT 5,60( Leased May 2015

Studio space Stamford, CT 2,50( Leased July 2015

All of the facilities listed above are utilized wur Media Division, in Live Events and in our Conser Products Division, with tl
exception of the WWE Studios office in Los Angelehich focuses on our WWE Studios segment.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding

On July 26, 2014, the Company received notice lafwsuit filed in the United States District Couet the District of Connecticut, entitl
Warren Ganues and Dominic Varriale, on behalf efrikelves and all others similarly situated, v. \WaHrestling Entertainment, Inc., Vinci
K. McMahon and George A. Barrigsalleging violations of federal securities lawséa on certain statements relating to the negotiadi
WWE's domestic television license. The complaint semk$ain unspecified damages. A nearly identiaalsuit was filed one month la
entitledCurtis Swanson, on behalf of himself and all otls#nsilarly situated, v. World Wrestling Entertainniglnc., Vincent K. McMahon ai
George A. Barrios Both lawsuits are purported securities classoastsubject to the Private Securities Litigatioafdtm Act of 199
(“PSLRA"). On September 224, five putative plaintiffs filed motions to bepnted lead plaintiff and to consolidate the tvases pursua
to the PSLRA. Following a hearing on October 2814 the Court issued an order dated November B} afpointing Mohsin Ansari as Le
Plaintiff and consolidating the two actions. Omuary 5, 2015, the Lead Plaintiff filed an amenaednplaint. Among other things, 1
amended complaint adds Stephanie McMahon Levesggidviichelle D. Wilson as named defendanté/hile these lawsuits are in the e:
stages, the Company believes the claims are witlheuit and intends to vigorously defend itself agathem.

On October 23, 2014, a purported class action lawsas filed in the United States District Court fine District of Oregon, entitl
William Albert Haynes lll, on behalf of himself amdhers similarly situated, v. World Wrestling Eménment, Inc.and on January 16, 201
purported class action lawsuit was filed in thetediStates District Court for the Eastern DistotPennsylvania, entitleHvan Singleton ar
Vito LoGrasso, individually and on behalf of allhers similarly situated, v. World Wrestling Enténment, Inc., both alleging that tt
Company ignored, downplayed, and/or failed to diselthe risks associated with traumatic brain iegusuffered by WWE' performers
These suits both seek unspecified actual, compamysahd punitive damages and injunctive reliefJuding ordering medical monitoring. T
Company believes the claims are without merit amends to vigorously defend itself against them.
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In addition to the foregoing, we are involved ives&l other suits and claims that we consider tmtike ordinary course of our business. B
nature, the outcome of litigation is not known thé Company does not currently expect its pendtigation to have a material adverse ef
on our financial condition, results of operatiomdiguidity. We may from time to time become a pau other legal proceedings.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosure

Not Applicable
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrar's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters argslier Purchases of Equity Securities
Our Class A common stock trades on the New YorklSExchange, under the symbol "WWE".

The following table sets forth the high ané thw sale prices per share of our Class A comniocksas reported by the New York St
Exchange and the dividends declared per shareast@ and Class B common stock for the periodsatdd:

Fiscal Year 2014

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31 Full Year
Class A common stock price per share:
High $ 319t % 30.3¢ % 158t $ 14.6¢ $ 31.9¢
Low $ 1531 $ 1058 % 11.4C $ 10.7¢ $ 10.5¢
Class A dividends declared per share $ 0.1z $ 0.1z $ 0.1z $ 01z $ 0.4¢
Class B dividends declared per share $ 0.1z $ 0.1z $ 01z $ 0.1z $ 0.4¢

Fiscal Year 2013

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30  December 31 Full Year
Class A common stock price per share:
High $ 8.9C $ 103 % 11.3: % 16.9¢ % 16.9¢
Low $ 791 $ 85¢ $ 9.6z $ 10.1t 7.91
Class A dividends declared per share $ 0.1z $ 0.1z $ 0.1z $ 0.1z $ 0.4¢
Class B dividends declared per share $ 01z $ 01z $ 01z $ 01z $ 0.4¢

There were 8,069 holders of record of Class A comstock and five holders of record of Class B comratock on February 13, 2015
Vincent K. McMahon, Chairman of the Board of Dierst and Chief Executive Officer, controls a subsghmajority of the voting power
the issued and outstanding shares of our commaoR,siad as a result can effectively exercise cootrer our affairs.

Our Class B common stock is fully convertible ifttass A common stock, on a one for one basis, yatiare at the option of the hold
The two classes are entitled to equal per shaidatids and distributions and vote together as ssalath each share of Class B entitled tc
votes and each share of Class A entitled to one, wsicept when separate class voting is requiregbplicable law. If, at any time, any she
of Class B common stock are beneficially owned by person other than Vincent McMahon, Linda McMahany descendant of either
them, any entity which is wholly owned and is colied by any combination of such persons or ansttrall the beneficiaries of which are |
combination of such persons, each of those shatesutomatically convert into shares of Class Argoon stock.

Our Board of Directors regularly evaluates the Canmys Common Stock dividend policy and determines thi&end rate each quart
The level of dividends will continue to be influettby many factors, including, among other thirmgs, liquidity and historical and project
cash flow, our strategic plan (including alternativses of capital), our financial results and ctiowlj contractual and legal restrictions on
payment of dividends (including under our revolvirgdit facility), general economic and competitoanditions and such other factors as
Board of Directors may consider relevant from timéime. We cannot assure our stockholders thatieinds will be paid in the future, or tt
if paid, dividends will be at the same amount ottvthe same frequency as in the past. Any redudtiarur dividend payments could hav
negative effect on our stock price.

In September 2011, the Company entered into a #lidn senior unsecured revolving credit facilighich was amended and restate
April 2013, and further amended on May 1, 2014€'@redit Facility"). The Company has never had laoyowings
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under the Credit Facility and as of December 3142@e are in compliance with the provisions of @redit Facility and are not restricted fr
paying dividends to our stockholders. The Credilfg restricts our ability to pay dividends ifdefault or event of default has occurred a1
continuing thereunder. During 2015, we may be umabimeet certain of the Credit Facility's covesaint which case we would need to ge
appropriate waiver or amendment or terminate thiitiaentirely so that there would be no defaultevent of default. If terminated, we may
may not seek to replace the revolving credit facilNo assurance can be given that an amendmenswoitable replacement will be availabli
economically viable. Whether or not the facilityasailable, and whether or not, if unavailableisireplaced, we believe we have suffic
liquidity for our operating needs and payment of dividend for 2015.

Cumulative Total Return Chart

Set forth below is a line graph comparing, for gfegiod commencing December 31, 2009 and ended Omwedi, 2014, the cumulati
total return on our Class A common stock compaoetié cumulative total return of the Russell 200@ex and S&P Movies and Entertainn
Index, a published industry index. The graph assuthe investment of $100 at the close of tradingfadecember 31, 2009 in our Clas
common stock, the Russell 2000 Index and the S&Ridoand Entertainment Index and the reinvestmiall dividends.

Total Return Performance
—&@— World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. —Jll— Russell 2000
—k— S&P Movies & Entertamment
350
3040
250
2}
150
104
50
0 T T T J T T
12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11 12/31/12 12/31/13 12/31/14
Period Ending
Index 12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11 12/31/12 12/31/13 12/31/14
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. 100.0( 101.8: 71.2% 63.8¢ 140.5¢ 108.1:
Russell 2000 100.0( 126.8¢ 121.5¢ 141.4: 196.3¢ 205.9¢
S&P Movies & Entertainment 100.0¢ 116.7¢ 129.9¢ 175.01 272.2¢ 320.7¢
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Item 6. Selected Financial Dat

The following selected consolidated financial dadés been derived from our consolidated financitestents. You should read the sele
financial data in conjunction with our consolidatitancial statements and related notes and thernrdtion set forth under “Management’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &ebsults of Operations” contained elsewhere inréyiort.

Financial Highlights: (in millions, except per share data)

For the year ended December 31,
2014 (1) 2013(2) 2012 (3) 2011 (4) 2010

Net revenues $ 542¢ $ 508.C $ 484.( $ 483.¢ $ 477.
Operating (loss) income $ (422 % 52 $% 43z $ 37.C $ 82.2
Net (loss) income $ (30.0) $ 28 % 314 $ 24¢ $ 53.t
(Loss) Earnings per share, basic $ (040 $ 0.0¢ $ 04z $ 03¢ ¢ 0.7z
(Loss) Earnings per share, diluted $ (040 $ 0.04 % 04z $ 03: $ 0.71
Dividends declared per Class A share $ 0.4¢ % 0.4¢ % 04¢ $ 0.7z $ 1.44
Dividends declared per Class B share $ 0.4¢ $ 0.4¢ $ 04¢ $ 06C $ 0.9¢
As of December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments $ 115<« $ 109.« $ 152« $ 155.6 $ 166.¢
Total assets $ 382¢ $ 378t $ 381<. $ 378¢€ $ 4157
Total debt $ 25.¢ % 29.6 $ — 3 1€ $ 2.8
Total stockholders’ equity $ 205¢ $ 265¢ $ 2947 $ 29571 $ 316.]

(1) Operating income includes impairment charges onfeature films of $1.5 million (See Note 7 to therSolidated Financial Statements) and
million in restructuring charges of which $2.4 naifi relates to severance and other costs and $lli8mrelates to the impairment of gamificat
assets and is included in depreciation and amtdizaxpense. Operating income also includes a ®ill®n adjustment to reduce the carrying vi
of the old corporate aircraft to its estimated faitue and is included in depreciation expense.ibfgime includes a $4.0 million impairment of
equity investment and is included in other expense.

(2) Operating income includes impairment charges orfeature films of $11.7 million (See Note 7 to tBensolidated Financial Statements) and $
million associated with our emerging content arstrifiution efforts, including WWE Network, partiglbffset by the positive impact of $3.4 milli
resulting from the transition of our video gametoew licensee.

(3) Operating income includes $8.2 million of costsuimed associated with our emerging content andilligion efforts, including WWE Networ
offset by the impact of a $4.4 million tax beneéitating to previously unrecognized tax benefits.

(4) Operating income includes impairment charges onfeature films of $23.4 million and $4.0 millionsaxiated with our emerging content
distribution efforts, including WWE Network. Resauffor 2011 do not include amounts for managemegdritive compensation since the Comg
did not meet performance targets.
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Item 7. Managemer's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionna Results of Operations

You should read the following discussion in congimt with the audited consolidated financial states and related notes inclu
elsewhere in this report.

Background

The following analysis outlines all material actie#s contained within each of our reportable segmen

Media Division:
Network

* Revenues consist principally of subscriptions WONVE Network, fees for viewing our pay-per-view amitleo-ondeman
programming, and advertising fees.

Television
* Revenues consist principally of television rigfges and advertising.

Home Entertainment

* Revenues consist principally of sales of WWEdpimed content via home entertainment platformsludicg DVD, BluRay
subscription and transactional on-demand outlets.

Digital Media
* Revenues consist principally of advertising salesoorr websites and third party websites includinguYube, sales of vario

broadband and mobile content and magazine pubgjsiiime Company discontinued the magazine publishirginess in August 2014.

Live Events
* Revenues consist principally of ticket sales tadel packages for live events.

Consumer Products Division:

Licensing

* Revenues consist principally of royalties or lieerfees related to various WWE themed products ssckideo games, toys ¢
apparel.

Venue Merchandise
* Revenues consist of sales of merchandise afvaieVents.
WWEShop

» Revenues consist of sales of merchandise on ebsite through our WWEShop internet storefront.

WWE Studios
*  Revenues consist of amounts earned from the timgei® producing and/or distributing of filmed entainment.

Corporate & Other

* Revenues consist of amounts earned from talentaappees. Expenses include corporate overhead aadhoexpenses related to se
and marketing, including our international officasd talent development functions.

In our prior reports filed with the Securities Eaclge Commission ("SEC") through fiscal year 2018, pvesented five reporta
segments: Live and Televised Entertainment, Consiraducts, Digital Media, WWE Studios and UnalkechCorporate and Other. Effect
January 1, 2014, we now present ten reportable setsminformation presented for the twelve monthdee December 31, 2013 and 2
included in the audited consolidated financialestatnts herein and elsewhere in this Annual Re@srtieen recast to reflect our new seg
presentation. See Note 18egment Informationfor further details on our reportable segments.hStevisions have no impact on
consolidated financial condition, results of opienas or cash flows for the periods presented.
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Results of Operations

The Company presents OIBDA as the primary meastismegment profit (loss). The Company believes thesgntation of OIBDA
relevant and useful for investors because it allmwestors to view our segment performance in #mesmanner as the primary method use
management to evaluate segment performance and dwdigions about allocating resources. The Compmhafjnes OIBDA as operatil
income before depreciation and amortization, exolyideature film and television production assebdimation and impairments, as well as
amortization of costs related to content delivergl technology utilized for our WWE Network.

OIBDA is a non-GAAP financial measure and may b#edént than similarly-titted no®GAAP financial measures used by o
companies. A limitation of OIBDA is that it exclusidepreciation and amortization, which represdwgeriodic charge for certain fixed as
and intangible assets used in generating revermesuf business. OIBDA should not be regarded aslt@nnative to operating income or
income as an indicator of operating performanceioahe statement of cash flows as a measure oidlig,, nor should it be considered
isolation or as a substitute for financial measymepared in accordance with GAAP. We believe tirating income is the most diret
comparable GAAP financial measure to OIBDA. SeeeNidd,Segment Informatiom the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statesrien
a reconciliation of OIBDA to operating income ftwetperiods presented.

We do not allocate certain costs included in OIBBfAour Corporate and Other segment to the othesrtable segments. Corporate
Other expense primarily includes corporate overlaaticertain expenses related to sales and magkéitiuding our international offices, ¢
talent development functions, including costs asded with our WWE Performance Center. These dostefit the Company as a whole
are therefore not allocated. Revenues from traimgecbetween our operating segments are not miateria
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Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2014 compared to Year Erdecember 31, 2013
(dollars in millions)

Summary

Media Division $ 339.¢ $ 302.7 12%

Consumer Products Division 78.1 78.F

w
o
N
«©

Corporate & Other

~
(63]
N

Media Division 98.4

w
N
Ny

Consumer Products Division 41.2

Corporate & Other (151.9 (127.9)

OIBDA as a percentage of revenues 3% 6%

Depreciation and amortization 26.7 24t 9%

Loss on equity investment 4.0 (200)%

(Loss) income before income taxes (49.9) 4.¢€ (1,172)%

Net (loss) income $ (30.) % 2.8 (1,179%

Our Media division revenues increased 18fiven by the impact of the launch of our WWE Netlwand increased revenue associ
with certain key television distribution agreemer@air Live Events segment revenues declined byd2#to decreased stadium capacity
ticket prices awWrestleManiadue to the venue location and the staging of eldgwmr international events. Our Consumer Proddiision
experienced a 1%lecline in revenues, primarily driven by lower hsing revenues from our video games. Our WWE Studiegmel
increased slightly by $0.1 million.

The comparability of our results for 2014 were itea by $4.2 milliorin restructuring charges of which $2.4 million tel&to severan
and other costs and is included in Corporate arniOExpense with $0.3 million included in our DajiMedia Segment, an$i1.8 millior
relates to the impairment of gamification assetsianncluded in Depreciation and amortization exgee The current year results also inclu
$4.0 million impairment of an equity investment whhiis included in Loss on equity investments argl® million adjustment to reduce
carrying value of the old corporate aircraft togtimated fair value, included in Depreciation anabrtization expense. Lastly, our results
2014 were impacted by $1.5 milliaf impairment charges related to our film portfolino 2013, our results were impacted by $11.7 onllof
impairment charges related to our film portfolialaan approximate $3.4 million positive impact frtime transition of our video game busir
to a new licensee.




Media Division

The following tables present the performance redoit our segments within our Media division (dmdlan millions, except where noted):

increase
RevenuesMedia Division 2014 2013 (decrease)
Network $ 115.C % 86.2 33%

©

45.2

&

82.F (45)%

Pay-per-view

b

9 N/A

f
©
({a]

Domestic 772,00( N/A

© 567,00( N/A

Number of buys from pay-per-view events 2,292,00( 3,838,00(

—~
N
<
>

:

Pay-per-view domestic retail price, excludWgestleMania(dollars) $ 4498 % 44.9¢

X

Television $ 176.7  $ 163.¢ 8

Gross units shipped 2,674,401 3,987,201 (33)%

Total $ 339.¢ % 302.5 12 %

Television Ratings

Average weekly household ratings $snackDown 2.3 2.2 5%

Average weekly household ratings Tatal Divas (E!) 1.3 14 (N%
increase
OIBDA -Media Division 2014 2013 (decrease)
Network $ 1.8 $ 27.¢ (106)%

Home Entertainment 15.C 8.8 70 %

Total $ 754 $ 98.¢ (23%

(a) This service was discontinued in January 2014.

(b) This is our pricing for our domestic subscribat December 31, 2014. In certain internatioraitégies, subscribers can access the network hgroheans
and/or subscription pricing may vary.

(c) Average subscribers shown for 2014 represenatierage level of subscribers for the year end=zeidber 31, 2014 althoug#WE Networlkdid not launc
in the U.S. until February 24, 2014.
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Network revenues, which include revenues genelafeWE Network, pay-per-view and video-on-demamdyeéased by $28.7 millioin
2014 as compared to 2013. WWE Network is a 24&asting network that provides access to live anddulled programming, including all
of WWE'’s live pay-per-view events, as well as ascas its comprehensive video-olemand library. WWE Network, which launched
February 24, 2014, accounted for $69.5 miliiomew digital subscription revenues in the curnggdr with approximately 567,000 average
subscribers for the year ended December 31, 2@i#ing the year ended December 31, 20JMWE Network had approximately 1,490,(
gross additions to its subscriber base, offsethyre of 674,000 subscriber& ross additions include unique new subscribers aimdback:
(subscribers that previously churned out and suesgty renewed their subscription). The subscrippioicing at December 31, 2014 to W'
Network is $9.99 per month with a one month comraitinperiod. The¢$69.5 million of revenues generated by WWE Network in the cu
year was partially offset by the decline in -per-view revenue of $37.3 million due primarily &40% decline in total pay-pgrew buy:
primarily attributable to WWE Network's launch. Atldnally, the average revenue per buy decline®#yto approximately $19.5%er buy
due to a higher portion of pay-per-view buys comiran international markets in which have lowereetfve pricing. In addition, video-on-
demand revenues decreased by $3.5 millioae to the cessation of our Classics On Demandindféen January 2014 in anticipation of
launch of WWE Network in February. Total NetworkBDA as a percentage of revenues decreased tesafd2% in 2014 as compared 1
profit of 32% in 2013 driven mainly by the costs@sated with the launch and ongoing support of \WMWE Network. In support of WW
Network, we incurred $14 million in additional pragnming and production costs. Additionally, adwniy and promotion expense incre:
$16 million in support of WWE Network's launch asuhscriber acquisition efforts and we spent appnaiely $13 million in customer serv
costs associated with WWE Network.

Television revenues, which include revenues geedritom television rights fees and advertisingréased by $13.3 milliom 2014 a
compared to 2013. Television rights fees in thgesu year include approximately $8.0 million irciemental revenue associated with
execution of certain key television distributiorregments, many of which were entered into in tier laalf of the year. Rights fees were .
positively impacted by the production and licensiignew programs, most notablytal Divas,which commenced in late 2013. The televi:
OIBDA as a percentage of revenues was essentiatlinfthe periods at approximately 35%.

Home entertainment revenues, which include revegaasrated from the sale of WWE produced contenheime entertainment platfor
such as DVD and Blu-Ray discs and digital downlo@utseased by $ 3.0 millioim 2014 as compared to 2013. This increase wasndo@t tc
the recognition of $4.6 million in minimum guaraesereceived from our home video distributor. Thiwréase was offset by a decrease in |
and Blu-Ray revenue which fell by $1.7 million, dieea 33% decline in shipments to 2.7 millianits. Home entertainment OIBDA a
percentage of revenues increased to 55% in 2014ae@d to 36% in 2013 driven by the recognition @iimum guarantees and the lacl
associated variable costs.

Digital media revenues, which include revenues gerd from WWE.com and from our magazine publistinginess, decreased by $
million in 2014 as compared to 2013. WWE.com rewendecreased by $ 4.8 millionthe current year compared to the prior yeartduewel
advertising across various platforms as well aselomonetization of the Company's pay-p@w webcasts via WWE.com as these e\
became available on WWE Network. Publishing revendecreased by $ 3.0 millioprimarily due to decreased sell rates and
discontinuation of our print WWE magazine businiesthe third quarter of 2014. Digital media OIBDA a percentage of revenues decre
to 1% in 2014 from 20% in 2013 driven by the deelin digital advertising and pay-peiew buy revenue, the discontinuation of our pubiig
business and a relatively fixed cost structure.
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Live Events

The following tables present the performance resauid key drivers for our Live Events segment éslin millions, except where noted):

Live events $ 108.c $ 111k

International $ 267 % 30.1

Number of North American events 264 25€ 3%

Average North American ticket price (dollars) $ 488t % 48.6: —%

Average international attendance 6,20( 5,90( 5%

Travel packages 2.2 1.€ 38%

Live events $ 27.C % 30.1 (10)%

Total $ 276 $ 30.¢ (10%

Live events revenues, which include revenues fiioket sales and travel packages, decreased byn$llign in 2014 as compared to 20
Revenues from our North America live events businesreased by $0.4 millionprimarily due to the staging of eight additioeaknts in th
current year which more than offset the declineeienue associated withirestleMania 3Qhis year, which experienced decreased atten
as a result of stadium capacity and configuratissués. Overall total average attendance and aveieige prices remained flat. C
international live events business decreased $8liém primarily driven by eleven fewer events felvhich was offset, in part, by an incre
in average ticket prices and to a lesser extentageeattendance in the current year as comparétktprior year. Live events OIBDA a:
percentage of revenues decreased to 25% in 201gatenhto 27% in 2013 driven primarily by higher éoype related expenses.
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Consumer Products Division

The following tables present the performance resamitd key drivers for our Consumer Products dimig@ollars in millions, except whe

Licensing $ 386 % 43.€ (11)%

Domestic per capita spending (dollars) 958 $ 10.2¢

$ 48.1(

Average WWEShop revenues per order (dollars) $ 47.4¢

Licensing

WWEShop 3.8 2.4 46 %

OIBDA as a percentage of revenues 41% 52%

Licensing revenues decreased by $5.0 miliior2014 as compared to 2013. In the current yemreased video game receipts of !
million were offset by the absence of a one timedfi¢ associated with the termination of our prexseideo game license recorded in 2013
lower toy royalties in the current year comparedptior year. Licensing OIBDA as a percentage oferames decreased in 2014 to ¢
compared to 72% in 2013. The OIBDA margin in thopyear reflected a positive benefit associateth e recognition of the advar
received from THQ.

Venue merchandise revenues decreased by $0.1 milid2014 as compared to 2013 primarily due to a d8éline in per capi
merchandise spend at our domestic events to $8.%®& current year. The venue merchandise OIBDA percentage of revenues increas:
40% in 2014 from 39% in 2013 driven by product mix.

WWEShop revenues increased by $4.7 millior2014 compared to 2013, based on a 33% increaieeivolume of online merchanc
sales to approximately 426,000 orders. Orders @z primarily due to mobile shop optimization ardistribution strategy in the UK utilizil
Amazon UK. The average revenue per order decred®edo $47.46in the current year. WWEShop OIBDA as a percentaigesvenue
increased to 17% in 2014 as compared to 15% in.2013
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WWE Studios

The following table provides detailed informatiom aur WWE Studios’ segment (dollars in millions):

Feature
Film
Production For the Year Ended December 31,
Release  Production A(S)?g:;ngi 85 Inception to-date Revenue OIBDA
Title Date Costs* 2014 Revenue  OIBDA 2014 2013 2014 2013

N
o
H
N

Queens of the Ring Nov. 2014 N/A N/A

[
o
[
o
|
|
|

Leprechaun: Origins Aug. 2014 N/A — N/A

Oculus Apr. 2014

w
o
[
~lI
|
~—
=
D)
|

N/A (1.9 N/A

N -
«“

o’ -
o)

N

_

|

N

_

|

|

|

Christmas Bounty Nov. 2013 3.7 0.1 4.1 0.t — 41 $ (0.3 0.€

No One Lives May 2013 2.2 0.1 1.C (1.0 0.1 0.¢ (0.2 (0.9

Dead Man Down Mar. 2013 5.8 1.C — (4.9 — — — (4.7)

15.¢ 3.2 11.€ (0.9 6.5 5.4 4.3 (4.6

Prior Releases 116.2 2.6 104.( (30.9 2.2 5.4 1.C (4.6

Completed but not released 3.€ 3.€ — — — — — —

In development 0.t 0.t — (4.9 — — (0.9) —

Selling, General &
Administrative
Expenses (4.5 (3.5

* Production costs are presented net of the assackenefit of production incentives.

During 2014, we released one feature film via thea distribution,Oculus, and five films direct to DVDScooby Doo! WrestleMar
Mystery, Leprechaun: Origin, See No Evil 2, Queens of the Ramy Jingle All the Way 2The Company entered into an agreement to C
distribute the feature filnlRoad to Paloma This film was released via a limited theatrioglease and on DVD in July 2014. During 2013
released three feature films via theatrical distitn, No One Lives Dead Man DowrandThe Call,two films, 12 Rounds 2: Reloadethd The
Marine 3: Homefrondirect to DVD and one made-for-television movi#ristmas Bounty

32




Table of Contents

Third-party distributors control the distributioncdamarketing of calistributed films, and as a result, we recognizemnee on a net ba
after the thirdparty distributor recoups distribution fees and enges and results are reported to us. Results/piealty reported to us
quarters subsequent to the initial release of tfikss.

WWE Studios revenues increased $0.1 million in 2884ompared to 2013. The increase in revenuevisrdby the timing of our filr
releases. In the current year, we recognized $8l®min revenue from our filmThe Call,which was released in 2013. WWE Studios OIE
increased $13.2 million in 2014 as compared to 20L& in part to the profitability dfhe Calland reduced impairment chargéghe Compan
recorded $1.5 of impairment charges in 2014 as enetpto $11.7 million recorded in 2013.

At December 31, 2014, the Company had $26.5 milfloet of accumulated amortization and impairmentrges) of feature filr
production assets capitalized on its Consolidatathie Sheet of which $12.1 million is for filmsriglease, $10.0 millioris for films in
production and the remaining $4.4 million is fdnfs that are completed, pending release, or dewedofal projects. We review and re\
estimates of ultimate revenue and participatiortscas the end of each reporting quarter to reffleketmost current information available
estimates for a film’s ultimate revenue are reviaad indicate a significant decline in a figrprofitability or if events or circumstances che
that would indicate we should assess whether thedhie of a film is less than its unamortizearfitosts, we calculate the film's estimated
value using a discounted cash flows model. Iffaiue is less than unamortized cost, the film aissetitten down to fair value.

Revenues Corporate & Other increase
(dollars in millions ) 2014 2013 (decrease)
Other $ 3C $ 2.€ 3%

Other revenues include revenues associated wehttappearances and were consistent in both pgriedsnted.

OIBDA - Corporate & Other increase
(dollars in millions ) 2014 2013 (decrease)
Corporate & Other $ (151.9) $ (127.9) 19%

Corporate & Other Expenses

The following table presents the amounts and péd®ange of certain significant corporate and othgrenses (dollars in millions):

increase
2014 2013 (decrease)
Staff related $ 53¢ % 48.¢ 11%
Management incentive compensation 12.4 7.C 77%
Legal, accounting and other professional 22.: 15.7% 42 %
Travel and entertainment expenses 6.1 5.1 20 %
Advertising, marketing and promotion 9.8 8.4 13%
Corporate insurance 3.7 4.C (8)%
Bad debt expense 1.2 — 10C %
All other 45.: 41.¢€ 9%
Total corporate & other expenses $ 154, $ 130.2 19 %

Corporate & Other as a percentage of net revenues 28% 26%

Corporate and other expenses primarily include @aie overhead and certain expenses related tgabes and marketing, including
international offices, and talent development fiord, including costs associated with our WWE Penence Center. These costs benefi
Company as a whole and are therefore not allodatedlividual businesses. Corporate and other esgemcreased by $24.2 million or 1986
2014 compared to 2013. This is primarily due toéases in professional fees of $6.6 milliefated to strategic initiatives, talent developt
and international expansion, management incentorapensation of $5.4 milliomeflecting amounts expected to be paid based o
Company's operating performance, and staff relatquenses of $ 5.5 millioprimarily to support talent development and otheatsgic
objectives. Staff related expenses in the curreat jnclude $2.0 million in severance associatel murr restructuring plan.
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Depreciation and Amortization
(dollars in millions)

increase
2014 2013 (decrease)
Depreciation and amortization $ 26.71 $ 24.F 9%

Depreciation expense in the current year includbsreefit of $1.5 million from the recognition of @mfrastructure tax credit. This cre
was used to reduce the carrying value of the assetds their inservice date and consequently the adjustment teediggion expense refles
the revised amount incurred to date. This credis weceived in the current year but related to aspktced in service in prior yee
Additionally, the current year balance includesaaljustment of $1.6 million to reduce the carryirajue of our old corporate aircraft to
estimated fair value and an impairment charge o8 $iillion related to a change in business strateggted to our gamification platfor
Overall, depreciation expense in the current yeas higher due to depreciation expense relatedet@€ttmpany's recent investment in prog
and equipment to support our emerging contentibligton efforts, including our WWE Network.

Investment Income, Interest Expense and Other Expese, Net
(dollars in millions)

increase
2014 2013 (decrease)
Loss on equity investment $ 4.0 $ — (100)%
Investment income, interest expense and other egpaet $ 3.1 % (1.9 13€%

Due to a change in our ownership interest in a sethod investment, we recorded an impairment eéhaf@4.0 million in 2014, for tt
excess of the carrying value over its estimatedviaiue. Investment income, interest and other espenet yielded an expense$3i1 millior
in 2014 as compared to $1.3 million2013. The increase in net expense primarilyteel#o translation losses incurred in the curremtogl as
result of fluctuations in foreign currency exchamgtes.

Income Taxes
(dollars in millions)

increase
2014 2013 (decrease)
(Benefit from) provision for income taxes $ 192 $ 1.€ (1,167)%

Effective tax rate 39% 3%

The Company recorded a tax benefit of $19.2 millkmsociated with our operating loss in 2014. The @ang currently believes tt
benefit is realizable and has not recorded a vialuatlowance against the related deferred taxtaset becomes more likely than not that
Company will not realize these benefits, a valuailowance would be recorded with a correspondhryge to our income tax provision.
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Media Division $ 3027 % 287.% 5%

~
(]
¢

Consumer Products Division 78.F

|

N
%)

Corporate & Other 2.6 26 %

Media Division 98.4 117.C

~
-
o
=S

I
L

Consumer Products Division 41.2 41.1

Corporate & Other (127.9) (116.9 9%

OIBDA as a percentage of revenues 6% 13%

Depreciation and amortization 24.F 20.C 23%

Investment and other expense net 1.3 (0.5 16C %

Provision for income taxes 1.8 11.2 (84)%

The comparability of our results for 2013 was intpddoy $11.7 million of impairment charges relatedur film portfolio, including $4.
million and $0.9 million, forDead Man Dowrand No One Lives respectively, which were 2013 releases and $6lliomfrom previousl
released films and an approximate $3.4 million fpasiimpact from the transition of our video gamssimess to a new licensda.2012, ou
results were impacted by a $1.2 million impairmeharge related to our two feature filmBending the Ruleand Barricade, and the
recognition of a $4.4 million benefit due to prewsty unrecognized tax benefits.

Our Media division revenues increased by pfitmarily due to the increased revenues in telewigsights business. Our Live Eve
segment revenues increased by @ftecting increased revenues from our North Ansemgwents. Our Consumer Products division seg
experienced a 2%lecline in revenues, primarily driven by a $2.7 lioil decrease in our licensing business. Our WWidiss segme
experienced a 37% increase in revenues due in@é#re November 2013 releaseClfristmas Bounty a made-fotelevision production, al
from our movie portfolio.
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Media Division

The following tables present the performance redoit our segments within our Media division (dddlén millions, except where noted):

increase
RevenuesMedia Division 2013 2012 (decrease)
Network $ 86.c $ 87.7 (2%
Pay-per-view $ 82t % 83.¢ (D)%
WWE Classics On Demand $ 38 % 4.1 (M%
Number of pay-per-view events 12 12 — %
Number of buys from pay-per-view events 3,838,00( 4,023,00( (5)%
Average revenue per buy (dollars) $ 2141 % 20.6( 4%
Pay-per-view domestic retail price, excludWgestleMania(dollars) $ 4495 3 44.9¢ — %
Pay-per-view domestic retail prigérestieMania(dollars) $ 509t $ 54,9t 9 %
Television 163. 140.¢ 16 %
Home Entertainment 24.: 33.C (26)%
Gross units shipped 3,987,201 3,775,801 6 %
Digital Media 28.7 25.7 12%
Total $ 3027 % 287.: 5%
Television Ratings
Average weekly household ratings RAW 3.4 3.3 3%
Average weekly household ratings $snackDown 2.2 2.1 5%
Average weekly household ratings V6WE Main Event 0.¢ 0.8 13%
Average weekly household ratings Tatal Divas (E!) 14 N/A
increase
OIBDA -Media Division 2013 2012 (decrease)
Network $ 27.¢ % 41.: (32)%
Television 56.1 51.¢ 9%
Home Entertainment 8.8 15.¢ (43)%
Digital Media 5.€ 8.7 (36)%
Total $ 984 % 117.( (16)%
OIBDA as a percentage of revenues 33% 41%

Network revenues, which include revenues genefayeplay-per-view and video-oemand, decreased by $1.4 million in 2013 peric
compared 2012. Pay-per-view revenues decreas8d.thymillion from 2012, primarily as result of a G¥%cline in the number of pay-peiew
buys in 2013. This decrease was partially offsetab§ increase in average revenue per buy from 20&2 in part, to an increase in
domestic retail price charged for viewilgrestieManiaand higher retail prices charged for viewing ouer@g in high definition. Video-on-
demand revenues decreased slightly by $0.3 milhaiwork OIBDA as a percentage of revenues decdes82% in 2013 from 47% in 20
due primarily to an additional $5.1 million in tateelated expenses.

Television revenues, which include revenues geedritom television rights fees and advertisingréased by $22.5 million in 2013
compared to 2012. Domestically, television righeed increased by $17.0 million, primarily due te groduction and licensing of n
programs. During the third quarter of 2013, we detila new television seriebptal Divas,which is carried on the E! Network. In additi
2013 includes the full year impact of programingaduced in 2012, particularly, an additional hofilRAWto the USA Network, as well
rights fees for an original serieeyWE Main Evenbn the ION Television Network. The television OIBDas a percentage of reven
decreased to 34% from 37% in 2012 primarily duméoeased production costs.

Home entertainment revenues decreased by $8.70mibir 26%, in 2013 as compared to 2012. Domesiicehentertainment revenue
approximately $6.4 million, or 23%, as a 6% incee@msshipments to 4.0 million units was more théfsed by lower
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sellthrough rates and a 13% decline in the average pec unit to $9.60 reflecting a shift in produdkrand retail demand for lower pric
product. Additionally, we released 28 titles in 3@bmpared to 35 titles in 2012.

Revenue from our international home entertainmetivities declined by approximately $2.3 millionflecting lower sales in Canada «
the transition to a new licensee in the EMEA regiblome entertainment OIBDA as a percentage of neeerdecreased to 36% in 2!
compared to 47% in 2012 due to lower sell-throwmsbhs and higher talent expenses.

Digital media revenues, which include revenues ganad from WWE.com and from our magazine publishinginess, increased by $
million in 2013 as compared to 2012. WWE.com rexemnincreased by $3.3 million in 2013 as compase2Di2 due to the incremental img
of the Company's launch of digital distributionafr pay-perview events across several new platforms and highles of advertising acrc
various digital platforms. Magazine publishing nemes decreased by $0.3 million in 2013 as compar2012. Net units sold decreased by
driven by weaker newsstand demand and lower suyttigerirevenue for th&/WE Kidsmagazine reflecting, in part, the continued ov
decline in the magazine publishing industry. Welishled twelve issues &VWE Magazinggen issues ofWWE Kidsmagazine and three spe:
issues both in 2013 and in 2012. Digital media O#B&> a percentage of revenues decreased to 200d 81ffom 34% in 2012 due to hiring
new personnel to support digital content initiasive

Live Events

The following tables present the performance resaiid key drivers for our Live Events segment &selin millions, except where noted):

increase
Revenues Live Events 2013 2012 (decrease)
Live events $ 111.8  $ 103.7 8 %
North America $ 814 % 72.1 13%
International $ 301 % 31.€ (5)%
Total live event attendance 1,924,101 1,854,101 4%
Number of North American events 25¢€ 24¢ 3%
Average North American attendance 6,00( 5,90( 2%
Average North American ticket price (dollars) $ 48.6: % 45.3¢ 7%
Number of international events 65 66 (2%
Average international attendance 5,90( 6,00( (2%
Average international ticket price (dollars) $ 741 % 74.1°% — %
Travel packages 1€ 2.8 (45)%
Total $ 1131 % 106.¢ 6 %
increase
OIBDA -Live Events 2013 2012 (decrease)
Live events $ 301 % 26.t 14%
Travel packages 0.7 0.t 4C %
Total $ 30.6 % 27.C 14%
OIBDA as a percentage of revenues 27% 25%

Live events revenues, which include revenues fiicket sales and travel packages, increased byrilibn in 2013 as compared to 20
Revenues from our North America live events busnesreased $9.3 million, or 13%, due in part tet@ng performance of our ann
WrestleManiaevent which contributed $3.6 million in incrementalket revenue in 2013. In addition, we held eightre events ai
experienced a 7% increase in average ticket pic2813 as compared to 2012. Our international divents business decreased $1.5 millic
2013 primarily due to lower attendance and a deseréa average ticket prices partially offset bystrer attendance at the events held di
our European tour in 2013 and higher average tipkees from the tour in Abu Dhabi. The decreasavierage attendance was predomin:i
due to venue mix. The live events OIBDA as a paam of revenues increased to 27% in 2013 from 252012.
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Consumer Products Division

The following tables present the performance resamid key drivers for our Consumer Products diwigaollars in millions, except whe
noted):

increase
RevenuesConsumer Products Division 2013 2012 (decrease)
Licensing $ 43¢ 3 46.% (6)%
Venue merchandise 19.4 18.¢ 3%
Domestic per capita spending (dollars) $ 10.2¢  $ 10.6¢ (4)%
WWEShop 15.t 14.¢ 5%
Average WWEShop revenues per order (dollars) $ 48.1C % 47.6¢ 1%
Total $ 785 % 79.¢ (2)%
increase
OIBDA -Consumer Products Division 2013 2012 (decrease)
Licensing $ 312 % 32 )%
Venue merchandise 7.5 6.7 12 %
WWEShop 2.4 2.1 14%
Total $ 412  $ 41.1 — %
OIBDA as a percentage of revenues 52% 51%

Licensing revenues decreased by $2.7 million in3284 compared to 2012, reflecting a decline inmaeefrom sales of toys, video gar
and other products both domestically and intermafiy. The period ended December 31, 2013 refleateastimated $2.0 million positi
impact associated with the bankruptcy of our forwmideo game licensee, THQ, and the transition teew video game licensee, TakKexo
Interactive. As a result of THQ's bankruptcy, we dot collect or recognize a portion of anticipatedalties due in 2013. Therefore, despite
positive impact of the transition of our video galicense on revenue and income in the first quaViBVE incurred an estimated economic
of approximately $3.0 million stemming from foregowideo game receipts. Overall, sales of our viglgme declined approximately 11%
in part to lower effective pricing from 2012. Liceing OIBDA as a percentage of revenues was 72% 138 2ompared to 70% in 2012 partii
as a result of product.

Venue merchandise revenues increased by $0.6 mii®013 as compared to 2012. Increased salesofhandise at our domestic
Canadian events were partially offset by lowerrimétional licensing revenues. Total paid attendatar domestic events increased 5% v
the per capita merchandise spend at those evenisaded 4% to $10.24 in the current year. The vemerehandise OIBDA as a percentag
revenues increased to 39% from 36% in 2012.

WWEShop revenues increased by $0.7 million in 26d®pared to 2012, driven by a 4% increase in thebmu of orders to 320,2(
Average revenue per order increased slightly bytd%48.10. WWEShop OIBDA as a percentage of revemamained relatively flat in t
periods.
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WWE Studios

The following table provides detailed informatiom our WWE Studio's segment (dollars in millions):

Feature
Film
Production For the Year Ended December 31,
Release  Production Af)?eDtZ;:ngi 8 |nception to-date Revenue OIBDA
Title Date Costs* 2013 Revenue  OIBDA 2013 2012 2013 2012
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The Call Mar. 2013 N/A
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In production

Sub-total $ 138.6 $ 16( $ 1071 $ (409 $ 108 $ 7S $ (92 $ (3.6

Total $ (129 $ (5.9

* Production costs are presented net of the assacksenefit of production incentives.

During 2013, we released three feature films véathcal distributionNo One Lives Dead Man DowrandThe Call,two films, 12 Round
2: Reloadedand The Marine 3: Homefrontlirect to DVD and one made-for-television movighristmas Bounty Thirdparty distributor
control the distribution and marketing of thesenBland, as a result, we recognize revenue on lzaset after the thirgarty distributor recouj
distribution fees and expenses and results aratezpto us. Results are typically reported to ugpéniods subsequent to the initial releas
these films.

WWE Studios recorded revenues of $10.8 million 2003 compared to $7.9 million for 2012, an increa§&2.9 million or 37%
Revenues for WWE Studios is impacted by the tindhgur film releases and change in our distributioodel. The increase in revenue in 2
is primarily related to the made-for-television rmep\Christmas Bountywhich was released in the fourth quarter of 201lghdugh, there we
five feature films released in 2013 compared ta fidms released in 2012, revenues for these 28 fwill be recognized on a net basit
participation statements are received rather tipam welease as was the case with our self-disaibtitles, includingChristmas Bounty WWE
Studios OIBDA decreased $7.2 million in 2013 as parad to 2012, primarily as a result of recordimgpairment charges of $11.7 million
2013 compared with $1.2 million in 2012.
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At December 31, 2013, the Company had $16.0 milljpet of accumulated amortization and impairmerarghs) of feature fili
production assets capitalized on its ConsolidateldB:e Sheet, of which $9.4 million relates to filoompleted and in release and $6.6 mi
relates to various films not yet released. We mevé@d revise estimates of ultimate revenue andggzation costs at each reporting perio
reflect the most current information availableestimates for a film’s ultimate revenue are reviaad indicate a significant decline in a fikn
profitability or if events or circumstances chartbat indicate we should assess whether the fairevaf a film is less than its unamortized 1
costs, we calculate the film's estimated fair valsimg a discounted cash flow model. If fair vaisiéess than unamortized cost, the film ass
written down to fair value. In 2013, the Compangareled impairments totaling $11.7 million, includifi4.7 million and $0.9 million, fabeac
Man Downand No One Lives respectively, which were 2013 releases and $6lilomfrom previously released films. During 201&¢
recorded impairment charges of $1.2 million relatethe feature flmsBending the RulezndBarricade.

Revenues Corporate & Other increase
(dollars in millions ) 2013 2012 (decrease)
Other $ 2¢ $ 2.2 26%

Other revenues, which include revenues associaithdtalent appearances, increased by $0.4 millioR013 as compared to the prior y
period.

OIBDA - Corporate & Other increase
(dollars in millions ) 2013 2012 (decrease)
Corporate & Other $ 127.9 $ (116.9) 9%

Corporate & Other Expenses

The following table presents the amounts and péd®ange of certain significant corporate and othgrenses (dollars in millions):

increase
2013 2012 (decrease)
Staff related $ 484 $ 435 11%
Management incentive compensation 7.C 10.1 (31)%
Legal, accounting and other professional 15.% 14.¢ 6 %
Travel and entertainment expenses 5.1 4.C 28 %
Advertising, marketing and promotion 8.4 6.4 31%
Corporate insurance 4.C 3.¢ 3%
Bad debt expense — 2.t (200%
All other 41.€ 33.¢ 23%
Total corporate & other expenses $ 130z  $ 119.( 9%

Corporate & Other as a percentage of net revenues 26% 25%

Corporate and other expenses primarily include @aie overhead and certain expenses related teabes and marketing, including
international offices, and talent development fiord, including costs associated with our WWE Penence Center. These costs benefi
Company as a whole and are therefore not allodatewividual businesses. Corporate and other esgimcreased by $11.2 million or 986
2013 compared to 2012. This was primarily due tvdased expenses related to supporting our corgletiéd initiatives, including the laur
of WWE Network in 2014, as well as to develop odvextising sales and international infrastructpatially offset by decreased manager
incentive compensation due to 2013 operating pedoce.
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Depreciation and Amortization
(dollars in millions)

increase
2013 2012 (decrease)
Depreciation and amortization $ 245 % 20.C 23%

Depreciation and amortization expense increase®b§ million, or 23%, in 2013 compared to 2012. emtion expense for 20
reflects higher property and equipment balancesipport our emerging content and distribution é$fancluding our new WWE Network.

Investment Income, Interest and Other Expense, Net
(dollars in millions)

increase
2013 2012 (decrease)
Investment income, interest and other expense, net $ 13 $ (0.5 16(%

Investment income, interest and other expenseyiaketed an expense of $1.3 million in 2013 compace#i0.5 million in 2012, reflectir
lower interest and investment income.

Income Taxes
(dollars in millions)

increase
2013 2012 (decrease)
Provision for income taxes $ 18 $ 11.2 (84)%

Effective tax rate 39% 26%

The 2013 effective tax rate was negatively impacheel to the size of permanent differences reldtivaur pre-tax income, i.e. certain non
deductible expenses are driving the effective hagler due to decreased income levels in 2013. 2. effective tax rate was positiv
impacted by $4.4 million of previously unrecogniziast benefits primarily related to the settlemehwarious audits, including the State
Connecticut, the IRS, and other state and loc@diations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We had cash and short-term investments of $118ldbmand $109.4 million as of December 31, 20412013 , respectively. Our short-
term investments consist primarily of corporate deand municipal bonds, including mefunded municipal bonds. Our debt balance to
$25.9 million and $29.6 million as of December 2Q14 and 2013 respectively. This debt is related to the finagcdf our corporate aircr:
purchased in August 2013.

On February 24, 2014, the Company launched WWE biétvan over-thdéep subscription based platform that allows sulbsts access
WWE content. Included in the subscription is acdessur marquis pay-per-view events, which wereviogsly sold as standlone even
through cable and satellite providers. As viewgrshli these events transition to WWE Network, ouy-parview revenues were advers
impacted. We believe that our existing cash anéstment balances and cash provided by operatidhbevsufficient to meet our operati
requirements over the next twelve months, inclusiveividends, debt service, film and televisiooguction activities and capital expenditu

Included in our cash and investment balances aember 31, 2014 is the benefit of $50 million reeeivn October 2014 as an adve
payment relating to a lonigrm television rights deal. This amount is recdrde deferred revenue in our consolidation balaheet and will k
recognized in accordance with the terms of theaagemt over the next five years.

Borrowing Capacity

In May 2014, we entered into a First Amendmentuoamended and restated $200 million revolving itfedility to provide for financie
flexibility during our Network launch. As of Decemb31, 2014, the Company is in compliance with ghavisions of the credit facility a
currently has access to funds under the facilftpeieded, however during 2015 this access may weredg limited or unavailable altogetl
without the amendment of certain covenants. Norasse can be given that this amendment will belalviai or economically viable. As
December 31, 2014there were no amounts outstanding under thetdiagdiity and the Company has available debt capamder the terms
the revolving credit facility of approximately $4.6 million .
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash generated from operating activities was $B#llfon for the year ended December 31, 2014, caegbao $23.8 milliorfor the yea
ended December 31, 2013 he increase in cash provided by operating desvis driven by the receipt of a $50 million adea paymel
related to our domestic television distributionesgnent and improved terms relating to our receesbpartially as a result of the launcl
WWE Network, offset by reduced operating performgrincluding increased spending for the launch @mgbing support of WWE Netwol
as well as, from increased spending on film pradacassets.

During 2014, the Company spent $18.7 million ontdea film production activities, compared to $1tmdlion in 2013. In 2014, w
received $2.0 million in incentives related to teatfilm productions. In 2013, we received $0.9liaml in incentives related to feature fi
production. We anticipate spending between $20l0omiand $30.0 million on feature film productialuring the year ending December
2015.

We recognized $13.8 million in ndiim related production incentives in 2014, inclugiinfrastructure credits, compared to $10.3 m
in the prior year period. During the year ending@aber 31, 2015, we anticipate receiving approaige#8.0 million to $10.0 million in non-
film related incentives.

During 2014, the Company spent $20.9 million toduree additional content for television includifigtal Divas Season 2 and &hc
programming for WWE Network, compared to $11.5 imillin the prior year period. We anticipate spendingragimately $18.0 million t
$23.0 million to produce additional content durthg year ending December 31, 2015.

Our accounts receivable represent a significantiggoiof our current assets and relate principadlyatmounts due to us from nega
subscriptions, as well as a limited number of cues, distributors and licensees. At December 8142 our largest single customer bala
was approximately 14%f our gross accounts receivable balance. Chamgée ifinancial condition or operations of our dimitors, custome
or licensees may result in increased delayed paggmmonpayments which would adversely impact our cashdlémem operating activitie
and/or our results of operations.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Cash used by investing activities totaled $1.2ianilfor the year ended December 31, 2014, compar&30.8 millionfor the year ende
December 31, 2013. The change was primarily dusash paid in the prior year to acquire a new c@goaircraft for approximately $3(
million. Also contributing was a reduction in cadispending in the current year in accordance withcost cutting initiatives implementec
the second half of 2014. The current year als@céslan increase in cash proceeds as a resule glath of our old corporate aircraft and
receipt of funds related to infrastructure tax @sedn capital projects.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Cash used by financing activities totaled $39.2iomlfor the year ended December 31, 2014, comptr&®.0 millionfor the year ende
December 31, 2013 During 2013, we received $31.0 million in procedtbm the issuance of a note payable enteredim#ugust 201
related to the purchase of our new corporate dirokdditionally, in 2014, we paid $4.1 million acheduled principal payments related tc
new corporate aircraft debt compared to $1.4 mmilliothe prior year period.

Contractual Obligations

W e have entered into various contracts under whielase required to make guaranteed payments, imgudi

e Scheduled principal and fixed interest paymentsudr secured loan in connection with our corpoaatcraft financing
e Various operating leases for facilities and saféses with terms generally ranging from one to yemars
e Service contracts with certain vendors and independontractors, including our talent with termsgiag from one to twenty yea

e Service agreement obligation related to WWE Netwlercluding future performance based payments whiehvariable in nature
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Our aggregate minimum payment obligations undeselmntracts as of December 31, 2014 are as fol(ldo¥kars in millions):

After
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2019 Total
Long-term debt $ 4¢ $ 4¢ $ 4¢ $ 4¢ $ 4¢ $ 32 % 277
Operating leases 4.€ 3.2 1.¢ 1.7 1.€ 2.1 15.1
Service agreement obligation 9.t — — — — — 9.t
Talent and other commitments 12.C 9.7 7.€ 2.C 2.C 2.t 35.¢
Total commitments $ 31.C $ 17¢ $ 144 $ B8€ $ 8E $ 7.E& $ 881

Our Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, R@lddes $1.7 millionin liabilities associated with uncertain tax pamis (includin
interest and penalties of approximately $0.5 milljo which is not included in the table above. Thempany does not expect to pay
significant settlements related to these uncettirpositions in 2015.

Seasonality

Our operating results are not materially affectgdsbasonal factors; however, our premier evdhgstleMania, occurs late in our fir
quarter or early in our second quarter and hisddlsichas resulted in increased revenue in thesiegrerAs a result of the subscription be
model of WWE Network, revenues may not continuasmtoease in a corresponding manner but costs fhrestleManisare expected to rem:
significantly higher than our typical pay-peiew event costs potentially resulting in decrea€#BDA in the period. Churn among WV
Network subscribers may be more pronounced in #grogs following large WWE events shown on WWE Natkvsuch aWrestleMania
Revenues from our licensing and direct sale of gores products, including our catalogs, magazinesiaternet sites, varies from perioc
period depending on the volume and extent of lizgnagreements and marketing and promotion progemered into during any particu
period of time, as well as the commercial succésseomedia exposure of our characters and brahnel timing of revenues related to our W'
Studios segment fluctuates based upon the timimyiofeature film releases. The timing of thesenéwvas well as the continued introductio
new product offerings and revenue generating autleh and will cause fluctuations in quarterly rexes and earnings.

Inflation
During 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , inflation did not @amaterial effect on our business.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2014 , we did not have any riadteff-balance sheet arrangements, as definettin BO3(a)(4) of SEC Regulation S-
K.

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial steets requires us to make estimates that affeateierted amounts of assets, liabilit
revenue and expenses, and the related disclosuoemingent assets and contingent liabilities. WWasebour estimates on our histor
experience and on various other assumptions thatelieve are reasonable under the circumstancesetults of which form the basis
making estimates about the carrying values of asaa liabilities. The accuracy of these estimatebsthe likelihood of future changes deg
on a range of possible outcomes and a number adrlyinly variables, many of which are beyond ourtoanActual results may differ fro
these estimates under different assumptions orittonsl

We believe the following judgments and estimatescaitical in the preparation of our consolidatahcial statements.
e Feature Film Production Assets, Ne¢

Feature film production assets are recorded atalse of production, including production overhead &et of production incentives. 1
costs for an individual film are amortized in th®portion that revenues bear to managensesstimates of the ultimate revenue expected
recognized from exploitation, exhibition or saleaunortized feature film production assets are atallifor impairment each reporting per
We review and revise estimates of ultimate revemoe participation costs at each reporting periodeftect the most current informati
available. Reductions in ultimate revenue for mmfdnd/or any increases in estimated participatasiscassociated with a film could indica
significant decline in a film’s profitability. Whethere is a significant decline in a filmprofitability, we calculate the estimated faitugof ¢
film using a discounted cash flow model. If theirasted fair value of the film is less than its umatized costs, we record an impairn
charge for the excess of
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the carrying value of the film over the estimatait f/alue. Impairment charges are recorded as@ease in amortization expense include
cost of revenues in the consolidated financiakbshaints.

Our estimate of ultimate revenues for feature filndudes revenues from all sources for ten yeans the date of a filng initial releast
We estimate the ultimate revenues based on indasttyCompany specific trends, the historical penonce of similar films, the star powel
the lead actors, and the genre of the film. Poathe release of a feature film and throughoulifis we revise our estimates of revenues b
on expected future results, actual results and étth@wvn factors affecting the various distributimarkets.

During the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2012ahd , we recorded aggregate impairment charg&4d.6f million , $11.7 million
and $1.2 million , respectively, related to sevefabur feature films.

As of December 31, 2014 , we had $26.5 milljoet of accumulated amortization and impairmentr@és) in capitalized film producti
costs, which includes 24 released films, four filoesnpleted but not yet released and five filmsrodpction. No assurance can be given
additional unfavorable changes to revenue and estéhates will not occur, which, in turn, may reédol additional impairment charges t
might materially affect our results of operatiomsl dinancial condition.

e Television Production Assets, Nt

Television production assets consist of severadaglic television series we have produced for distion, either on WWE Network
through other distribution platforms. Amounts cafited include development costs, production castd production overhead. Costs
produce live event programming are expensed whenettent is first broadcast. Cost to produce epispdbogramming for television
distribution on WWE Network are amortized in theoportion that revenues bear to management's estiofathe ultimate revenue to
recognized from exploitation, exhibition or saledsnortized television production assets are evatufsir impairment each reporting perioc
conditions indicate a potential impairment, and ¢lsémated future cash flows are not sufficientedcover the unamortized asset, the as:
written down to fair value. In addition, if we detgne that a program will not likely air, we experthe remaining unamortized asset. D
the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, wenseghe$25.9 million and $7.0 millionrespectively, related to the amortizatior
television production assets. During the year erdlecember 31, 2012, we did not expense any tevisioduction assets.

We did not record any impairments related to olavision production assets during the years endsteBber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.
e Pay-PerView Programming Revenue Recognitio

Revenues from our pay-perew programming are recorded when the event edaand are based upon our initial estimate of theber o
buys achieved. This initial estimate is based a@lipinary buy information received from our pay-éew distributors. Final reconciliation
the pay-peniew buys occurs within one year and subsequenistdgnts to the buys are recognized in the pergwd information is receive
Historically, adjustments made to our initial esdtes have not had a significant impact on our reeenQur pay-peview accounts receival
balance was $3.2 million and $11.2 million at Deben31, 2014 and 2013 , respectively.

e Home Video Returns Allowanct

Revenues from the sales of home video titles arerded at the later of the date of delivery by distributor to retailers, or the date t
these products are made widely available for spleetailers, net of an allowance for estimatedmetuThe allowance for estimated returr
based on historical information, current industgntls and demand for our titles. A change in denfandny of our videos or a change in
home video market could impact the level of videtums. As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, our haicheo returns allowance w#2.€
million and $4.5 million , respectively.
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e Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Our accounts receivable represent a significartigroof our current assets and relate principalamounts due to us from distributor:
our Network, pay-peview, television, home video programming, and |gees who produce consumer products containingniellectua
property and/or trademarks. Adverse changes inrgemeonomic conditions and/or contraction in glob@edit markets could precipit
liquidity problems among our key distributors, ieasing our exposure to bad debts which could nedatimpact our results of operations
financial condition. We estimate the collectabilitfyour receivables and establish allowances feratmount of receivables that we estima
be uncollectible. We base these allowances on stwrftal collection experience, the length of timr receivables are outstanding anc
financial condition of individual customers. Chaaga the financial condition of a single major @mer, either adverse or positive, cc
impact the amount and timing of any additional wlmces or reductions that may be required. At Déesr81, 2014and 2013, our large
customers made up 14% and 13%, respectively, ofjimas accounts receivable balance. As of DeceBhe2014 and 2013our allowance fc
doubtful accounts was $4.8 million and $2.8 millioespectively.

e |ncome Taxe:

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognifedthe expected future tax consequences of evimats have been reflected in
consolidated financial statements. Deferred taxlliies and assets are determined based on tferetices between the book and tax bas
particular assets and liabilities and operating loarryforwards, using tax rates in effect for yie@rs in which the differences are expecte
reverse. A valuation allowance is provided to dffseferred tax assets if, based upon the avai@btience, it is more-likely-thanet that som
or all of the deferred tax assets will not be mli In evaluating our ability to recover defertad assets within the jurisdiction from wh
they arise, we consider all available positive aedative evidence, including scheduled reversaldefdérred tax liabilities, projected futi
taxable income, taplanning strategies, and results of recent operstih we determine that we would be able to reatiar deferred tax ass
in the future in excess of their net recorded armona would make an adjustments to the deferrecdssets valuation allowance, which wc
reduce the provision for income taxes.

As of December 31, 2014 , our net deferred taxtassere $37.0 million. As of December 31, 20141, deferred tax liabilities wer$2.(
million. Our deferred tax asseitscreased significantly in 2014 due to operatingsés. We believe that it is more likely than nloat twe wil
have sufficient taxable income in the future tdireathese operating loss carryforwards and as kagk not recorded a valuation allowanc
reduce the net carrying value. If we determina itniore likely than not, that we will not have sciint taxable income to realize these as
we may need to record a valuation allowance irffuhee.

We use a twastep approach in recognizing and measuring unoetéai positions. The first step is to evaluate pasitions taken «
expected to be taken in a tax return by assessiveghsr they are more likely than not sustainaldseld solely on their technical merits, u
examination, and including resolution of any redatgpeals or litigation process. The second stép measure the associated tax bene
each position, as the largest amount that we beliewore likely than not realizable. Differencedvieen the amount of tax benefits take
expected to be taken in our income tax returnsth@dmount of tax benefits recognized in our finalngtatements represent our unrecogr
income tax benefits, which we record as a liahil@dur policy is to include interest and penaltielated to unrecognized income tax benefi
a component of income tax expense. At December2Bl4 , our unrecognized tax benefits including interasd penalties total
approximately $1.7 million.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In January 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Stadsdafpdate No. 2015-01, lhcome Statemerixtraordinary and Unusual Iter
" (Topic 225). This ASU updated the accounting guidaretated to extraordinary and unusual items hyiehting the concept of extraordin
items. In addition, disclosure guidance for itefmat tare unusual in nature or occur infrequently gl retained and will be expanded to incl
items that are both unusual in nature and infretipercurring. This standard update is effective fiecal years, and interim periods wit
those fiscal years, beginning after December 1852With early adoption permitted. We early adoptteid accounting standard update &
December 31, 2014, which did not have a materfatebn our consolidated financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Stanslddgpgdate No. 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statemer@®ing Concer
(Subtopic 205-40): Disclosure of Uncertainties aban Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Conger This ASU requires that managen
evaluate, and, if required, disclose conditions\a@nts that raise substantial doubt about theyem@ibility to continue as a going concern. *
guidance is effective for the first annual periodii@g after December 15, 2016, and interim pertbdseafter. This standard update is effe
for our fiscal year beginning of January 1, 201 §ve currently evaluating timpact of the adoption of this new standard onanmnsolidate
financial statements.
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In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards lo@FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update R@14-09,“ Revenue frol
Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)This ASU will supersede the revenue recognitiequirements in ASC 605, “Revenue Recognitjon
and most industrgpecific guidance. The ASU requires an entity togmize revenue in an amount that reflects theiderstion to which th
entity expects to receive in exchange for goods or sesvitieis guidance is effective for annual reporfiegiods beginning after December
2016 andearly adoption is not permitted. This standard tpds effective for our fiscal year beginning ohdary 1, 2017. We are currer
evaluating the impact of the adoption of this néandard on our consolidated financial statements.

In April 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standatdfsdate No. 2014-08, Presentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205)
Property, Plant, and Equipment (Topic 360): RepaytDiscontinued Operations and Disclosures of Dés® of Components of an Entil.
This ASUupdated the accounting guidance related to diswoadi operations. The updated accounting guidarmadas a narrower definitic
of discontinued operations than existing GAAP. Theatpd accounting guidance requires that only didpasacomponents of an entity,
groups of components, that represent a stratediclisat has or will have a material effect on tle@orting entityS operations be reported in
financial statements as discontinued operations. The updatedunting guidance also provides guidance on thendial stateme
presentations andisclosures of discontinued operations. On Julg0ll4, we early adopted this accounting standaratepahich did not ha
a material effect on our consolidated financialestaents.
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Cautionary Statement for Purposes of the “Safe Hart Provisions of the Private Securities LitigatioReform Act of 1995

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of B98rovides a “safe harbor” for certain statemehngs are forwardeoking and are not bas
on historical facts. When used in this FormKL@nd our other SEC filings, our press releasescmiments made in earnings calls, inve
presentations or otherwise to the public, the wdrday,” “will,” “could,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “continue,” “project,” “intend”, “estimate
“believe”, “expect” and similar expressions areeimded to identify forward-looking statements, althio not all forwardeoking statemen
contain such words. These statements relate tofudure plans, objectives, expectations and intestiand are not historical facts
accordingly involve known and unknown risks andentainties and other factors that may cause theabogsults or the performance by u
be materially different from future results or merhance expressed or implied by such forwlaaking statements. The following factc
among others, could cause actual results to diffterially from those contained in forward-lookistgtements made in this Form KGnd ou
other SEC filings, in press releases, earnings eaitl other statements made by our authorizeceofi¢i) risks relating to WWE Network; (
risks relating to entering, maintaining and reneimajor distribution agreements; (iii) our neectémtinue to develop creative and entertai
programs and events; (iv) our need to retain otigoa to recruit key performers; (v) the risk alecline in the popularity of our brand of sp
entertainment, including as a result of changahénsocial and political climate; (vi) the possibleexpected loss of the services of Vincer
McMahon; (vii) possible adverse changes in the letgry atmosphere and related private sector thita; (viii) the highly competitive, rapid
changing and increasingly fragmented nature oftlaekets in which we operate and/or our inabilitictanpete effectively, especially aga
competitors with greater financial resources orkafnlace presence; (ix) uncertainties associatéd wiernational markets; (x) our difficu
or inability to promote and conduct our live eveatsl/or other businesses if we do not comply withliaable regulations; (xi) our depende
on our intellectual property rights, our need totpct those rights, and the risks of our infringatra others’intellectual property rights; (xi
risks relating to the complexity of our rights agments across distribution mechanisms and geogapduieas; (xiii) the risk of substan
liability in the event of accidents or injuries ocgng during our physically demanding events idahg, without limitation, claims relating

CTE; (xiv) exposure to risks relating to large paldvents as well as travel to and from such evdrtg risks inherent in our feature fi
business; (xvi) a variety of risks as we expand mew or complementary businesses and/or makegitahvestments; (xvii) risks related
our computer systems and online operations; (xwgRs relating to a possible decline in generaheenic conditions and disruption in finan:
markets; (xix) risks relating to our accounts reable which represent a significant portion of ourrent assets and relate principally

limited number of distributors and licensees; (kisks relating to our ability to access our revotyicredit facility; (xxi) potential substant
liabilities if litigation is resolved unfavorablyxxii) our potential failure to meet market expdittas for our financial performance, which cc
adversely affect the market price and volatilityoofr stock; (xxiii) through his beneficial ownerghef a substantial majority of our Clas:
common stock, our controlling stockholder, Vinc&tMcMahon, exercises control over our affairs, dmsl interests may conflict with t
holders of our Class A common stock; (xxiv) riskéating to the fact that our dividend, which exeaeedr current and accumulated earn
and profits; (xxv) a substantial number of shamesedigible for sale by Mr. McMahon and membersisf family or trusts established for tt
benefit, and the sale, or the perception of possibles, of those shares could lower our stoclepand (xxvi) risks related to the relativ
small public “float” of our Class A common stock. In addition, our dand is dependent on a number of factors, includinggng other thing
our liquidity and historical and projected cashwflostrategic plan (including alternative uses gbitad), our financial results and conditi
contractual and legal restrictions on the payméntivadends (including under our revolving crediicflity), general economic and competi
conditions and such other factors as our Board iofdibrs may consider relevant. Forwadndking statements made by the Company s
only as of the date made, are subject to chand®utitany obligation on the part of the Companygdate or revise them, and undue reli:
should not be placed on these statements.

" ow ”ow " ow LIS " ow

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosurebaut Market Risk

In the normal course of business, we are exposéateé@n currency exchange rate, interest rateeaity price risks that could impact «
results of operations. Our foreign currency excleargge risk is minimized by maintaining minimal @ssets and liabilities in currencies o
than our functional currency.

Short-Term Investments

Our investment portfolio consists primarily of maipal bonds, including preefunded municipal bonds and corporate bonds. W
exposed to market risk related to our investmenmntf@a primarily as a result of credit quality kiand interest rate risk. Credit quality risl
defined as the risk of a credit downgrade to arividdal fixed maturity security and the potentiak$ attributable to that downgrade. Ct
quality risk is managed through our investment ggliwhich establishes credit quality limitations time overall portfolio as well
diversification and percentage limits on securitiésndividual issuers. The result is a diversifigartfolio of fixed maturity securities, witt
weighted average credit rating of approximately "AA
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Interest rate risk is defined as the potentialdoonomic losses on fixed maturity securities dua thange in market interest rates.
investments in municipal bonds and corporate bdrad® exposure to changes in the level of marketest rates. Interest rate risk is mitig;
by managing our investment portfolsotollar weighted duration. Additionally, we habe ttapability of holding any security to maturiyhich
would allow us to realize full par value. We havaleated the impact of an immediate 100 basis phiahge in interest rates on our investr
portfolio. A 100 basis point increase in interestes would result in an approximate $1.2 milliorcrdase in fair value, whereas a 100
point decrease in interest rates would result iagroximate $1.2 million increase in fair value.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary D
The information required by this item is set faritthe Consolidated Financial Statements filed itk report.
Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accourtsanon Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedure
Disclosure Controls and Procedur

We have performed an evaluation under the supervisnd with the participation of our managementiuding our Chairman and Ch
Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officef,the effectiveness of our disclosure controls pratedures, as defined under the Secu
Exchange Act of 1934. Based on that evaluation,Ghairman and Chief Executive Officer, and our €Ri@ancial Officer concluded that
of the end of the period covered by this FormKlOsur disclosure controls and procedures werectffe and designed to ensure tha
material information required to be disclosed by @ompany in reports that it files or submits untther Exchange Act is recorded, proces
summarized and reported within the time period<ifipe by the SEC and that such information is awolated and communicated to
management, as appropriate to allow timely decssiegarding required disclosure.

There were no changes in the Company'’s internalrabaver financial reporting identified in connigt with managemerg’ evaluatio
that occurred during the fourth quarter of our disgear ended December 31, 20thét has materially affected, or is reasonablylyike
materially affect, our internal control over fingalareporting.

Managemer's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Repag

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such term is define«
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 188(f). Under the supervision and with the partitiga of our management, including our Chairman
Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial i©ffr, we conducted an evaluation of the effectigsnaf our internal control over financ
reporting as of December 31, 2014 based on theeljn@$ established imternal Control — Integrated Framewoi(2013) issued by ti
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission (COSO). Our internal control oveafinial reporting includes polici
and procedures that provide reasonable assuragagdieg the reliability of financial reporting arige preparation of financial statements
external reporting purposes in accordance with geferally accepted accounting principles.

Based on the results of our evaluation, our managéroncluded that our internal control over finahceporting was effective as
December 31, 2014 . We review the results of mamag€s assessment with our Audit Committee.

The effectiveness of our internal control over fic@l reporting as of December 31, 20iak been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP
independent registered public accounting firm, tased in their report which is included in this Arah Report on Form 18= Such repo
expresses an unqualified opinion on the effectigera# the Company’s internal control over financedorting as of December 31, 2014 .

48




Table of Contents

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
Stamford, CT

We have audited the internal control over finanoéglorting of World Wrestling Entertainment, Inadasubsidiaries (the "Company") a
December 31, 2014, based on criteria establishéaténnal Control — Integrated Framewo(R013) issued by the Committee of Sponsc
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Camigamanagement is responsible for maintainingcéffe internal control over financ
reporting and for its assessment of the effectissrad internal control over financial reportingelided in the accompanyifganagemeng
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporti.. Our responsibility is to express an opinion oe tbompany's internal control o
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting Oversight ilo@Jnited States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thetdadbbtain reasonable assurance about whethectigffeinternal control over financ
reporting was maintained in all material respe€@ar audit included obtaining an understanding ¢érimal control over financial reportir
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifecfeness of internal control based on
assessed risk, and performing such other procedigase considered necessary in the circumstancesbéhNeve that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtiis a process designed by, or under the supenvisf, the company's princij
executive and principal financial officers, or mars performing similar functions, and effected Ie tcompany's board of directc
management, and other personnel to provide reakoaasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the preparation of finan
statements for external purposes in accordance gatterally accepted accounting principles. A comfsamternal control over financ
reporting includes those policies and proceduras (h) pertain to the maintenance of records thateasonable detail, accurately and fi
reflect the transactions and dispositions of theetsof the company; (2) provide reasonable asser#imat transactions are recorde:
necessary to permit preparation of financial stetes in accordance with generally accepted acaogirrinciples, and that receipts
expenditures of the company are being made onlgcoordance with authorizations of management arettdrs of the company; and
provide reasonable assurance regarding preventitimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, ,usedisposition of the company's as
that could have a material effect on the finansiatements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal tcoh over financial reporting, including the posstp of collusion or imprope
management override of controls, material misstatémdue to error or fraud may not be preventedeatected on a timely basis. Al
projections of any evaluation of the effectivenet¢he internal control over financial reportingftdure periods are subject to the risk tha
controls may become inadequate because of changesnditions, or that the degree of compliance vifitb policies or procedures n
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all mialerespects, effective internal control over fical reporting as obDecember 3:
2014 , based on the criteria establishedinternal Control — Integrated Frameworf2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsc
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo&United States), tl
consolidated financial statements and financialestant schedule as of and for the year ended DesreBilh 2014of the Company and @
report dated February 17, 2015 expressed an ufigdadipinion on those financial statements andrioia statement schedule.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
February 17, 2015
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Item 9B. Other Information
None.
PART Il

The information required by Part Ill (Items 1@) is incorporated herein by reference to ourni@fe proxy statement for our 2015 Ann
Meeting of Stockholders.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul
(a) The following documents are filed as a parthéf report:

1. Consolidated Financial Statements and Sche8eleindex to Consolidated Financial Statementsage -1 of this report.

2. Exhibits:
Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatincofporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to our Riegtion Statement ¢

Form S-1 (No. 333-84327)).

3.1A Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate adriporation (incorporated by reference to Exhihit(d) to our
Registration Statement on Form S-8, filed July2(§)2).

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws (incorporated by eefss to Exhibit 3.4 to our Registration StatemenEorm S-1 (No.
333-84327)).

3.2A Amendment to Amended and RestatedlByvs (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2¢aptr Registration Statement
Form S-8, filed July 15, 2002).

10.1* World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. 2007 Omnibusdntive Plan, effective July 20, 2007 (incorpordtgdeference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on Form 8-Kdiléuly 26, 2007).

10.1A* World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. Amended andtBesl 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporatedefgrence to
Appendix A to the Proxy Statement filed on March 2@14).

10.2* Form of Agreement for Performance Stock Units ®m@ompany’s employees and officers under the Cogip@007
Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencéxhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-édiJuly 26, 2007).

10.3* Form of Agreement for Restricted Stock Units to @@mpany’s employees and officers under the Comp&t07
Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencéxhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-édiJuly 26, 2007).

10.4* Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with&fihk. McMahon, effective as of January 1, 201tdmporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Current ReporForm 8-K filed November 15, 2010).
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Exhibit
No. Description of Exhibit
10.5* World Wrestling Entertainment 2012 Employee StodkcRase Plan (incorporated by reference to AppeAdix our Proxy

Statement dated March 16, 2012)

10.6* Amended and Restated Booking Agreement with Pauksgue, effective as of January 1, 2012 (incorpdraty referenc
to Exhibit 10.6 to our Annual Report on Form 1044 the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011).

10.7* Form of offer letters between the Company and exezwfficers (incorporated by reference to Exhibt7 to our Annug
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Deoen31, 2011).

10.8* Booking Agreement, dated October 7, 2013, betwdéenGompany and Stephanie McMahon Levesque (incatgubrby
reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Company's Quigrieeport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Sep&r80, 2013).

10.9* Employment Agreement between the Company and Midhasi dated July 19, 2013 (incorporated by refiee to Exhibi
10.10 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Forn@1or the quarter ended June 30, 2013).

10.9A* Amendment, dated October 8, 2014, to Employmenedgient between the Company and Michael J. Luisiddaaly 19
2013 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9Ah® Current Report on Form 8-K, filed October 812).

10.10 Amended and Restated Revolving Credit Facility daieril 30, 2013, and related exhibits and schesliecorporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the Company's Quartedport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Marh?813).

10.10A First Amendment to Amended and Restated RevolvingdiC Agreement, dated May 1, 2014 and related bitshianc
schedules (incorporated by reference to Exhibi2 16.the Company's Quarterly Report on FormQLtsr the quarter ende
March 31, 2014).

10.11 Loan and Aircraft Security Agreement, dated Augys2013 and related exhibits and schedules (incatpd by reference
Exhibit 10.15 to the Current Report on Form 8-kediAugust 12, 2013).

10.12 Promissory Note, dated August 7, 2013 (incorporatedeference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Current RéparForm 8K, filed
August 12, 2013).

10.13* Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into kegw the Company and its independent Directors ifgucated b
reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Company's Quigrieeport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Sep&r80, 2014).

N

1.1 List of Subsidiaries (filed herewith).

N

3.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP (filedr&with).

w

1.1 Certification by Vincent K. McMahon pursid@o Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 200@2d¢fherewith).

w

1.2 Certification by George A. Barrios pursunSection 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (fiherewith).

51




Table of Contents

321 Certification by Vincent K. McMahon and George AarBios pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbadesy Act of 200:
(filed herewith).

101.INS XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutne

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenin

* Indicates management contract or compensatory @larrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regiisthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theretyp authorized.

World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
(Registrant)

Dated: February 17, 2015 By: /s/ VINCENT K. MCMAHON
Vincent K. McMahon
Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secuiitiehange Act of 1934, this report has been sidgradolw by the following persons on behal
the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signature Title or Capacity Date
Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief

/s/ VINCENT K. MCMAHON Executive Officer February 17, 2015
Vincent K. McMahon (principal executive officer)
/sl STUART U. GOLDFARB Director February 17, 2015
Stuart U. Goldfarb
/s/ PATRICIA A. GOTTESMAN Director February 17, 2015
Patricia A. Gottesman
/s/ DAVID KENIN Director February 17, 2015
David Kenin
/s/ JOSEPH H. PERKINS Director February 17, 2015
Joseph H. Perkins
/sl FRANK A. RIDDICK Il Director February 17, 2015
Frank A. Riddick IlI
/s/ JEFFREY R. SPEED Director February 17, 2015
Jeffrey R. Speed
/s/ LAUREEN ONG Director February 17, 2015
Laureen Ong
/sl GEORGE A. BARRIOS Chief Strategy and Financial Officer Febyuar, 2015
George A. Barrios (principal financial officer)
/sl MARK KOWAL Senior Vice President and Corporate Controller February 17, 2015
Mark Kowal (principal accounting officer)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
World Wrestling Entertainment, Inc.
Stamford, CT

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of World Wrestling Entertainment, Ina aabsidiaries (the "Compan
as of December 31, 20hd 2013, and the related consolidated statemértpavations, comprehensive (loss) income, stoadrs| equity
and cash flows for each of the three years in #r@g ended December 31, 201®ur audits also included the financial statenssmedul
listed in the Index at Item 15. These financiatestaents and financial statement schedule are gponsibility of the Company's managem
Our responsibility is to express an opinion onfthancial statements and financial statement sdeduased on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighaiBlo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet dodibtain reasonable assurance about whethdimidngcial statements are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on altasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial stateteepresent fairly, in all material respects, thmafficial position of World Wrestlir
Entertainment, Inc. and subsidiaries as of Decer@ibeR014and 2013, and the results of their operations heit tash flows for each of t
three years in the period ended December 31, 2Gh4conformity with accounting principles geneyaliccepted in the United States
America. Also, in our opinion, such financial staent schedule, when considered in relation to #&cbconsolidated financial stateme
taken as a whole, present fairly, in all matergspects, the information set forth therein.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the Compar
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2014, based on the criteria establighéutérnal Control -Integrated Framewol
(2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Omgitins of the Treadway Commission and our repateédi February 17, 20Expressed ¢
unqualified opinion on the Company's internal cohtiver financial reporting.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Stamford, Connecticut
February 17, 2015
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in thousands, except per share data)

For the years ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

Cost of revenues 377,61! 323,02 284,45!

Depreciation and amortization 26,70¢ 24,46¢ 20,02«

Investment income, net 67¢ 1,42¢ 2,19(

Other expense, net (1,780 (96¢) (997)

Net (loss) income $ (30,07) $ 2,76¢ $ 31,43

©

(Loss) earnings per share: basic and diluted $ 0.40) % 0.04 0.4z

Weighted average common shares outstanding:

Diluted 75,29: 75,37¢ 74,98

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INC OME
(in thousands)

For the years ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Other comprehensive (loss) income :

(Losses) gains on unrealized holding gains on abkgtfor-sale securities (net of tax
(benefit) expense of $(83), $(232) and $450, rebyEy) (13%) (377

Total other comprehensive (loss) income (289 (519




See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

As of December 31,
2014 2013

CURRENT ASSETS:

Short-term investments, net 68,18¢ 76,47¢

Inventory 4,73¢ 2,87¢

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 12,86t 16,14

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 114,04¢ 133,48(

TELEVISION PRODUCTION ASSETS, NET 5,83: 10,77:

NON-CURRENT DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS 10,91t —

©~

TOTAL ASSETS 382,55 % 378,46:

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 57,57¢ 47,88:

Total current liabilities 100,57¢ 82,24t

NON-CURRENT INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 1,66¢ 4,88¢

Total liabilities 176,69 112,51

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

33,179,499 and 31,302,790 shares issued and aditsfjaas of

Class B convertible common stock: ($.01 par vafiigd00,000 shares authorized;

December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively) 427 43¢

Accumulated other comprehensive income 3,22¢ 3,512

Total stockholders’ equity 205,86 265,94¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in thousands, except per share data)

Accumulated

Common Stock Additional Other
Class A Class B Paid - in Comprehensive Accumulated
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income Deficit Total

Net income — — — — — — 31,43 31,43

Stock issuances, net 33€ 3 — — (1373) — — (230)

Tax effect from stock-based
payment arrangements — — — — (58¢) — — (58¢)

Stock-based compensation — — — — 3,91¢ — — 3,91¢

Net income — — — — — — 2,76¢ 2,76¢

Stock issuances (repurchases),
net 34¢ 3 — — (795) — — (792)

Tax effect from stock-based
payment arrangements — — — — 228 — — 22¢

Stock-based compensation — — — — 5,52¢ — — 5,52¢

©»
|

©»
|

Net loss — — — — (30,075 (30,075

Stock issuances, net 37€ 4 — — (2,050 — — (1,046

Tax effect from stock-based
payment arrangements — — — — (79 — — (719

Stock-based compensation — — — — 7,544 — — 7,544

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)



For the years ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

Net (loss) income $ (30,07) $ 2,76¢  $ 31,43:

activities:

Amortization of television production assets 25,86 7,01z —

Loss on equity investment 3,96 _ _

Stock-based compensation 7,544 5,52¢ 3,84t

(Benefit from) provision for deferred income taxes (25,479 1,422 6,18¢

Cash (used in)/provided by changes in operatingtassd liabilities:

Inventory (1,867 (1,109 (112

Feature film production assets (15,96¢) (9,129 (8,90%)

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiiebil 4,42 (6,66¢) 2,507

Net cash provided by operating activities 54,68’ 23,75¢ 63,05

Purchase of corporate aircraft and related impr@rem — (30,899 —

Proceeds from sale of corporate aircraft 3,167 — —

Purchases of short-term investments (35,44() (37,07) (19,179

Purchase of equity investments (2,209 (2,200 (5,000

Net cash used in investing activities (1,204 (50,84 (12,87¢)

Proceeds from the issuance of note payable 364 31,03 —

Dividends paid (36,15() (35,979 (35,819

Proceeds from issuance of stock 97C 704 811

Net cash used in financing activities (39,167 (6,04¢) (36,619

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF PERIOD 32,91 66,04¢ 52,49:

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid for interest $ 1,37¢  $ 984 $ 81t

Non-cash purchase of property and equipment $ 1,45: $ 1,70C $ 1,41t

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsients.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except share data)

1. Basis of Presentation and Business Description

The accompanying consolidated financial statemieictade the accounts of WWE. “WWHE&fers to World Wrestling Entertainment, |
and its subsidiaries, unless the context otherwgspiires. References to “we,” “us,” “our” and th€dmpany” refer to WWE and i
subsidiaries. We are an integrated media and airtarént company, principally engaged in the pradacand distribution of content throu
various channels including our digital over-the-(dpTT") WWE Network, television rights agreemerpsy-perview event programming, Ii1
events, feature films, licensing of various WWEnieel products and the sale of consumer productarfegtour brands. Our operations
organized around the following four principal adtas:

Media Division:
Network

* Revenues consist principally of subscriptions WONVE Network, fees for viewing our pay-per-view amitleo-ondeman
programming, and advertising fees.

Television
» Revenues consist principally of television rigfges and advertising.

Home Entertainment

« Revenues consist principally of sales of WWEdomed content via home entertainment platformsludicg DVD, Blu-Ray
subscription and transactional on-demand outlets.

Digital Media

* Revenues consist principally of advertising salesoorr websites and third party websites includinguYube, sales of vario
broadband and mobile content and magazine pubdjsiime Company discontinued the magazine publishirginess in August 2014.

Live Events
« Revenues consist principally of ticket sales tadel packages for live events.

Consumer Products Division:

Licensing
* Revenues consist principally of royalties or lieerfees related to various WWE themed products ssckideo games, toys ¢
apparel.
Venue Merchandise
* Revenues consist of sales of merchandise aivaevents.
WWEShop
* Revenues consist of sales of merchandise on ebsite through our WWEShop internet storefront.

WWE Studios
e Revenues consist of amounts earned from the timgeim producing and/or distributing of filmed entainment.

In our prior reports filed with the Securities Eaclge Commission ("SEC") through fiscal year 2018, pvesented five reporta
segments: Live and Televised Entertainment, Consiraducts, Digital Media, WWE Studios and UnalkechCorporate and Other. Effect
January 1, 2014, we now present ten reportable esegyminformation presented for the years endeciber 31, 2013 and 2012 include:
the audited consolidated financial statements hexed elsewhere in this Annual Report has beerstégaeflect our new segment presenta
See Note 19Segment Informatioror further details on our reportable segments.hSewisions have no impact on our consolidatednitie
condition, results of operations or cash flowstfar periods presented.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share data)

1. Basis of Presentation and Business Descriptiocohtinued)
Restatemer

Within the supplemental information of the Consat&tl Statements of Cash flows, prior year amouwntsdsh paid (received) for inco
taxes of $(3,052) and $7,158 in 2013 and 2012 pately, were restated to include foreign withhiogftaxes.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates- The preparation of financial statements in confymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United State
of America requires our management to make estsvatd assumptions that affect the reported amadirstssets and liabilities and disclost
of contingent assets and liabilities at the dattheffinancial statements and the reported amafmsvenue and expenses during the repc
period. Actual results could differ from those psites.

Basis of Consolidation— The consolidated financial statements include tbeoants of WWE and all of its domestic and for
subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and trati@ags have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents include cash on depositernight deposit accounts and investments inay
market accounts with maturities of three monthkess at the time of purchase.

Short-term Investments, Net We classify all of our investments as availaldedale securities. Such investments consist primaif
municipal bonds, including preefunded municipal bonds, corporate bonds and gowent agency bonds. All of these investments atedts
fair value, with unrealized gains and losses orh sgcurities reflected, net of tax, as other cotmgmsive income (loss) in stockholdeesjuity
Realized gains and losses on investments are iedlidearnings and are derived using the sped#éatification method for determining 1
cost of securities sold.

Accounts Receivable, Net Accounts receivable relate principally to amoutht® to us from distributors of our Network, pay-p@w
providers and television networks for pay-péw presentations and television programming, éespely, and balances due from the sa
home videos and magazines, as well as from licentet produce consumer products containing oetléttual property and/or tradema
We estimate the collectability of our receivablesl astablish allowances for the amount of accouveteivable that we estimate to
uncollectible. We base these allowances on ouottiistl collection experience, the length of time agcounts receivable are outstanding
the financial condition of individual customers. Amdividual balance is charged to the allowance nhd collection efforts have be
exhausted and it is deemed likely to be uncolléstitaking into consideration the financial cormtitiof the customer and other factors.

Inventory— Inventory consists of merchandise sold on oursitebmerchandise sold at live events and DVDsfBits, which are sold v
a distributor to retailers. Substantially all ofrenventory is comprised of finished goods. Inventis stated at the lower of cost or market.
valuation of our inventories requires managemenmiéke market estimates assessing the quantitieshangdrices at which we believe
inventory can be sold.

Property and Equipment, Net Property and equipment are stated at historical @es of benefits associated with tax incentives
accumulated depreciation and amortization. Deptieciand amortization is computed on a straigte-basis over the estimated useful live
the assets or, when applicable, the life of thedeahichever is shorter. Vehicles and equipmentapreciated based on estimated useful
varying from three to five years. Buildings andatetl improvements are depreciated based on estimagdul lives varying from five to thirty-
nine years. Our corporate aircraft is depreciatest ten years on a straiglite basis less an estimated residual value. Ir'82@& purchased
new corporate aircraft which we refurbished anagdainto service in February 2014. It is being defated in the same manner as our pre'
corporate aircraft.

Feature Film Production Assets, Netkeature film production assets are recorded atdkeof production, including production overh
and net of production incentives. The costs fomaiividual film are amortized in the proportion thavenues bear to managemergstimate
of the ultimate revenue expected to be recognimad Exploitation, exhibition or sale. Unamortizedture film production assets are evalu
for impairment each reporting period. We review aedise estimates of ultimate revenue and partiicipacosts at each reporting periot
reflect the most current information availableestimates for a film’s
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (corued)

ultimate revenues and/or costs are revised andatelia significant decline in a filsyprofitability or if events or circumstances chariba
indicate we should assess whether the fair valwefitin is less than its unamortized film costs, eadculate the film's estimated fair value u:
a discounted cash flows model. If fair value isslésan the unamortized cost, the film is writterwdato fair value. Impairment charges
recorded as an increase in amortization expendadied in cost of revenues in the Consolidated States of Operations.

Our estimate of ultimate revenues for feature filndudes revenues from all sources for ten yeans the date of a filng initial releast
We estimate the ultimate revenues based on indasttyCompany specific trends, the historical penmice of similar films, the star powel
the lead actors, and the genre of the film. Poathe release of a feature film and throughoulifis we revise our estimates of revenues b
on expected future results, actual results and étth@wvn factors affecting the various distributimarkets.

Television Production Assets, Net Television production assets consist primarily pfsedic television series we have producec
distribution through a variety of platforms incladion our WWE Network. Amounts capitalized inclutievelopment costs, production ct
and production overhead. Costs to produce live tepmgramming are expensed when the event isbinsadcast. Costs to produce epis
programming for television or distribution on WWEetork are amortized in the proportion that reveniear to management's estimate
the ultimate revenue expected to be recognized &wpioitation, exhibition or sale. Unamortized tedton production assets are evaluatet
impairment each reporting period. If conditionsigade a potential impairment, and the estimatedréutash flows are not sufficient to recc
the unamortized asset, the asset is written dowfitovalue. In addition, if we determine that agram will not likely air, we expense 1
remaining unamortized asset.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets We periodically evaluate the carrying amountarfd-lived assets for impairment when events and
circumstances warrant such a review.

Investment Securities— We maintain several investments accounted for @& weethod investments. We evaluate our cost m
investments for impairment annually, and when fectodicate that a significant decrease in valuedeurred. Variables considered in ma
such assessments may include near-term prospedtee dhvestees, recent financing activities of ihneestees, and the investeesipita
structure as well as other economic variables, lwhéflect assumptions market participants wouldingaricing these assets. Our investm
are recorded at fair value only if an impairmerargfe is recognized. We record other-thamporary impairment charges for our cost me
investments in Loss on equity investments in thegobdated Statements of Operations.

Income Taxes— Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recogniipedthe expected future tax consequences of ewhatshave bee
reflected in the consolidated financial statemefiteounts are determined based on the differencegclea the book and tax bases of partic
assets and liabilities and operating loss carrwédods, using tax rates in effect for the years Imiclv the differences are expected to rever:
valuation allowance is provided to offset defertax assets if, based upon the available evidehi®more-likely-thamot that some or all
the deferred tax assets will not be realized. laleating our ability to recover our deferred tasets within the jurisdiction from which th
arise, we consider all available positive and riggatvidence, including scheduled reversals of edetax liabilities, projected future taxa
income, taxplanning strategies, and results of recent oparstiti we determine that we would be able to reatimr deferred tax assets in
future in excess of their net recorded amount, wealtmake an adjustment to the deferred tax asdeation allowance, which would redi
the provision for income taxes, conversely, if vededmine we might not be able to realize our defetax assets we would record a valu
allowance which would result in a change to thevjgion for income taxes.

We use a twastep approach to recognizing and measuring unpetéai positions. The first step is to evaluate pasitions taken «
expected to be taken in a tax return by assessireghar they are more likely than not sustainaldsed solely on their technical merits, u
examination, and including resolution of any refatgpeals or litigation process. The second stép measure the associated tax bene
each position, as the largest amount that we beiiewnore likely than not realizable. Differencegvieen the amount of tax benefits take
expected to be taken in our income tax returnste@@mount of tax
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (corued)

benefits recognized in our financial statementseggnt our unrecognized income tax benefits, whielrecord as a liability. Our policy is
include interest and penalties related to unreaghincome tax benefits as a component of incomexpense.

Revenue Recognition- Revenues are generally recognized when productshépped or as services are performed. However taltlec
nature of several of our business lines, theradditional steps in the revenue recognition procasslescribed below.

*  WWE Network Subscription

Revenues are recognized ratably over each montembarship period. Deferred revenue consists of meship fees billed to memb:
that have not been recognized and gift membershgihave not been redeemed.

e Pay-perview programming

Revenues from our pay-peiew programming are recorded when the event edaand are based upon our initial estimate of theber o
buys achieved. This initial estimate is based atimpinary buy information received from our pay-éew distributors. Final reconciliation
the pay-periew buys generally occurs within one year and anpsequent adjustments to the buys are recognizdtei period ne
information is received.

* Sponsorship

Through our sponsorship packages, we offer adeestia full range of our promotional vehicles, imthg online and print advertising, on-
air announcements and special appearances by qersgars. We allocate revenue to all deliverablestained within a sponsors|
arrangement based upon their relative selling pricemost instances, we determine relative selfinige used for allocating revenue t
specific deliverable using vendor specific objeetavidence ("WSOE"). VSOE is the selling price thatendor charges when it sells sirr
products or services on a stamdne basis. After allocating revenue to each dedible, we recognize revenue from our sponsc
arrangements when each element is delivered.

e Licensing

Revenues from our licensed products are recogniped receipt of reports from the individual licees¢hat detail the royalties gener:
by related product sales. If we receive licensidgaaces, such payments are recorded as deferreduwand are recognized as income \
earned.

 Home entertainmer

Revenues from the sales of home video titles arerded net of an allowance for estimated returnhealater of delivery by our distribu
to retailers, or the date that these products aadenwidely available for sale by retailers. Thewalince for estimated returns is base
historical information, current industry trends atemand for our titles.

* Magazine publishiny

Publishing newsstand revenues are recorded whemd#gazine is shipped, net of an allowance for eg8h returns. We estimate
allowance for newsstand returns based upon ouewesf historical return rates and the expectedgperénce of our current titles in relatior
prior issue return rates.

* TVrights:

Rights fees received from distributors of our ted@mn programming, both domestically and interradildy, are recorded when the progi
has been delivered to the distributor and is aklEl&or exhibition. Our typical distribution agreent is between one and five years in le
and frequently provides for contractual increasesr @s term. Expenses incurred in the productibow weekly television programming i
expensed when the programming is first availabtefdibition.

Included in Non-current deferred income is $ 46.i8ion related to an advance payment associated withement domestic televisi
rights deal.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (corued)
* Films:

Revenue recognition for our feature films variepataling on the method of distribution and the extdrcontrol the Company exerci:
over the distribution and related expenses. Wecgsesignificant control over our salfstributed films and as a result, we record disttior
revenue and related expenses on a gross basis fimaocial statements. Thirparty distribution partners control the distributiand marketin
of our licensed films, and as a result, we recagn@&enue on a net basis after the tipiadty distributor recoups distribution fees andenge
and results have been reported to us. This tygicaturs in periods subsequent to the initial ideaf the film. Revenues generated from
films through the various distribution channelscliding home video, video-otlemand and television are recognized consisterit thi
policies described above.

Cost of Revenues- Included within cost of revenues is the amortizatamd impairments of feature film and televisiondarction asset
We amortize feature film production assets basedhenestimated future cash flows. Television préidncassets are amortized when
episode is first broadcast on television. Unamedifeature film and television production asseésewaluated for impairment each repot
period. Cost of revenues also includes the the tiration of costs related to content delivery amchnology utilized for our WWE Netwol
These costs are amortized on a straight line loagisthe term of the respective service agreenvgatbegan amortizing these costs follov
the launch of WWE Network on February 24, 2014.

Included within Costs of revenues are the following

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Amortization and impairment of feature film assets $ 551t $  19,05¢ $ 8,79¢
Amortization of television productions assets 25,86 7,012 —
Amortization of Network content delivery and teclogy 2,30z — —
Total amortization and impairment included in castsevenues $ 33,68: $ 26,07C $ 8,79¢

Programming Amortization for WWE Network For episodic programming debuting and currentlyeexed to air exclusively on W\
Network, the cost of the programming is expenseshupitial release, as our expectation is thatuwagt majority of viewership will occur
close proximity to the initial release. We will nitor this assumption and revise this policy if attuiewership patterns vary.

Film and Television Production Incentives The Company has access to various governmentatgmsgthat are designed to promote
and television production within the United Statewl certain international jurisdictions. Tax credifarned with respect to expenditure:
qualifying film, television and other productiontizdties, including qualifying capital projects,eamcluded as an offset to the related asset
an offset to production expenses when we have nahk$® assurance regarding the realizable amouhedéx credits.

Advertising Expense- Advertising costs are expensed as incurred, eXoeqtosts related to the development of a majorroencial o
media campaign which are expensed in the perioghich the commercial or campaign is first presenteat the years endddecember 3:
2014 , 2013 and 2012, we recorded advertisingresgreof $30,198 , $3,819 and $3,934 , respectively.

Foreign Currency Translation— For the translation of the financial statementswf foreign subsidiaries whose functional currence
not U.S. Dollars, assets and liabilities are tratesl at the yeagnhd exchange rate, and income statement accowntsaaslated at montt
average exchange rates for the year. The resultangslation adjustments are recorded in accumulatédr comprehensive income
component of stockholdersuity and also in comprehensive income. Foreigreagy transactions are recorded at the exchatgg@ravailing
at the transaction date, with any gains/lossesdecbin other income/expense.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (corued)

Stock-Based Compensatien Equity awards are granted to directors, officamd employees of the Company. Sthased compensati
costs associated with our restricted stock unRSUs") are determined using the fair market valuta® Company's common stock on the
of the grant. These costs are recognized overabeigite service period using the graded vestinthatk net of estimated forfeitures. R¢
have a service requirement typically over a threg@ne half year vesting schedule and vest in eaqualial installments.

Stockbased compensation costs associated with our peafare stock units ("PSUs") are initially determinesthg the fair market value
the Company's common stock on the date the awaedapproved by our Compensation Committee (sefiviception date). The vesting
these PSUs is subject to certain performance donditand a service requirement of three and oné yedrs. Until such time as
performance conditions are met, stock compensatists associated with these PSUs amaeasured each reporting period based upon tt
market value of the Company's common stock andpthbability of attainment on the reporting dateeTditimate number of PSUs that
issued to an employee is the result of the acteidbpmance of the Company at the end of the peidoa period compared to the perform:
conditions. Stock compensation costs for our PSidsrecognized over the requisite service periodgishe graded vesting method, ne
estimated forfeitures. Unvested PSUs accrue diddsguivalents once the performance conditions aeanthe same rate as are paid or
shares of Class A common stock. The dividend edpiivg are subject to the same vesting scheduleeasnderlying PSUSs.

We estimate forfeitures, based on historical tremden recognizing compensation expense and adjeststimate of forfeitures when tl
are expected to differ or as forfeitures occur.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)- Basic EPS is calculated by dividing net income ly Wweighted average common shares outstandingg
the period. Diluted EPS is calculated by dividingt imcome by the weighted average common sharetaoding during the period, p
dilutive potential common shares which is calcudatesing the treasury-stock method. Under the trgestock method, potential comn
shares are excluded from the computation of ER®iiiods in which they have an anti-dilutive effect.

Net income per share of Class A and Class B comstmok is computed in accordance with a wlass method of earnings allocation.
such, any undistributed earnings for each periedaliocated to each class of common stock basebeoproportionate share of cash divide
that each class is entitled to receive. The Compdidynot compute earnings per share using the t@sscmethod for the years en
December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 201as there were no undistributed earnings durirgpériods. Also, during 2014, 2013 and 2012
dividends declared and paid per share of ClassddCiass B common stock were the same.

Recent Accounting Pronounceme

In January 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Stadsl&ipdate No. 2015-01, [hcome Statemertixtraordinary and Unusual Iter
" (Topic 225). This ASU updated the accounting guidaretated to extraordinary and unusual items hyiekting the concept of extraordin
items. In addition, disclosure guidance for itefmet tare unusual in nature or occur infrequently gl retained and will be expanded to incl
items that are both unusual in nature and infretipercurring. This standard update is effective fiecal years, and interim periods wit
those fiscal years, beginning after December 1852With early adoption permitted. We early adoptteid accounting standard update &
December 31, 2014, which did not have a materfatebn our consolidated financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Stanslddgpdate No. 2014-15, Presentation of Financial Statemer@®ing Concer
(Subtopic 205-40): Disclosure of Uncertainties aban Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Conger This ASU requires that managen
evaluate, and, if required, disclose conditions\wents that raise substantial doubt about theyémnibility to continue as a going concern.
guidance is effective for the first annual periodii@g after December 15, 2016, and interim pertbdseafter. This standard update is effe
for our fiscal year beginning of January 1, 201 &ve currently evaluating timpact of the adoption of this new standard onanmnsolidate
financial statements.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share data)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (corued)

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards lo@FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update R@14-09,“ Revenue fro
Contracts with Customers (Topic 606)This ASU will supersede the revenue recognitiequirements in ASC 605, “Revenue Recognitjon
and most industrgpecific guidance. The ASU requires an entity togmize revenue in an amount that reflects theiderstion to which th
entity expects to receive in exchange for goods or sesvitieis guidance is effective for annual reporfiegiods beginning after December
2016 andearly adoption is not permitted. This standard tpds effective for our fiscal year beginning ohdary 1, 2017. We are currer
evaluating the impact of the adoption of this néandard on our consolidated financial statements.

In April 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standatdfsdate No. 2014-08, Presentation of Financial Statements (Topic 205)
Property, Plant, and Equipment (Topic 360): RepaytDiscontinued Operations and Disclosures of Dés® of Components of an Entil.
This ASUupdated the accounting guidance related to diswoadi operations. The updated accounting guidarmadas a narrower definitic
of discontinued operations than existing GAAP. Theatpd accounting guidance requires that only didpasacomponents of an entity,
groups of components, that represent a stratediclisat has or will have a material effect on tle@orting entityS operations be reported in
financial statements as discontinued operations. The updatedunting guidance also provides guidance on thendial stateme
presentations andisclosures of discontinued operations. On Julg0ll4, we early adopted this accounting standaratepahich did not ha
a material effect on our consolidated financialestaents.

3. Earnings Per Share

For purposes of calculating basic and dilutechiegs per share, we used the following weightedaye common shares outstanding
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Net (loss) income $ (30,077 $ 2,76¢ $ 31,43
Weighted- average basic common shares outstanding 75,29 74,93¢ 74,59¢
Dilutive effect of restricted and performance stockts — (@ 43¢ 37¢
Dilutive effect of employee share purchase plan — (a) 2 7
Weighted- average dilutive common shares outstandin 75,29¢ 75,37¢ 74,98
(Loss) earnings per share:
Basic $ (0.40) $ 0.0¢ $ 0.4z
Diluted $ (0.40) $ 0.0¢ $ 0.4z
Anti-dilutive outstanding options (excluded fromryghare calculations) — — 2
Anti-dilutive outstanding restricted and performarstock units (excluded from per-shar
calculations) 80 39¢ —

(a) Due to a loss for the year, zero incrementateshare included because the effect would beikanitie.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share data)

4. Investment Securities and Short-Term Investments

Investment Securitie

WWE maintains several cost method investments. @mncM 14, 2014, the Company invested $2,00@eries E Preferred Stock ¢
software application developer. On May, 30, 2018, made an investment of $2,2B0a live event touring business. On June 25, 2i¢
Company invested $5,000 in Series B Preferred Shtock mobile video publishing business, ("Investtt)erand entered into a twgeal
strategic partnership during which time WWE recdil,758in common stock. In July 2014 this Investment &igd a convertible nc
financing arrangement, and as part of that finap®AVE increased its cash investment another $20d (“July financing”).The result of th
July financing was a change in WWE's ownership ahimon shares, preferred stock and convertible ndtks evaluate our cost mett
investments for impairment if factors indicate thatignificant decrease in value has occurred. fesalt of the July financing we performec
analysis to reassess the fair value of this Investrdue to the change in the capital structurerandrded an impairment charge of $3,962
the excess of the carrying value over the estimiigdvalue of $3,000 No additional indicators of impairment were nothating the ye:
ended December 31, 2014. The Company did not remmydmpairment charge on these assets duringgaesyended December 31, 2Gi&
2012 . Investment Securities in our ConsolidatethBze Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013oamprised of $7,200 and $8,299
respectively, related to these cost method investsne

Short-Term Investments:

Short-term investments measured at fair value stetsiof the following:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Gain (Loss) Value Cost Gain (Loss) Value

Municipal bonds $ 19,96: $ 33 % 9 $ 19,99: $ 44,63t $ 17¢ % 91) $ 44,72
Corporate bonds 43,38¢ 20 (199 43,20¢ 31,82¢ 104 (1749 31,75¢
Government agency
bonds 5,00( — (15) 4,98¢ — — — —

Total $ 68,35( $ 59 $ (2239 $ 68,18t $ 76,46. $ 28C $ (265) $  76,47¢

We classify the investments listed in the abovdetas available-fosale securities. Such investments consist primanilgorporate
municipal bonds, including pnefunded municipal bonds, and government agencd$iorhese investments are stated at fair valuecasrec
by the applicable accounting guidance. Unrealize&idggand losses on such securities are reflectdhfrtax, as other comprehensive inc
(loss) in the Consolidated Statements of Comprethemscome.

Our municipal, corporate and government agency daré included in Shoterm investments, net on our Consolidated Balartoeets
Realized gains and losses on investments are iegdlidearnings and are derived using the sped#éatification method for determining 1
cost of securities sold. As of December 31, 20d@ntractual maturities of these bonds are as falow

Maturities
Municipal bonds 1 month -4 year
Corporate bonds 1 month -4 year:
Government agency bonds 3 years
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share data)

4. Investment Securities and Short-Term Investmentécontinued)

The following table summarizes the short-term itwest activity:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Proceeds from sale of short-term investments $ 2257 $ 2,79 $ 16,48¢
Proceeds from maturities and calls of short-termestiments $ 19,66 $ 41528 $ 28,70
Gross realized (losses) gains on sale of short-t@vestments $ 37 $ 1 3 19¢

5. Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is determined based on the exchange firat would be received to sell an asset or foaithnsfer a liability in the principal
most advantageous market for the asset or lialilign orderly transaction between market partitipat the measurement date. Fair valut
marketbased measurement based on assumptions that "rparkietpants” would use to price the asset oiilligbAccordingly, the framewor
considers markets or observable inputs as the rpeefesource of value followed by assumptions bamedypothetical transactions, in
absence of market inputs. The fair value shoulddleulated based on assumptions that market paatits would use in pricing the asse
liability, not on assumptions specific to the entitn addition, the fair value of assets and lidiles should include consideration of non
performance risk including the Company’s own creidit.

Additionally, the accounting guidance establishethr@elevel hierarchy that ranks the quality and religpibf information used i
developing fair value estimates. The hierarchy gitiee highest priority to quoted prices in activarkets and the lowest priority
unobservable data. In cases where two or morededfeinputs are used to determine fair value, arfaial instrument's level is determi
based on the lowest level input that is considesigdificant to the fair value measurement in itsirety. The three levels of the fair va
hierarchy are summarized as follows:

Level 1- quoted prices in active markets for titead assets or liabilities;

Level 2- quoted prices in active markets for similar asseis liabilities and inputs that are observabletfier asset ¢
liability; or

Level 3- unobservable inputs, such as discourastl §ow models or valuations

The following assets are required to be measuréalratalue on a recurring basis and the clasgificawithin the hierarchy was as follow

Fair Value at December 31, 2014 Fair Value at December 31, 2013
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Municipal bonds $ 19,99 $ — $ 1999 $ — $ 4472 % — $ 4472 % =
Corporate bonds 43,20¢ — 43,20¢ — 31,75¢ — 31,75¢ —
Government agency bond 4,98¢ — 4,98¢ — — — — —
Total $ 68,18 $ — $ 68,18 $ — $ 76,47¢ $ — $ 76,47¢ $ —

Certain financial instruments are carried at costhe Consolidated Balance Sheets, which approgsniair value due to their shdgrm
highly liquid nature. The carrying amounts of casid cash equivalents, money market accounts, atcoeceivable and accounts pay:
approximate fair value because of the short-tertaraaf such instruments.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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5. Fair Value Measurement (continued)

We have classified our investments in municipatpocate and government agency bonds within Lewas their valuation requires quo
prices for similar instruments in active marketgotgd prices for identical or similar instrumemnsnarkets that are not active and/or mode
based valuation techniques for which all significeputs are observable in the market or can beoborated by observable market data.
municipal, corporate and government agency bondsvalued based on modgfiven valuations. A third party service providessists th
Company with compiling market prices from a variefyindustry standard data sources, security mdisrfrom large financial institutio
and other thirdparty sources that are used to value our municguaporate and government agency bond investm&éhts.Company did n
have any transfers between Level 1, Level 2 an@éL&¥air value investments during the periods @nésd.

The fair value measurements of our investment #&srwhich are recorded under the cost method,ctassifiedwithin Level 3 a
significant unobservable inputs are used to falueahese assets due to the absence of quoted ihpaiges and inherent lack of liquidi
Significant unobservable inputs include variableshsas nearerm prospects of the investees, recent financutigiges of the investees, a
the investeestapital structure as well as other economic vagsblvhich reflect assumptions market participantsild use in pricing the
assets. Our investments are recorded at fair vablyeif an impairment charge is recognized. Durthg year ended December 31, 2Q1He
Company recorded an impairment charge of $3@62he Investment for the excess of the carryinlgevaver the estimated fair value
$3,000 . The Company did not record any impairncharge on these assets during the years ended bec8ty 201&nd December 31, 20:

The Company's long lived property and equipmezdiure film and television production assets ageired to be measured at fair ve
on a nonrecurring basis if it is determined that indicatofsmpairment exist. These assets are record&dratalue only when an impairmen
recognized. During the year ended December 31, 2@1& Company recorded an adjustment of $1{6d@duce the carrying value of our
corporate aircraft to its estimated fair value aecbrded an impairment charge of $1,T8lated to a change in business strategy related:
gamification platform. During the years ended Delbem31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company reconugairment charges of $1,476
$11,661 and $1,229 on feature film production asbased upon fair value measurements of $1,8486%$2 and $1,657 respectively. Se
Note 7,Feature Film Production Assetsfor further discussion. The Company classifiesséhfair values as Level 3 within the fair vi
hierarchy due to significant unobservable inputise Tompany utilizes a discounted cash flows modealdgtermine the fair value of the
impaired films where indicators of impairment exiBhe significant unobservable inputs to this maatel the Compang’expected cash floy
for the film, including projected home video salpay and free TV sales and international sales,aadiscount rate of 13%hat we estima
market participants would seek for bearing the dskociated with such assets. The Company utiizemidependent third party valuat
specialist who assists us in gathering the necgsgants used in our model.

The fair value of the Company's lotgrm debt, consisting of a promissory note payablBBS Asset Finance, Inc., is estimated b
upon quoted price estimates for similar debt areaments. At December 31, 2014 , the face amouititeofibte approximates its fair value.
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(In thousands, except per share data)
6. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

As of December 31,

2014 2013

Land, buildings and improvements $ 106,05¢ $ 106,74¢
Equipment 107,75: 107,30!
Corporate aircrafts 31,275 51,757
Vehicles 244 244
245,33: 266,05!

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (131,28, (132,57Y
Total $ 114,04¢  $ 133,48(

Depreciation expense for property and equipmemtedt$25,059 , $22,906 and $19,151 , for the yeaded December 31, 201201:
and 2012 respectively. During 2014, the Company receigeddredits relating to our infrastructure improversein conjunction with capit
projects to support our increased content prodnatiforts. Depreciation expense for the year eridedember 31, 201#eflects a benefit «
$1,492from the recognition of the infrastructure tax dtewted above. The credit was used to reducedhyiag value of the assets as of t
in-service date and consequently the adjustment teedigpion expense reflects the revised amount feduio date. The credit was receive
the current year, but related to assets placedririce in prior years. The Company sold its oldoooate aircraft, in the third quarter of 2014
anticipation of that sale depreciation expensdédurrent year includes an adjustment of $1t60@duce the carrying value of the asset 1
estimated fair value. Depreciation expense alstudtes an impairment charge of $1,7%Tated to a change in business strategy durind
related to our gamification platform. See Note R8structuring Chargdor further details.

7. Feature Film Production Assets, Net

Feature film production assets consisted of theviehg:

As of December 31,

2014 2013
Feature film productions:
In release $ 12,06: $ 9,41:
Completed but not released 3,86¢ 3,13(
In production 10,03¢ 2,68¢
In development 507 78¢
Total $ 26,47. $ 16,01¢

Approximately 42% of “In release” film productiossets are estimated to be amortized over the Rextdhths and approximately 7286
“In release” film production assets are estimatebd amortized over the next three years. We aatieiamortizing 80%f our "In release" filr
production assets within five years as we recedw@mues associated with television distributiomwf licensed films. During the years en
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, we amortized83,$7,397 and $6,525 , respectively, of featiline froduction assets.

During the year ended December 31, 2014 , we redeare feature film via theatrical distributigd¢ulus, and five films direct to DVL
Scooby Doo! WrestleMania Mystery, Leprechaun: @sgiSee No Evil 2, Queens of the RamglJingle All the

F-18




WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share data)

7. Feature Film Production Assets, Net (continued)

Way 2.These five films comprise $5,907 of our "In reléateature film assets as of December 31, 2014 . Thmpanyentered into €
agreement to co-distribute the feature flRnad to Paloma This film was released via a limited theatricalease and on DVD in July 20
Third-party distributors control the distributioncdamarketing of these films, and as a result, weggize revenue on a net basis after the thir
party distributor recoups distribution fees andenges and results are reported to us. Resulty@ioalty reported to us in periods subseq

to the initial release of the film.

During the year ended December 31, 2013 , we redbtisee feature films via theatrical distributioNo One Lives The CallandDeac
Man Downand one made-for television filmGhristmas BountyThese four films comprise $1,616 of our “In rel€af@ature film assets, as
December 31, 2014 . We also released two featuns fil2 Rounds 2: Reloadethd The Marine 3: Homefrondirect to DVD during the ye
ended December 31, 2013, which comprise $1,5%UL0fIn release" feature film assets as of DecerBthef014 .

Unamortized feature film production assets arewatald for impairment each reporting period. Weeevand revise estimates of ultim
revenue and participation costs at each reportamipg to reflect the most current information azhle. If estimates for a filrs’ ultimate
revenue and/or costs are revised and indicateréfisant decline in a films profitability or if events or circumstances charbat indicate w
should assess whether the fair value of a filmessIthan its unamortized film costs, we calculate fims' estimated fair value using
discounted cash flows model. If fair value is I&gn unamortized cost, the film is written dowrfao value.

We recorded impairment charges $1,476 , $11,6611%4,229 related to our feature films during tle@arg ended December 31, 2014
2013 and 2012, respectively. These impairmentgasarepresent the excess of the recorded netmgwglue over the estimated fair value.

We currently have four theatrical films designatesd“Completed but not releasedid have five films "In Production". We have
capitalized certain script development costs faious other film projects designated as “In develept”. Capitalized script development cc
are evaluated at each reporting period for impamtnand to determine if a project is deemed to bandbned. During the years en
December 31, 2014 , and 2012, we expensed $33%h8d5related to previously capitalized development cadt@bandoned projec
respectively. We did not incur any comparable egpsrior the year ended December 31, 2013 .

8. Television Production Assets, Net

Television production assets consisted of the fahg:

As of December 31,

2014 2013
Television productions:
In release $ 1,038 % 1,36¢
Completed but not released 1,25¢ —
In production 3,53¢ 9,407
Total $ 583 $ 10,77

F-19






WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share data)

8. Television Production Assets, Net (continued)

Television production assets consist primarily pisedic television series we have produced foritistion through a variety of platforr
including on our WWE Network. Amounts capitalizedtlude development costs, production costs, pramluciverhead and employee sala
We have $5,832 and $10,772 capitalized as of DeeeBth 2014 and 201,3espectively, related to this type of programmi@gsts to produr
our live event programming are expensed when teates first broadcast. Costs to produce episodigiamming for television or distributi
on WWE Network are amortized in the proportion thewenues bear to management's estimates of timeatdt revenue expected to
recognized from exploitation, exhibition or saler Ehe year ended December 31, 2014 , we amori2&B670of television production asse
of which $13,148 were related to Network programgramd $12,719%ere related to Television programming. During year ended Decemt
31, 2013, we amortized $7,012 of television promuncassets related to the airings of the new teleniseriesTotal Divas. We did not incL
any comparable expenses for the year ended Dec&hp2012.

Unamortized television production assets are et@tlifor impairment each reporting period. If coiwis indicate a potential impairme
and the estimated future cash flows are not sefficio recover the unamortized asset, the asseitten down to fair value. In addition, if \
determine that a program will not likely air, wellwirite-off the remaining unamortized asset. Dagrithe years ended December 31, 2014
2013 and 2012, we did not record any impairmeréted to our television production assets.

9. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consisthd @dllowing:

As of December 31,

2014 2013

Trade related $ 6,721 $ 8,56t
Staff related 6,55¢ 5,58(
Management incentive compensation 13,27¢ 5,711
Talent related 6,44¢ 6,30¢
Accrued WWE Network related expenses 5,15¢ 2,471
Accrued event and television production 5,612 4,42¢
Accrued home entertainment expenses 953 1,341
Accrued legal and professional 1,48: 1,90:
Accrued purchases of property and equipment 1,45z 1,70C
Accrued film liability 2,521 2,65¢
Accrued other 7,39¢ 7,21¢

Total $ 57,57¢ % 47,88

Accrued other includes accruals for our internatloand licensing business activities, as well deiomiscellaneous accruals, non
which categories individually exceeds Sffocurrent liabilities. The increase in accruedenges is primarily due to an increase in manage
incentive compensation based on Company performamddor various accrued expenses related to WWiadik operations.
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10. Debt

Aircraft Financing

On August 7, 2013, the Company entered into a $&8Lpgsomissory note (the “Notelyith RBS Asset Finance, Inc., for the purchase
2007 Bombardier Global 5000 aircraft and refurbishts. The Note bears interest at a rate of 2.p&8oannum, is payable in mont
installments of $406 inclusive of interest, beginning in September2@hd has a final maturity of August 7, 2020. ThateNis secured by
first priority perfected security interest in thewly purchased aircraft. As of December 31, 201d 2013, the amount outstanding under
Note was$25,920 and $29,636 , respectively.

As of December 31, 2014, the scheduled principadyments under our Note obligation for the subsetfiee years and the remain
term of the note thereafter are as follows:

December 31, 2015 $ 4,34¢
December 31, 2016 4,44(
December 31, 2017 4,53¢
December 31, 2018 4,63¢
December 31, 2019 4,74(
Thereafter 3,21¢

$ 25,92(

The table above assumes that the Note will notrepgid prior to its maturity on August 7, 2020.

Revolving Credit Facility

In September 2011, the Company entered into a $208enior unsecured revolving credit facility withymndicated group of banks, w
JPMorgan Chase acting as administrative agent.iéglge interest rates for the borrowings underréwolving credit facility are based on
Company's current consolidated leverage ratio. fA3ewember 31, 2014 , the LIBOR-based rate plugimavas 2.51% The Company is al:
required to pay a commitment fee calculated atepar annum of 0.375%n the average daily unused portion of the crediilify. Under th:
terms of the revolving credit facility, the Compaigysubject to certain financial covenants andrie&ins, including restrictions on our abil
to pay dividends and limitations with respect to mdebtedness, liens, mergers and acquisitiospoditions of assets, investments, ca
expenditures, and transactions with affiliates.

In April 2013, the Company amended and restatedrekielving credit facility. Under the terms of tlaenended credit facility, (i) t
maturity date was extended to September 9, 2006&hanges were made to the applicable margin éorawings under the facility, and (i
restrictions on certain financial covenants wereaded to provide for greater financial flexibility.

On May 1, 2014, the Company entered into a FirseAdment to its Amended and Restated Credit Fa¢ititye Amendment™) and furth
modified certain financial covenants to provide fgreater financial flexibility. The Amendment, angomther things, (a) adjusted
consolidated EBITDA calculation for the four qualyeperiods in 2014 and the first and second qusioé 2015 by permitting the adihck o
WWE Network Expenses subject to specified maximumounts in such periods, (b) increased the congelid&BITDA calculation by tt
amount of any net investments in respect of fediilmeproduction, subject to specified maximum amtsufor the quarters ended Septer
30, 2014 and December 31, 2(ddd (c) reduced the consolidated fixed charge emeratio for four quarters in 2014 and the fingd fjuarter
in 2015 such that the consolidatieced charge coverage ratio may not be less thari.D. for the respective quarterly periods endedcMa1
2014, June 30, 2014, September 30, 2014 and Dece3thb2014, increasing to 1.10:1.0 for the quaetating March 31, 2015, to 1.15:1.0
the quarter ending June 30, 2015, and to 1.25dt.¢he quarter ending September 30, 20IBhe Amendment also includes certain additi
allowances for the Company to make investmentgétial film entities.
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10. Debt (continued)

As of December 31, 2014the Company was in compliance with the provisiohthe Amendment and has available debt capacitiel
the terms of the revolving credit facility of apginmately $169,000 . As of December 31, 2014 and32there were no amounts outstant

under the credit facility.
11. Income Taxes
For the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 a2, 2@ were taxed on our (loss) income from contigwperations at an effective

rate of 39.0% , 39.9% and 26.4% , respectively. i@eome tax (benefit)/provision for the years enfetember 31, 2014 , 2013 and 200
$(19,232) , $1,839 and $11,252 , respectively,iaddded federal, state and foreign taxes.

The components of our tax provision are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Current taxes:

Federal $ 506 $ (2,407 $ (400)

State and local (335 162 66

Foreign 6,07¢ 5,50¢€ 5,40:
Deferred taxes:

Federal (23,109 (725) 6,15(

State and local (2,365 (680) 34

Foreign (6) () @
Total income tax (benefit) expense $  (1923) $ 183 $ 11,25

Within the current foreign tax provision is appnmately $5,724 , $5,340 and $5,286foreign withholding taxes paid on income incld
within the US preax book income below. The prior years balanceswevised to reclassify these amounts from curfiestgral tax provisia

to current foreign tax provision.
Components of (loss) income before income taxessfellows:

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
$ (49,809 $ 4,011 $ 42,39°
504 592 287
$ (49,304 $ 4,60 $ 42,68«

United States
Foreign
Total loss (income) before income taxes
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11. Income Taxes (continued)

The following sets forth the difference between thenefit)/provision for income taxes computedhat U.S. federal statutory income
rate of 35% and that reported for financial stateinpeirposes:

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
Statutory U.S. federal tax at 35% $ (17,256 $ 1,611 $ 14,93¢

Foreign rate differential (34) (29) (32)

Qualified production activity deduction 39 (94) (854)

Meals and entertainment 297 257 19¢

Property and equipment depreciation 63E —

(299

(Benefit)/Provision for income taxes $ (1923) % 1,83¢ § 11,25:

The tax effects of temporary differences that gige to significant portions of the deferred tagets and deferred tax liabilities consit
of the following:

As of December 31,
2014 2013

Deferred tax assets:

Inventory 3,79¢ 4,76¢

Stock options/stock compensation 2,551 1,96¢

Investments 71 3

Accrued liabilities and reserves 474 51¢

Deferred tax assets, gross 38,44 19,19¢

Deferred tax assets, net 37,037 17,68«

Property and equipment depreciation (1,729 (5,179

Investments (16) (3)

Total deferred tax assets, net $ 35,03t $ 9,55¢
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11. Income Taxes (continued)

The temporary differences described above reprefifatences between the tax basis of assets bilifies and amounts reported in
consolidated financial statements that will resmltaxable or deductible amounts in future yeargmvthe reported amounts of the asse
liabilities are recovered or settled. The Compasgeived tax deductions from the exercise of rastiistock units and performance stock t
of $5,459 , $3,939 and $2,747 in 2014, 2013 an@ 2@&kpectively.

As of December 31, 2014 , we had $24,120 of defetag assets, net, included in current assets a6gP$5 included in noourren
income tax assets in our consolidated balance shAstof December 31, 2013 we had $12,287deferred tax assets, net, included in
current assets and $2,681 of deferred tax liaddljthet, included in nocurrent income tax liabilities in our consolidatealance sheets. T
large increase in our deferred tax asset balansedwaen by our operating loss in the current yaat associated net operating loss and fo
tax credit carryforwards.

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013 , we had valuailowances of $1,410 and $1,5fE&pectively, to reduce our deferred tax asseds
amount more likely than not to be recovered. Thikiation allowance relates to foreign income teexed the resulting net operating losse
foreign jurisdictions where we have ceased opearatio

The Company considers all available evidence, potitive and negative, to determine whether, basethe weight of that evidence
valuation allowance is required to reduce the mdé¢mled tax assets to the amount that is moreylittedn not to be realized in future peric
The Company believes that based on past performanpected future taxable income and prudent aasilike tax planning strategies, i
more likely than not that the net deferred tax &sedll be realized. Changes in these factors nsyse us to increase our valuation allow:
on deferred tax assets, which would impact ournimedax expense in the period we determine thaetfazdors have changed.

As of December 31, 2014 , the Company had a tét&86(®67 of foreign tax credit carryforwards, available tifset future U.S. incon
taxes. As of December 31, 2014 , the tax creditshegin to expire at various times in 2023 throl#f)24. As of December 31, 2014he
Company had recorded tax benefits totaling $31ft0Gederal, State, and foreign net operating tassyforwards (“NOLs”). As of Decembe
31, 2014, the NOLs will begin to expire at varigimses in 2019 through 2034.

We are subject to periodic audits of our variausreturns by government agencies which could résydossible tax liabilities. Althoug
the outcome of these matters cannot currently berméned, we believe the outcome of these audiisnet have a material effect on «
financial statements.

U.S. income taxes have not been provided for garagimately $5,227f unremitted earnings of our international sulssigis. Thes
earnings are expected to be indefinitely reinvesteztseas. It is not practical to compute the exttioh deferred tax liability on these earni
Any additional U.S. taxes payable on the remairfioigign earnings, if remitted, would be substahtiaffset by credits for foreign tax
already paid.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

For the year ended December 31, 2014 , we recay$i4890f previously unrecognized tax benefits. This pritgaelates to the statute
limitations expiring in certain state and localigglictions. Included in the amount recognized wéé @& potential interest and penalties rel:
to uncertain tax positions. For the year ended ez 31, 2013 , we recognized $3¥0previously unrecognized tax benefits relatinghe
statute of limitations expiring in certain statedaocal jurisdictions. Included in the amount recizgd was $32f potential interest ai
penalties related to uncertain tax positions. Td@gnition of these amounts contributed to ourctiffe tax rate of 39.0%or the year ende
December 31, 2014 as compared to 39.9% for thegreded December 31, 2013 .

At December 31, 2014 , we had $1,2013unrecognized tax benefits, which if recognizeauld affect our effective tax rate. Of t
amount, $69 is classified in Prepaid expense aner @urrent assets and the remaining $1,204 isifietsin Noneurrent income tax liabilitie
At December 31, 2013 , we had $1,786 of unrecogniag benefits. Of this amount $1®&!classified in Prepaid expense and other cL
assets and the remaining $1,612 was classifiedmduirrent income tax liabilities.



F-24




WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share data)

11. Income Taxes (continued)

Unrecognized tax benefit activity is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

Beginning Balance- January 1 $ 1,78¢ $ 2,12¢ % 10,73
Increase to unrecognized tax benefits recordegdsitions taken during the current yeal 68 10¢ 307
(Decrease) Increase to unrecognized tax beneitsded for positions taken during a prior

period (38) 3 (2,599
Decrease in unrecognized tax benefits relatingtibesnents with taxing authorities (200 (28) (5,799
Decrease to unrecognized tax benefits resulting fadapse of the applicable statute of

limitations (443) (419 (528
Ending Balance- December 31 $ 1270 % 1,78¢ 2,12¢

We recognize potential accrued interest and p@satglated to uncertain tax positions in incomeempense. We have $3%% accrue
interest and $120 of accrued penalties relateditertain tax positions as of December 31, 2014th€$e amounts, $14 classified in Prepa
expense and other current assets and the rema&dt) was classified in Nocurrent income tax liabilities. At December 31, 20%ve ha
$453 of accrued interest and $171 of accrued pesatlated to uncertain tax positions.

Of this amount, $33 was classified in Prepaid expeand other current assets and the remaining\$&9Zlassified in Nomurrent incom
tax liabilities.

Based upon the expiration of statutes of limitadiand possible settlements in several jurisdictiamesbelieve it is reasonably possible
the total amount of previously unrecognized taxdfigh may decrease by approximately $566 withimtihths after December 31, 2014 .

We file income tax returns in the United States wadous state, local, and foreign jurisdictionsiring 2014, the Company settled au
with various state, local, and foreign jurisdicoWe are subject to examination by the IRS, antl f&w exceptions, other state and I
jurisdictions, for years ending on or after Decentify 2011

12. Film and Television Production Incentives

The Company has access to various governmentatgmsgthat are designed to promote film and telemigroduction within the United Sta
and certain international jurisdictions. Incentivearned with respect to expenditures on qualifyfitg, television and other producti
activities, including qualifying capital projectse included as an offset to the related asset anaffset to production expenses when we
reasonable assurance regarding the realizable anofuhe incentives. Film and television productimeentives received consisted of
following:

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Feature film production incentives $ 4,548 % 864 $ 1,857
Television production incentives $ 1083 $ 10,34¢ ¢ 7,97¢

During the year ended December 31, 2014 , we rede$3,08Cor infrastructure improvement incentives relattngqualifying capital project
Of this amount $2,937was recorded as a reduction in property and eggrnp. We did not receive any similar incentivestfoe years end:
December 31, 2013 and 2012.
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13. Restructuring Charge

During 2014, the Company announced a restructypiag in support of a cost cutting initiative. Indld in this restructuring was the shutd:
of our magazine publishing business, a shift in gamification strategy, and a reduction in our loeaht. Additionally, the cost cultti
initiatives included reducing prospective spendimgpughout our operations. The Company recordedeatimne pretax restructuring charge
approximately $4,200 in the third quarter of 20&dmprised primarily of a cash charge of approxiiya$2,000for severance costs and
write-down of certain assets associated with ounifieation business resulting in a non-cash charfgapproximately $1,800 The severan
costs are recorded in Selling, General and Adnmatiste expenses in our Consolidated Statementpefd@ions. Approximately $1,7Qd casl
spend related to severance and other restructoniagges was paid out in the second half of 2014vwandxpect that a majority of the remair
liability will be paid out during the first quartef 2015.

14. Commitments and Contingencies

We have certain commitments, including various naneelable operating leases for facilities andssaffices, service contracts w
certain vendors and various talent.

Future minimum payments as of December 31, 2014émuheé agreements described above were as follows:

Operating Talent and Service
Lease Other Agreement
Commitments Commitments Commitments Total
2015 $ 459¢ $ 11,95 $ 9,49: $ 26,04«
2016 3,24: 9,67¢ — 12,91¢
2017 1,88¢ 7,635 — 9,51¢
2018 1,71¢ 1,99¢ — 3,71«
2019 1,64( 1,99¢ — 3,63t
Thereafter 2,044 2,55¢ — 4,60(
Total $ 15,12¢ $ 35,80¢ $ 9,49: $ 60,43(

Rent expense under operating lease commitmentedd$6,583 , $5,405 and $4,608 for the years efmember 31, 2014 , 20HEc
2012 , respectively.

Legal Proceeding:

On July 26, 2014, the Company received notice lafwsuit filed in the United States District Couet tthe District of Connecticut, entitl
Warren Ganues and Dominic Varriale, on behalf efrikelves and all others similarly situated, v. \W&trestling Entertainment, Inc., Vinci
K. McMahon and George A. Barrigsalleging violations of federal securities lawsée on certain statements relating to the negotiadi
WWE's domestic television license. The complaint sesk$ain unspecified damages. A nearly identiaalsuit was filed one month la
entitledCurtis Swanson, on behalf of himself and all otls#nsilarly situated, v. World Wrestling Entertainniginc., Vincent K. McMahon ai
George A. Barrios Both lawsuits are purported securities classoastsubject to the Private Securities Litigatioafdtm Act of 199
(“PSLRA"). On September 224, five putative plaintiffs filed motions to begnted lead plaintiff and to consolidate the tvases pursua
to the PSLRA. Following a hearing on October 2814 the Court issued an order dated November B} afpointing Mohsin Ansari as Le
Plaintiff and consolidating the two actions. Omuary 5, 2015, the Lead Plaintiff filed an amenaednplaint. Among other things, 1
amended complaint adds Stephanie McMahon Levesudidichelle D. Wilson as named defendanf§he Company believes the claims
without merit and intends to vigorously defendlitsgainst them.

On October 23, 2014, a purported class action lawgas filed in the United States District Court the District of Oregon, entitledilliam
Albert Haynes 1ll, on behalf of himself and othesisilarly situated, v. World Wrestling Entertainnteinc., and on January 16, 201!
purported class action lawsuit was filed in thetediStates District Court for the Eastern DistotPennsylvania, entitleHvan Singleton ar
Vito LoGrasso, individually and on behalf of allhers similarly situated, v. World Wrestling Ent#nment, Inc., both alleging that tt
Company ignored, downplayed, and/or failed to diselthe risks associated
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14. Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

with traumatic brain injuries suffered by WWiperformers. These suits both seek unspecifirthicompensatory and punitive damages
injunctive relief, including ordering medical mamiing. The Company believes the claims are withoatit and intends to vigorously defe
itself against them.

In addition to the foregoing, we are involved ivesal other suits and claims that we consider tmlike ordinary course of our business. B
nature, the outcome of litigation is not known the Company does not currently expect its pendtiggation to have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition, results of operatiomdiguidity. We may from time to time become a e other legal proceedings.

15. Related Party Transactions

Vincent K. McMahon, Chairman of the Board of Dirat and Chief Executive Officer, controls a subsgdmajority of the voting pow:
of the issued and outstanding shares of our constmk. Through the beneficial ownership of a sutisthmajority of our Class B comm
stock, Mr. McMahon can effectively exercise contveer our affairs.

Linda McMahon, former Chief Executive Officer ofetlfCompany, was a candidate for the United Stateat8erepresenting the State
Connecticut, in 2012. Mrs. McMahanklection teams engaged the Company to produtaircézlevision advertisements during this camp;
The Company performed these services and chargechthpaign's the fair market value for the provitigevision production services, wh
was approximately $4 for the year ended DecembgeP @112 .

16. Stockholders’ Equity
Class B Convertible Common Stock

Our Class B common stock is fully convertible ittass A common stock, on a one for one basis, yatiare at the option of the hold
The two classes are entitled to equal per shaldatids and distributions and vote together as ssahith each share of Class B entitled tc
votes and each share of Class A entitled to one, eicept when separate class voting is requiregbplicable law. If, at any time, any she¢
of Class B common stock are beneficially owned by person other than Vincent McMahon, Linda McMahany descendant of either
them, any entity which is wholly owned and is coligd by any combination of such persons or angtjrall the beneficiaries of which are
combination of such persons, each of those shalleswtomatically convert into shares of Class Arcoon stock. During the years en
December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2QX3ass B shares were sold, resulting in their ession to Class A shares. Through his beneficialerghiy
of a substantial majority of our Class B commorckt@ur controlling stockholder, Vincent McMahomnceffectively exercise control over
affairs, and his interests could conflict with tin@lders of our Class A common stock.

Dividends

We declared and paid quarterly dividends of $0d2share, totaling $36,150 , $35,979 , and $35¢81all Class A and Class B shares
the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013, 20ph2atxeely.

17. Stock-based Compensation

Our 2007 Amended and Restated Omnibus Incentive Pthe 2007 Plan") provides for equitased incentive awards as determine
the Compensation Committee of the Board of Direct® incentives and rewards to encourage officetemployees to participate in our long
term success.

As of December 31, 2014 , there were approximaelymillion shares available for future grants under the 20am. Rt is our policy t
issue new shares to satisfy option exercises andeasting of RSUs and PSUs.
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17. Stock-based Compensation (continued)
Restricted Stock Uni

The Company grants RSUs to officers and employeder the 2007 Plan. Stobased compensation costs associated with our R&
determined using the fair market value of the Camgfsacommon stock on the date of the grant. Thests@are recognized over the requ
service period using the graded vesting methodphestimated forfeitures. RSUs have a serviceirement typically over a three and one
year vesting schedule and vest in equal annualimsnts. We estimate forfeitures, based on hisabtrends when recognizing compense
expense and adjust the estimate of forfeitures whey are expected to differ or as forfeitures ocdinvested RSUs accrue divide
equivalents at the same rate as are paid on ouessloh Class A common stock. The dividend equivaleme subject to the same ves
schedule as the underlying RSUs.

The following tables summarize the activity of RSdisthe year ended December 31, 2014 :

Weighted-
Average Grant-
Units Date Fair Value
Unvested at January 1, 2014 107,03 $ 9.87
Granted 112,81 $ 22.81
Vested (72,720 $ 11.11
Forfeited (32,51) % 14.7(
Dividend equivalents 4,608 $ 19.11
Unvested at December 31, 2014 119.22( g 20.3¢

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Stock-based compensation expense $ 1,098 $ 63z $ 1,32(
Tax benefits realized 1,03¢ 621 494
Weighted-average grant-date fair value of RSUstgrhn 2,57: 51F 1,36¢
Fair value of RSUs vested 80¢ 65€ 647

As of December 31, 2014 , total unrecognized stuacbed compensation expense related to unvested RS estimated forfeitures, v
approximately $1,438 before income taxes, andpeeted to be recognized over a weighted-averagedpef approximately 1.7 years .

Performance Stock Uni

Stockbased compensation costs associated with our P@Usitally determined using the fair market valoethe Company's comm
stock on the date the awards are approved by omp€psation Committee (service inception date) ardyeanted under the 2007 Plan.
vesting of these PSUs are subject to certain padoce conditions and a service requirement of tanekone half years. Until such time
performance conditions are met, stock compensatists associated with these PSUs amaeasured each reporting period based upon tt
market value of the Company's common stock andpthbability of attainment on the reporting dateeTditimate number of PSUs that
issued to an employee is the result of the acteidbpmance of the Company at the end of the peidoa period compared to the perform:
conditions. Stock compensation costs for our PSidsrecognized over the requisite service periodgishe graded vesting method, ne
estimated forfeitures. Unvested PSUs accrue diddsguivalents once the performance conditions aeanthe same rate as are paid or
shares of Class A common stock. The dividend edpiivg are subject to the same vesting scheduleeasnderlying PSUSs.
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17. Stock-based Compensation (continued)

The following tables summarize the activity of PSbisthe year ended December 31, 2014 :

Weighted-
Average Grant-
Units Date Fair Value
Unvested at January 1, 2014 1,259,62! $ 13.4¢
Granted 278,28. $ 12.3¢
Achievement adjustment (387,63) $ 23.9¢
Vested (371,19) $ 13.71
Forfeited (66,479 $ 21.4%
Dividend equivalents 21,167 $ 15.6¢€
Unvested at December 31, 2014 733,76t g 14.8¢

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Stock-based compensation expense $ 6,24¢ % 4,48¢ $ 2,44(
Tax benefits realized 4,42: 3,31¢ 2,25;
Weighted-average grant-date fair value of PSUstgtan 3,43¢ 14,43( 4,91z
Fair value of PSUs vested 5,09( 2,931 4,37t

For the period ended March 31, 2014, we granted?818PSUs which are subject to certain performaooelitions.

During the year ended December 31, 2103 we graB®ddB896PSUs which were subject to performance conditidhging the thre
months ended March 31, 2014, the certain performaonditions related to these PSUs were partially which resulted in a reduction
387,633 PSUs in 2014 relating to the initial 20 BBJRgrant.

As of December 31, 2014 , total unrecognized stmded compensation expense related to unvested R8I estimated forfeitures, v
approximately $ 4,657 , before income taxes, amkpected to be recognized over a weighted-avqraged of approximately 1.4 years.

Employee Stock Purchase PI

We provide a stock purchase plan for our employdesler the plan, all eligible regular full-time eloypees may contribute up to 1086
their base compensation (subject to certain incmiés) to the semannual purchase of shares of our common stock.plinehase price
85% of the fair market value at certain pldefined dates. As this plan is defined as compengat charge is recorded to Selling, genera
administrative expense for the difference betwdenfair market value and the discounted price. mu2014, 2013 and 2012, employ
purchased 71,157 , 76,219 and 76,676 shares ofamumon stock which resulted in an expense of $286404 , $85, respectively. As «
December 31, 20141.8 million shares of the Company's common staekreserved for issuance under the 2012 Emplotaek Purchas
Plan.
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18. Employee Benefit Plans

We sponsor a 401(k) defined contribution plan coveisubstantially all employees. Under this plaartigipants are allowed to me
contributions based on a percentage of their satagject to a statutorily prescribed annual litdite make matching contributions of 508
each participant’s contributions, up to @¥eeligible compensation. We may also make additialiscretionary contributions to the 401(k) p
Our expense for matching contributions to the 4pp{n was $1,861 , $1,606 and $1,384 for the yeaded December 31, 2014 , 2C4&
2012 , respectively. The Company did not make asgretionary contributions for the years ended Ddwer 31, 2014 , 2013 or 2012 .

19. Segment Information

During the first quarter of 2014, the Company lshett WWE Network, which changed the way that certaintent is delivered to ¢
customers. The launch of WWE Network coupled wité tontinued convergence within the media landsdage resulted in a change in
Company’s management reporting to its chief opegatiecision maker. These changes necessitated rgechia the Compang’ segmet
reporting to align with management’s operationalvi As discussed in Note, Basis of Presentation and Business Descriptioa,Compan
currently classifies its operations into ten reablé segments. The ten reportable segments ofah@ény now include the following: Netwt
(which includes our pay-pefiew business), Television, Home Entertainment Bigital Media, individual segments that comprise tedit
Division; Live Events; Licensing, Venue Merchandi®éWEShop, individual segments that comprise thasimer Products Division; WW
Studios and Corporate and Other (as defined below).

The Company presents OIBDA as the primary meastismegment profit (loss). The Company believes thesgntation of OIBDA
relevant and useful for investors because it allmwestors to view our segment performance in #tmesmanner as the primary method use
management to evaluate segment performance and dwdigions about allocating resources. The Compmhafjnes OIBDA as operatil
income before depreciation and amortization, exaoldeature film and television production assebdimation and impairments, as well
the amortization of costs related to content dejivand technology utilized for our WWE Network.

OIBDA is a non-GAAP financial measure and may Héedent than similarly-titled noiGAAP financial measures used by other compa
A limitation of OIBDA is that it excludes depredian and amortization, which represents the periatiarge for certain fixed assets
intangible assets used in generating revenuesubibosiness. OIBDA should not be regarded as arrative to operating income or
income as an indicator of operating performanceioahe statement of cash flows as a measure oidlig,, nor should it be considered
isolation or as a substitute for financial measymepared in accordance with GAAP. We believe tigrating income is the most diret
comparable GAAP financial measure to OIBDA. Se@Wwebr a reconciliation of OIBDA to operating incenfor the periods presented.

We do not allocate certain costs included in OIBBffour Corporate and Other segment to the othesrtable segments. Corporate
Other expense primarily includes corporate overtaaticertain expenses related to sales and magketsiuding our international offices, ¢
talent development functions, including costs ais¢éed with our WWE Performance Center. These dostefit the Company as a whole
are therefore not allocated. Revenues from traimsecbetween our operating segments are not miateria
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19. Segment Information (continued)

We do not disclose assets by segment informatiogeheral, assets of the Company are leveragedsaitsaeportable segments and w
not provide assets by segment information to oigfadperating decision maker, as that informat®nat typically used in the determinatiot
resource allocation and assessing business perfiomad each reportable segment.

The following tables present summarized finangiébimation for each of the Company's reportablersaygs:

2014 2013 2012

Network $ 114,970  $ 86,26: $ 87,69(

Home Entertainment 27,31 24,32: 33,00:

Live Events 110,65¢ 113,16t 106,51

Venue Merchandise 19,33¢ 19,39’ 18,77«

WWE Studios 10,88: 10,77¢ 7,871

Total net revenues $ 542,62( $ 507,97( % 484,01:

Depreciation and amortization:

Television 8,141 6,61 9,18:

Live Events 298 45 5E

Corporate & Other 15,531 15,10¢ 9,29:

Network $ 1,779 $  27.80: $ 41,46

Home Entertainment 15,02 8,83¢ 15,39:

Live Events 27,82¢ 30,74( 27,04

Venue Merchandise 7,722 7,547 6,741

WWE Studios 46€ (12,749 (5,454

Total OIBDA $ (15,45) $ 30,36( $ 63,21¢

F-31




WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share data)

19. Segment Information (continued)

Reconciliation of Total Operating (Loss) Incoméltital OIBDA

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Total operating (loss) income $ (42,15) $ 5891 $ 43,19*
Depreciation and amortization 26,70¢ 24,46¢ 20,02«
Total OIBDA $ (1545) $ 30,36( $ 63,21¢

Geographic Information

Net revenues by major geographic region are baped the geographic location of where our conterttiséributed. The informatic
below summarizes net revenues to unaffiliated ensts by geographic area:

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
North America $ 426,190 $ 391,66 $ 365,94.
Europe/Middle East/Africa 69,08: 72,40¢ 70,72(
Asia Pacific 41,05 37,26¢ 37,087
Latin America 6,29( 6,62¢ 10,26«
Total net revenues $ 542,62( $ 507,97( $ 484,01

Revenues generated from the United Kingdom, ogektrinternational market, totaled $40,501 , $38.&0d $34,00for the years end:
December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2QI2spectively. The Company's property and equipmes almost entirely located in the United Stat
December 31, 2014 and 2013 .

20. Concentration of Credit Risk

We continually monitor our position with, and theedit quality of, the financial institutions thateacounterparties to our financ
instruments. Our accounts receivable relates gratlgi to a limited number of distributors, includimur Network, television, pay-p&iew anc
home video distributors and licensees that proadwesumer products containing our intellectual tradeks. We closely monitor the statu:
receivables with these customers and maintain alhmes for anticipated losses as deemed appropiiateecember 31, 2014nd 2013 ot
largest single customers made up 14% and 13%spectively, of our gross accounts receivablanz&. No other customers individui
exceeded 10% of our gross accounts receivabledmlan
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share data)

21.Selected Quarterly Financial Information (unaudted)

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter

2014 1) (2 (2) (3) 1) (2) (3) (1) (2
Net revenues $ 12557. $ 156,31( $ 120,18: $ 140,55!
Cost of revenues $ 84,71¢ $ 121,74  $ 78,417 $ 92,73t
Net loss $ (8,036 $ (14,49) $ (5,920 $ (1,619
Net loss per common share: basic $ (0.11) $ (0.19 $ (0.0¢) $ (0.02)
2013

Net revenues $ 124,00 $ 152,28. $ 113,29: $ 118,39!
Cost of revenues $ 74,86¢ $ 96,85 $ 70,947 $ 80,36(
Net income (loss) $ 3,03¢ % 518 $ 2,43¢ % (7,89))
Net income (loss) per common share: basic $ 0.04 $ 0.07 $ 0.0z $ (0.13)

(1) Cost of revenues for the fourth quarter of 2@hd first and third quarters of 2013 include imeent charges of $1,476 , $4,698nc
$6,965 , respectively, related to certain of oatdee films. See Note Feature Film Production Assets.

(2) Net income (loss) for the third quarter of 20ddludes the benefit of $7,04%nd for the second and third quarters of 2018 pémnefi
of $257 , $6,373 respectively, relating to incentives receiveétia to television production. Additionally, neicome in the secor
third and fourth quarters of 2014 includes a benefi$296 , $985 and $1,674respectively, related to feature film produc
incentives. Further, in 2014 we received an inftagtire improvement incentive which has a $970tp@simpact on net income.

(3) Net loss for the second quarter of 2014 include$l,600adjustment to reduce the carrying value of theaarporate aircraft to i
estimated fair value. Net loss for the third quaae2014 includes $4,20@ restructuring charges in support of a cost ngtthitiative
and includes a $3,962 impairment of an equity itmesit.
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WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(in thousands)

Charges to Balance at
Balance at  Expense/
Beginning Against  Deductions/Adjustments  End of
Description of Year Revenues * Year

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand returns 2,03¢ 8,36: (10,1079 29¢

Network chargebacks 302 25

(277)

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 6,27 $ 6) $ (3489 $ 2,78t

Home video allowance for returns 6,271 18,71 (20,467) 4,52(

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 2,17¢ $ 2,48 % 1612 $ 6,27

Home video allowance for returns 7,09¢ 15,99( (16,815 6,271

* Includes deductions which are comprised primaoilyvrite-offs of specific bad debts and returnsragazines and home videos from
retailers, adjustments to the allowance accounthvaffects bad debt expense or network cancelto adjustments to refund allowances.
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SUBSIDIARIES OF WORLD WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENT, INC.

(All subsidiaries are wholly-owned, directly or irettly, except where indicated)

TSI Realty Company (a Delaware corporation)

Event Services, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)

e WM Labor MGT, Inc. (a Delaware corporati

* Event Services (Nola), LLC (a Louisiana corpora)

WWE Jet Services, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)

WWE Network, LLC (a Delaware limited liability corapy)

WWE Studios, Inc. (a Delaware corporation)

e Studios Originals, Inc. (a Delaware corporat

«  WWE Studios Finance Corp. (a Delaware corpora

*  WWE Films Development, Inc. (a Delaware corpora|

WWE Studios Production, Inc. (a Delaware corporg
WWE TE Productions, Inc. (a Delaware corporai
WWE LH Productions, Inc. (a Delaware corporatiot
Marine Productions Australia Pty Limited (an Auizaorporation
Barricade Productions, Inc. (a British Columbiapmration
Marine 3, LLC (a Louisiana limited liability compg)
Marine: Homefront, Inc. (a Delaware corporat
*  Homefront Productions, Inc. (a British Columbia qamy’
Twelve RR, Inc. (a Delaware corporati
* Reload Films, Inc. (a British Columbia compe
Six Forty Two Films, Inc. (a Delaware corporati
One More Time Films, Inc. (a Delaware corporat
» Jersey Family Films, Inc. (a British Columbia comy)
» See No Evil Films 2, Inc. (a British Columbia compj
e Original Leprechaun Films, Inc. (a British Columlsiampany
Mind’s Eye Films, Inc. (a Delaware corporati
Incarnate Investments, Inc. (a Delaware corporg
Fourth Marine Films, Inc. (a Delaware corporat
e Marine 4 Films, Inc. (a British Columbia compa
Triangle Films, Inc. (a Delaware corporati
Action Six Pack #1, Inc. (a Delaware corporat
* Vendetta Pictures, Inc. (a British Columbia comp
Asp #2, Inc. (a Delaware corporati

e Lockdown Films, Inc. (a British Columbia compa
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¢ The Condemned 2, Inc. (a Delaware corpora

¢ Interrogation Films, Inc. (a British Columbia comg3




WWE Properties International, Inc. (a Delaware ocoagion)

e XFL, LLC (50 percent owned)
WWE Japan LLC (a Japanese limited liability company
WWE Australia Pty Limited (an Australia limited baity company)
World Wrestling Entertainment (International) Liext (a UK corporation)
World Wrestling Entertainment Canada, Inc. (a Céradorporation)
WWE Asia Pacific Pte, Ltd. (a Singapore corporation

WWE Germany GmbH (a German corporation)
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference ini®egion Statement Nos. 333-92041, 333-181001 38®+151022 on Form 8-of oul
reports dated February 17, 2015elating to the consolidated financial statemesmsl financial statement schedule of World Wreg
Entertainment, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Comppgrarid the effectiveness of the Company's intezaatrol over financial reporting, appear
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of World WrestiEntertainment, Inc. for the year ended DecerBheP014 .

/sl Deloitte & Touche, LLP
Stamford, CT
February 17, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

Certification required by Securities and Exchange At of 1934 Rule 13a-14 as adopted pursuant to Sexti302 of Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

[, Vincent K. McMahon certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F World Wrestling Entertainment, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,aher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodimand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slakisire controls and procedures and presentedsimehort our conclusiol
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contial$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regidtsainternal control over financial reporting that¢curred during tt
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that hateniadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registran
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | badisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatidntefal control over financi
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdtaxoimmittee of the registrant's board of direct@nspersons performing the equival
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes&e the design or operation of internal controkfinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thegistrant's ability to record, process, summasdre report financi
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a significalet in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Dated: February 17, 2015 By:/s/  VINCENT K. MCMAHON
Vincent K. McMahon
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.

Certification required by Securities and Exchange At of 1934 Rule 13a-14 as adopted pursuant to Sexti302 of Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002

I, George A. Barrios certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F World Wrestling Entertainment, In

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgtéde a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to t
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,aher financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | aesponsible for establishing and maintaining disgte controls and procedures
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiotatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtsubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isihg prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr;, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be design
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodimand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slakisire controls and procedures and presentedsimehort our conclusiol
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contial$ procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetlis report based
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regidtsainternal control over financial reporting that¢curred during tt
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter that hateniadly affected, or is reasonably likely to maadly affect, the registran
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | badisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatidntefal control over financi
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdtaxoimmittee of the registrant's board of direct@nspersons performing the equival
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknes&e the design or operation of internal controkfinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thegistrant's ability to record, process, summasdre report financi
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a significalet in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Dated: February 17, 2015 By: /s/ GEORGE A. BARRIOS
George A. Barrios
Chief Strategy and Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Chairman and CEO and CFO Pursuantto
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Sent906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the annual report on Form 10fkiA®rld Wrestling Entertainment, Inc. (the “Companjor the year ende®ecember 3:
2014 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cmsion on the date hereof (the “Repor¥jncent K. McMahon as Chairman of the Ba
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and @eoA. Barrios as Chief Strategy and Financial @ffiof the Company, each her
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,dpted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb&rdsey Act of 2002, that, to the best of his
her knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExchangeofA 1934 as amended; ¢

(2) The information contained in the report faiplsesents, in all material aspects, the finan@alition and results of operations of the

Company.

Dated: February 17, 2015 By:/s/ VINCENT K. MCMAHON
Vincent K. McMahon
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: February 17, 2015 By: /SGEORGE A. BARRIOS

George A. Barrios
Chief Strategy and Financial Officer



